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This past year has seen important progress in a number of areas:

o Completion of product development and bringing the 24/7 Power Pack to market;

¢ Bringing to operational capability our fully automated production line in Ireland;

» Establishing relationships with major companies that can play a significant role in
the future of our product sales and development;

e Developing new products that hold promise of adding additional value to our
company;

o Successfully completing the rights offering to our shareholders of shares of Cell
Kinetics Ltd.; and

e Successfully completing various financing programs.

Let me discuss each of these 1n tumn.

Completion of our 24/7 Power Pack and Bringing It to Market

During this year we have completed key milestones that are important for successfully
offering the Power Pack in various markets. The Power Pack, which had already received
listing by the Underwriters’ Laboratories, significantly added the right to use the CE
Mark required for sales in Europe and, of great importance, the U.S. Department of
Transportation has issued a special permit to bring up to three Power Packs per person on
board an airplane.

We have deltvered Power Packs to our distributors and our sales representatives and they
have delivered them to their own potential customers. We have set in motion programs
for placing Power Packs in sales outlets so that they are able to reach the ultimate
CONSumers.

We have also developed a new product using the very same Power Pack but with a
connector to an LED or other light source to provide illumination that is long lasting and
inexpensive relative to traditional battery sources. We believe there are significant
opportunities for such a product in emerging markets where electrical power is not
readily available and for city, state and federal government use and other persons who are
concerned about having the avatlability of survival kits.




Production Capability

This past year has seen completion of our production line and its full qualification. We
are now making 24/7 Power Packs on the line which is capable of producing about
350,000 Power Packs per month on the first shift. As we step up production to meet
anticipated demand we will add shifts with the goal of ultimately reaching full capacity of
1.5 million Power Packs per month.

Establishing Important Relationships

During this past year we have established relationships with major companies which we
believe are important to our future success. We announced a strategic program with the
largest electronic retailer in the United States with stores in the U.S., Canada and China,
and that company has announced a transaction which will considerably expand its market
outreach in Europe. We expect that this strategic program will enable us to move forward
on a number of fronts.

As a start, it offers the opportunity to work with a highly placed and knowledgeable
electronics retailer to develop the appropriate marketing message for our 24/7 Power
packs, including the different SKUs, the packaging and connector strategies, as well as
the appropriate product placements in the stores. After that, we look forward to the
opportunity to expand our offering of Power Packs in their widely based stores. We are
also planning to work with them on development of other products based on our fuel cell
technology platform, including our 2nd generation Power Pack, and power sources for
laptops and stationary power products for homes, offices and servers.

We also announced recently that Medis Technologies and Hewlett Packard are in
confidential discussions regarding a number of potential programs.

We are also discussing with well known OEMs the possibility of making power sources
specifically dedicated to their products. And through our distributors and representatives
which we expanded this past year, we are reaching out to mobile operators and retail
outlets in markets in large parts of the world - including, China, India, Russia, South
America, South Africa and Japan where billions of cell phones and other devices are in
use. In connection with our new LED light product, we are reaching out to utilities to
offer it to their customer base for emergency and survival use. Given the seemingly
increasing natural disasters striking many parts of the world, we believe that such a kit
can be an attractive product.

In my view, these expanding relationships with major companies reflect the growing
recognition of the credibility and value of our Power Pack product and our fuel cell
platform technology. Moreover, these relationships tend to encourage other important
companies to establish relationships with us.




New Product Development

Our product development strategy is to maximize our successful fuel cell platform by
moving forward with completing development of our 2nd generation Power Pack and of
new sources of Power for laptops and stationary power sources. One of the major sources
of developing know-how 1s our work with General Dynamics on fuel cell power sources
for military applications which we announced during this past year. In these and other
programs, we plan to use a solid fuel capable delivery, which is based on our patented
fuel and for which we have filed additional patent applications. A solid fuel allows for
reducing the product size while increasing the available power. We also believe that this
invention of a stable, solid fue] that can be delivered in cartridges may help obviate some
of the problems of storage, transportation and delivery which are associated with wider
use of hydrogen. In this connection, we believe that our ability to deliver energy in the
form of fuel cells is increasingly important in the energy hungry world we inhabit.

Cell Kinetics

The completion of the rights offering to Medis shareholders of the shares of Cell Kinetics
Ltd. (OTCBB:CKNTF) launched Cell Kinetics as a public company. During the past
year, Cell Kinetics has made strides in realizing its innovative CKChip™ cytometric
technology, demonstrating 1ts potential in various cell-based applications in life science
research and development. This technology opens new dimensions in cell-based research
by enabling, monitoring and analysis of time-dependent (“Kinetic”) processes in
numerous individual live cells, each analyzed at the single cell level. Cell Kinetics has
now moved to a product introduction phase. To this end, it presented the CKChip at two
international congresses of cell biology and cytometry, as well as in a series of scientific
seminars presented at the NIH, Boston Umversity, Max Plank Institute, the German
Cancer Research Center (DKFZ) in Heidelberg and others. Feedback received thus far
from scientists and researches working in the fields of cell biology, immunology, cell
physiology, and those working in the systems biology field have been very encouraging
to us and is providing additional impetus for us to pursue our work along our original
plans and to seek to further develop potential markets, as well as next generation products
and supporting tools. Furthermore, Cell Kinetics has recently announced the signing with
Rikaken Co., Ltd. Japan, an exclusive distribution agreement for marketing and
distribution of Cell Kinetics” CKChip in Japan.

Financing
Although much of this period was characterized by world-wide financial dislocations and
difficulties, we were able to provide the financial resources required to maintain our
operations.
During this period we faced many challenges. Yet by dint of the enormous work and

commitment of our employees and management we have reached this pomt of launching




our Power Pack in the market, developing exciting new products based on our fuel cell
technology and creating valuable relationships with major world wide companies.

We look forward to a successful and rewarding year ahead.
Sincerely,

Robert K. Lifton

Chairman & CEO
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References in this annual report to “we,” “us,” or “our” arc to Medis Technologies Ltd. and its
direct and indircct subsidiaries, unless the context specifies or requires otherwise.




SOURCES OF INFORMATION

Information contained in this annual report concerning the portable electronics market, our
general expectations concerning this industry and this market, and our position within this industry are
based on market rescarch, industry publications, other publicly available information and on assumptions
made by us based on this information and our knowledge of this industry and this market, which we
believe to be reasonable. Although we believe that the market research, industry pubtications and other
publicly available information are reliable, including the sources that we cite in this annual report, they
have not been independently verified by us and, accordingly, we cannot assure you that such information
is accurate in all material respects. Our cstimates, particularly as they relate to our gencral expcctations
concerning the portable electronics market, involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change
bascd on various factors, including those discussed under *‘Risk Factors.™

All dollar amounts are in U.S. dollars unless otherwise noted.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This annual report includes forward-looking statcments within the meaning of Section 21 E of the

Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, Words such as “will,” “may,” ‘‘expects,’” ‘‘anticipates,”’
‘‘approximates,’’ “‘belicves,”” ¢ T
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estimates,”” ““intends’’ and ‘‘hopes’’ and vanations of such words and
similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statcments. We have based these
statcments on our current expectations and projections about future events. These forward-looking
statements arc not guarantees of futurc performance and arc subject to risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those projected in these statements. These risks and
uncertainties include those sct forth under ‘‘Risk Factors.’” The forward-looking statements contained in
this annual report include, among others, statcments about:

. the development and commercialization schedule for our fuel cell technology and products;

. the expected cost competitivencss of our fucl cell technology and products;

. rapid technological change;

. our intcllectual property;

. the timing and availability of our products;

. our business strategy; and

. general economic conditions. ‘
Except for our ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the federal securitics laws, we |
are not obligated to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new \

information, future events or otherwisc. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-
looking events discussed in this annual report might not occur.




PART1
Item 1. Business
Introduction
The Company

We design, develop and market innovative liquid fuel cell products principally for the mobile
handset and portable consumer ¢lectronics markets. Our first commercial product is our *24/7 Power
Pack’ - a small, inexpensive and disposable power source capable of providing dircct power or
multiple recharges to many of the most advanced portable electronic devices, such as mobile
handsets, smart phones, MP3 playcrs, gaming and other handheld clectronic devices. We believe that
the 24/7 Power Pack is the world’s first commercially offered portable fuel cell solution for the
consumer market and represents a significant technological achicvement in the advancement of the
global fuel cell industry. A fuel cell is an clectro-chemical device that through a chemical reaction,
converts the chemical cnergy of a fuel, such as our patented borohydride-based fuel, hydrogen or
methanol, into electrical encrgy.

Through Cell Kinetics Ltd., our indirect majority-owned subsidiary, we arc secking to
commercially exploit what we believe to be an ever-growing need to study individual live cells through
the development, marketing and sale of an improved Cell Carricr under the “CKChip™™ product line.
This unique Cell Carricr can accommodate large quantitics of cells, each in individual wells, for
measuring reactions of living cells while the cells are in a static state for a considerable period of time.
Cell Kinetics also sources, vets and invests in carly stage [sracli-based medical device companics.

We arc a Delaware corporation organized in April 1992, Our executive offices are located at 805
Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022, Our telephone number is (212) 935-8484. Our website is
located at www.medistcchnologics.com. We makc available free of charge through our website our
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitics
Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable after we have filed such material clectronically
with, or furnished it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information on our website is not
part of this annual report.

In 2007, we decided that it would be prudent, given our primary focus upon the marketing of our
24/7 Power Pack”, to seck to commercially exploit, and raise financing for, our Cell Carrier through a
stand-alone corporate entity. As a result, we transferred our CellScan and Cell Carrier related business,
including our intellectual property rights relating to the CeltScan and its Ccll Carrier technology, to our
then wholly owned Isracli subsidiary, Cell Kinctics Ltd., pursuant to an asset purchase agreement dated
July 26, 2007, in consideration of Cell Kinetics’ issuance to Medis El Ltd., our wholly-owned subsidiary,
of 15,500,000 of Cell Kinetics’ ordinary shares. We have also granted Cell Kinetics a five year right of
first refusal upon all further medical diagnostic opportunitics that are sourced by, or prescnted to, us. In
addition, we have agreed to provide to Cell Kinetics a cash capital contribution of $1,500,000 over an 18
month period on an as nceded basis commencing on the completion of a rights offering made by Cell
Kinctics. We have also agreed that, following the completion of the rights offering, we would provide
Cell Kinetics with such office and laboratory facilities as Cell Kinetics may reasonably requirc to further
the commercialization of the Cell Carrier and to launch and operate its proposed medical device
incubator, as well as to provide it with administrative and professional services at cost as a contribution to
its capital for a period of not less than 18 months from the date of the rights offcring. We have also
committed to provide Cell Kinetics with additional financing to carry-out its operations for at least one




year if its other resources are insufficient for such period of time. As of July 27, 2007, we entered into a
service agreement with Medis El and Cell Kinetics pursuant to which we and Medis El will provide Ccll
Kinetics with administrative scrvices, equipment usage and facilities for a period of 18 months from the
completion of the rights offering. This agreement provides that we and Medis El will charge Cell Kinetics
for such services at cost, as a contribution to Cell Kinetics’ capital.

On November 5, 2007, Cell Kinetics initiated a rights offering to Medis’ shareholders, offering
them the opportunity to acquirc in the aggregate approximately 17.5% direct cquity interest in Ccll
Kinetics. Upon completion of the rights offering on January 7, 2008, Cell Kinetics sold 3,492,788 of its
ordinary shares at a pricc of $0.30 per sharc. Subscribers also received four year warrants (at the rate of
one warrant for every two ordinary shares purchased) to purchase additional Cell Kinetics ordinary shares
at an ¢xercise price of $0.60 per share. The ordinary shares and four year warrants of Cell Kinetics trade
on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbols CKNTF and CKNWF, respectively.

On November 26, 2007, we entered into an cquity distribution agreement with UBS Securitics
LLC. The equity distribution agreement provides that we may offer and sell shares of our common stock
having an aggregate offering price of up to $35,000,000 from time to timc through UBS, as sales
agent. In cxchange for its scrvices as sales agent, we will pay UBS a commission cqual to 4% of the first
$15,000,000 of gross salcs price of the shares sold and 3% of any gross sales price of the shares sold in
cxcess of $15,000,000. Under the terms of the equity distribution agreement, we may also scll shares
from time to time to UBS as principal for its own account at a price to be agreed upon at the time of sale.
The terms of the cquity distribution agreement do not obligate us to sell any minimum number of sharcs
through or to UBS. Through March 14, 2008, w¢ have sold 2,243,883 shares of our common stock
pursuant to the Equity Distribution Agreement for gross proceeds of approximately 528,894,000, less
aggregate costs of approximatcly $1,208,000.

Commercialization

It is our goal to market our 24/7 Power Pack globally in a manner that will enable us to distribute
our 24/7 Power Pack efficiently to key market scgments around the world, both in developed countries
and cmerging markets like China and India. To this end, we arc working to establish rclationships with
large customers, particularly original cquipment manufacturers (OEMs) and mobile operators, who have
broad market reach and who would brand the Power Pack with their own well known brands. We have
cstablished relationships with distributors who service retail and mobile operator customers. One area of
particular focus is the high usagc cnterprise market (field service business market) customers, whom we
seek to access through the mobile operators, OEMs and distributors of software who service those
customers. As part of our commercialization and marketing program, we have produced thousands of our
24/7 Power Packs for testing, marketing and promotional purposes, including distribution to key
personncl of leading mobile network operators, OEMs, software providers, retail customers, advertising
executives, content providers and others worldwide. We have also distributed 24/7 Power Packs to our
distributors — Quasar Business Solutions, Northwest Charging Systems, Inc., ASE International Inc.,
Kensington Technology Group and Superior Communications. Furthermore, to facilitate the introduction
of our Power Pack into the market, we have sold limited quantities or our 24/7 Power Packs to sclected
customers in commercial trans-actions. We have also delivered producets to General Dynamics, which is
our exclusive distributor in the U.S. military markets. With respect to our efforts to achieve a global
reach, we have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Founder, one of China’s largest
technology companies, with which we are working to market our Power Pack in China, with a view to the
possibility that Founder would also manufacture the Power Pack in China. Founder is the sccond largest
PC producer in China. It operates about 2,000 stores specializing in electronic products, and it owns a
major shopping mall, as well as other holdings. We also have rclationships with two Russian business
groups, ASPECT and Tenzor MA, memorialized in a memorandum of understanding, that we are hopeful



will result in the marketing and distribution in Russia of our 24/7 Power Pack and, eventually, in the
cstablishment of full production assembly capability by Tenzor.

We have received Underwriters’ Laboratorics (UL) listing of our 24/7 Power Pack, and having
been notified by UL that we have successfully complceted the initial production inspection of our fully
automated production line located at the facilitics of our contract manufacturer, Celestica Ireland Ltd., in
Galway, Ircland, we are authorized to apply the UL mark to our Power Pack products produced on that
line. UL is an intcrnationally recognized, independent, not-for-profit product safety certification
organization involved in testing products and writing standards for safety. TUV Rheinland Group, an
independent international service company that documents product safety and quality, has confirmed that
our 24/7 Power Pack mects the requirements needed to carry the CE mark, including the IEC 62282-6-1
standard for micro fuel cell power systems, demonstrating that the 24/7 Power Pack is compliant with the
directives and standards required by the European Union. Furthermore, we have received a special permit
from the U.S. Department of Transportation, which authorizes aircraft passengers and crew members to
carry up to three 24/7 Power Pack micro fuel cell devices for personal usc aboard aircraft on one’s person
or in carry-on baggage without being subject to the Hazardous Materials Regulations, subject o
limitations, conditions, regulations and specific labeling requirements set forth in the permit.

Production

Our fully automatcd production line in Galway, Ircland is now opcrational. It is designed to
produce at full capacity 1.5 miilion Power Packs per month. We are coordinating the production ramp-up
with our distributors’ roll-out plans for our product and other anticipated demand, as Celestica trains
personnel to operate additional shifts. This production line includes a fuel production facility which we
expect can service two additional automated lines and a packaging facility which we expect can service
one additional automated ling. Our semi-automated production line, located in our facilities in Lod,
Isracl, will be used for the foresceable future primarily for research and development purposcs.

Markets

According to Informa, an independent market rescarch firm, the number of mobile handset
subscribers surpassed the 3 billion mark in July 2007. The penetration of multimedia functionalities such
as video and music, as well as social nctworking, combined with increasingly larger and higher resolution
colored screens, advancing gencration wireless protocols and dual mode handsets for WiFi and voice over
internet protocol (‘*VolIP’’), arc creating significantly greater demand on power sources to keep handscts
functioning. In addition, there is an increasing amount of content being offered on cell phones through
broad band connection, such as search and GSM capability, supported by advertising, which requires
sufficient power for the consumer to take advantage of the content and access the advertising.

Furthermore, enterprisc market customers are cxpanding their use of smart phones carrying
sophisticated software like Windows Mobile or Symbion. According to DigiTimes research smart phone
shipments are cxpected to top 195 million units in 2008, 16% of the total handset shipments and up from
13% in 2007,

In its rescarch report dated January 7, 2008, Citigroup estimates that the smart phone market will
grow 50% to 60% annually over the next few years. Citigroup expects the smart phone market to account
for 22% of the handset market next year. This is a market that we believe will be particularly attracted to
our 24/7 Power Pack to provide the power required to achicve the productivity desired from these
devices. Our belief is premised upon meetings of our marketing staff with representatives of mobile
service providers, software providers, OEMs and other companies active in that field.




[t is widcly reported that current mobile handset battery technologies are approaching
technological limitations. Indecd, there are indications that some OEMs are expected to eliminate
consumers’ ability to change batterics in their mobile devices, as Apple has donc with respect to its
iPhone, thereby effectively mandating the use of external charging devices. The power gap that already
cxists between cver-increasing power demands of clectronic applications and battery capacity continucs
to widen. Although end users’ primary requirecments for mobile handsets have historically been voice and
text services and functionality, wircless industry participants, including wircless service providers,
handsct manufacturers and content providers, are increasingly relying on multimedia applications to drive
revenues and growth. If handsct batteries are rapidly depleted from the usc of multimedia applications,
limiting the handsct’s primary voice and text functions, end users will likely be discouraged from using
such applications on a regular basis. These factors drive wireless industry participants, as well as
advertisers and content providers who are looking to expand their business model through handheld
devices, to continually evaluate solutions such as portable fuel cell chargers and battery replacement
devices. Similar power limitations are also being experienced with digital audio and video players such as
iPods, MP3 players and other devices as well as by portable gaming devices. The only solutions currently
offered for this growing power gap are portable battery based chargers, which are offered at a significant
cost relative to their power supply, and continue to pose environmental concerns. We believe that the
proliferation of portable consumer devices with increasing multimedia functionality, combined with the
current technological limitations of overall battery capacity, have created a strong demand for an
alternative portable power source like our 24/7 Power Pack. We also believe that an increasingly
important factor in the market appeal of our 24/7 Power Pack is the growing global interest in “green”
products. Our 24/7 Power Pack is a “green” product that does not contain mercury, cadmium or other
metals that arc deleterious to the environment.

Products

In order to address the significant and growing market opportunity for higher capacity portable
power sources, we have focused primarily on the following product offerings:

24/7 Power Pack. Our 24/7 Power Pack is a disposable, portable auxiliary power source that
allows the continued use of a portable electronic device whoese battery is depleted, while at the same time
charging the battery. The 24/7 Power Pack is offered with etther a 1 watt power management system or a
2 watt hybrid power management system which carries a small lithium ion battery. Once the battery is
used, the 24/7 Power Pack continues to charge the device and also recharges the battery. After the 24/7
Power Pack is depleted, the customer can still retain the power management system for use on another
24/7 Power Pack. The 24/7 Power Pack with the 1 watt power management system provides sufficient
power (1 watt, up to 5.4 volts) to operate, and charge, multiple times, a wide rangc of portable electronic
devices in the market today. Such devices include many mobile handsets, dual-mode phones for WiFi and
VoIP, PDAs (both for personal and professional use, including wireless versions with c-mail and internet
capability), smart phones, MP3 players, hand-hcld video games and other devices with similar power
requirements. We expect the 1 watt power management system to be more attractive for usc with the less
technologically advanced cell phones being offered in emerging markets, Because of the faster charging
rate of the 2 watt power management system, customers may prefer it to charge most advanced smart
phones that require greater power and that many portable chargers currently on the market are unable to
charge. Our patent pending power management systems allow the 24/7 Power Pack to charge a number of
different devices using inexpensive connectors that access the particular device’s battery. We are also
working with General Dynamics C4 Systems to promote the 24/7 Power Pack for military use by the
Department of Defense in GSM phones, PDAs and other uses as well as for sales to the Department of
Homeland Security.



Next Generation Products; Research and Development. We are also developing other products
and exploring additional opportunitics with respect to our fuel cell technologies, including:

a next generation refuclable 24/7 Power Pack;
a single-fueling cartridge Power Pack;
» amore powerful, refuelable fuel cell for laptop computers; and

a stationary fuel cell for back-up cmergency power for small office and home use and for
Servers.

Each of these products under development will use solid fuel. We have filed a patent application with
respect to this use of solid fuel. We believe that the solid fuel we have invented, which is stabie and can
create hydrogen when centain liquids are added, may make a contribution to the development of a
“hydrogen economy” by improving the ability to store, transport and deliver hydrogen in the form of a
solid fuel rather than in the form of gas.

Competitive Advantages

Leading-Edge, Disruptive Technology. We belicve that our products have a competitive
advantage over virtually every other portable power source for handheld clectronic devices. We believe
these competitive advantages include:

significantly more hours of operation and convenience relative to cost when compared to
portable disposable and rechargeable battery chargers currently on the market;

the ability to start a mobile handsct depleted of power more quickly than other portable
chargers and, in the case of some devices which consume considerable power, we believe the
only portable charger capable of providing such power;

.« versatility to charge a variety of devices using low cost connectors;
no discerniblc heat emission;
significantly less flammable or toxic than other fuct cell alternatives;

significantly lower cost of materials and greater efficiency when compared to other portable
fuel cell products;

relative size — small, portable solution; and

more cnvironmentally friendly ‘‘green” solution relative to other battery or fucl cell
alternatives.

World's First Commercial Portable Fuel Cell Solution. We belicve that we have the only
commercially available portable fucl cell solution. We believe that other portable fucl cell solutions are
primarily in prototype stages and have not been widely commercialized. Qur fuel cell is not bascd on the
traditional proton exchange membranc (PEM) technology or methanol based fuels utilized by other fuel
ccll devclopers. Therefore, we do not face issucs such as the emission of significant heat and water, high
production costs, and the flammable and toxic nature of their respective fuels. Our 24/7 Power Pack
provides a competitive, portable fuel cell solution today.
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Target End Users

Based on our studies and reviews with our distributors and potential customers, we have
identified potential users and sources of demand for our products such as:

. Enterprise. We cstimatc that a large portion of our potential customer basc will come from
the ““enterprise’’ market, principally the high-usage field service market. This demographic
uses increasingly advanced portable electronic devices to access corporate applications and
databases. The ability to keep ficld service workers” devices charged while out on calls can
have a significant impact on productivity.

o Consumers of Conient on Portable Devices. Mobile operators and content providers arc
increasing the ability of consumers to access content such as music, video, social networks,
search services and GPS. Much of that content is to be underwritien by advertising, which
adds to the power requirements. We expect consumers who want to fully access that content
will be intcrested in having the Power Pack to provide the continuous power required.

+  Frequent Travelers. We cxpect frequent travelers who utilize cell phones and other portable
clectronic device will be interested in using the 24/7 Power Pack to keep their devices
charged while traveling.

«  Emergency Users. This market includes users requiring backup power during emergency
situations such as natural disasters and blackouts as well as those users who want to be
prepared for such emergencies by having power available for use at some future time.

«  ““Kidults,”’ This market includes 13-to-24 ycar-olds who represent prime users for many
advanced portable devices. We, as well as our distributors, believe that the 24/7 Power Pack
offers a valuable opportunity for the distributors and their customers to access this very
important market as a way of rclating to this consumer group as its members age.

Significant Intellectual Property and Technological Know-how. We have been issued 9 United
Statcs patents relating to our fucl cell technologies, four of which pertain to our liquid fuel. Furthermore,
we have several other patents pending which we are pursuing, and we continuc to prepare new patent
applications in the United States with respect to various aspects of our fuel cell technology, including our
fucl, solid fucl, electrodes, cartridge system and power and management system. We also have significant
tradc sccrets pertaining to our fuel cell technology and production process which we belicve will create
substantial barriers to market entry and protect us from reverse engineering.

Strategic Relationships

We have formed strategic relationships with well-established companies through distribution,
markeling, technology, supply and product development arrangements, These relationships include:

. ASE International Inc. Wc¢ have entered into an agreement with ASE for the distribution of
our 24/7 Power Packs to drug stores, convenience stores, department stores, airport stores
and duty frce shops. ASE issued a purchase order to us in 2005 calling for dclivery of
200,000 24/7 Power Packs a month during their first year of availability from our preduction
and 400,000 24/7 Power Packs a month during their second year of production.

. Quasar Business Solutions. Quasar is a Gold Level Microsoft partner, which is offering
Microsoft Windows Mobile to its customer base. We have entered into a distribution
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agrcement with Quasar to market our 24/7 Power Pack to that customer base, particutarly to
provide a power source to take full advantage of Windows’ capabilitics. Quasar has issued a
purchase order for 1,000,000 Power Packs.

Northwest Charging Systems, Inc. (“Northwest”). We have entered into a distribution
agrcement for Northwest to market and scll our 24/7 Power Packs world wide. As part of that
agreement, Northwest has issued an initial purchasc order for 250,000 24/7 Power Packs.
Northwest is a global resources company, manufacturer and battery assembler, focused on
providing cngincering, design, components and production assistance to the portable power
market. Northwest provides Smart Battery management solutions for complex battery
systems of up to 12 cells in series, including safety pack management, cell balancing, fuel
gauging and charging solutions.

Kensington Technology Group. We have cntered into a distribution agreement with
Kensington which grants it a limited, exclusive right to market and distribute our 24/7 Power
Packs to its traditional customer base, including ‘*big box’’ stores such as Best Buy and
Circuit City, and oftice supply chains such as Office Max and Home Depot.

Superior Communications. We have entcred into a distribution agreement with Superior to
distribute our 24/7 Power Packs to certain major mobile operators, including Cingular
Wircless, AT&T Wircless, T-Mobilc and Alltel.

General Dynamics C4 Svstems. We have an exclusive relationship with General Dynamics to
develop micro-fucl cell products for the U.S. Departments of Defense and Homeland
Security, including refuclable Power Packs as powcr sources for tablet computers, cell
phones and other applications. In October, 2007 we cntered into an agreement with General
Dynamics to develop a 20 Watt fucl cell power pack in support of the U.S. Department of
Defense Wearable Power Competition.

Founder Technology Group. We have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with
Founder Technology Group, which calls for Founder to introduce the 24/7 Power Pack into
the Greater China market. Founder is a premicr technology conglomeratce in the People's
Republic of China, with one of its principal lincs of business being in the Information
Technology arcna, with manufacturing and distribution infrastructurces throughout China.
Pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding, Founder, in conjunction with Medis
personnel, will scek approvals from appropriate Chincse regulatory authoritics so as to
permit the sale of the Power Pack in China, and will market thec Power Pack to Chinese
governmental entities and to Chinese mobile phone carriers. It also provides for conducting
B2C (consumer) market studies, including the use of focus groups to determine demand and
pricing elasticity for the Power Packs in China. The Memorandum of Understanding also sets
forth a time frame for the parties to negotiate and enter into a definitive agreement for
Founder’s distribution and manufacturing of the Power Pack in China, which would
encompass Founder's purchase of certain proprietary elements, its payment of a royalty upon
cach Power Pack unit manufactured by Founder, and the right of Founder for first negotiation
on laptop rclated Fuel Cell joint development and "Charging Kiosks" joint development
programs in China.

ASPECT and Tenzor MA. Wce have cstablished a program for the commercialization of the
24/7 Powcr Pack in Russia with ASPECT (the Association for Advanced Technologies of
Russia) and Tenzor MA, two Russian business groups. The milestone-based program
includes the certification, marketing and distribution of the 24/7 Power Pack in Russia, and
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finally, the establishment of a full production assembly capability by Tenzor MA for the
Russian market. Depending on the successful achievement of various commercialization
milestones, the program contemplates the funding of capital investment by the Russian
groups to build an automated production line in Russia.

Israel Aerospace Industries Ltd. We have entered into an agreement with Isracl Acrospace
Industrics Ltd. (formerly know as Isracl Aircraft Industries Ltd.), Israel’s largest acrospace
company and our largest stockholder, to develop an 800 watt fuel cell to electrically power
Isracl Aerospace’s Unmanned Air Vehicle systems. The first phasc provided for us to
develop a demonstration system which would pass functionality tests and which can be
demonstrated to be redesignable to achicve the weight (6 kilograms} goals of the final
systcm. The first phase, which has been completed by the Company, was funded by Israel
Aecrospacc at a cost of $400,000.

We intend to grow the demand for our fuel celi products by:

«  further strengthening strategic relationships with major OEMs, mobile providers, key
cnterprise clients, and other distributors to accelerate commercialization;

expanding manufacturing facilities systematically;

continuing to improve performance, cost and size of our existing 24/7 Power Pack through
technological improvements, optimized production processes, and improved supplier
agreements;

+ developing next generation products for laptop computers, military applications, and the
residential backup and server markets; and

entering into arrangements with third parties to leverage such third parties as a source of
expertise and funding to create new manufacturing facilities and open up new markets for our
products.

Competition

We expect our fucl cell products to compete against other fuel cell developers as well as against
other advanced battery technologies and battery chargers. Our primary direct competitors are companies
developing small fuel cells for the portable electronics market. Mechanical Technology Inc., which had
been working with a number of scientists formerly with the Los Alamos National Laboratory, has
licensed certain fuel cell technology from Los Alamos National Laboratory to further its efforts to
develop direct methanol fuel cells, and has announced that it is working with Samsung Electronics Co.,
Ltd. to develop next-generation fuel cell prototypes for Samsung’s mobile phone business. Lawrence
Livermore National Laboratory had also announced that it is developing small fucl cells for portable
clectronic devices. Other companies that have announced that they are developing fuel cells for portable
clectronic devices are NTT DoCoMo, Inc. PolyFuel, Inc., Angstrom Power, Tekion Inc, Millennium Celi,
Inc., Neah Power Systems, Inc,. Motorola, and Smart Fuel Cell AG. We believe other large cell phone
and portable electronic device companies are also developing fuel cells for the portable electronics
market. Some of such companics providing public information about their fuel cell development
programs in¢lude Toshiba Corporation, NEC Corporation, Hitachi, Lid., Casio Computer Co. Ltd.,
Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd. and Sony Corporation. Furthermore, a large number of corporations,
national laboratories and universities in the United States, Canada, Europe, Japan and elsewhcere are
actively engaged in the development and manufacture of power sources, including batteries and fuel cells,
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both for portable clectronic devices and other uscs, and many more are entering the markets in which we
compete. Each of these competitors has the potential to capture market sharc in various markets, which
would have a material adverse cffect on our position in the industry and our financial results.

In addition, there arc other fuel cell companies focusing on different markets than the portable
electronic device market that we arc currently targeting. These companics, including Plug Power Inc., and
Fuel Cell Energy Inc., are not primarily targeting the portable electronics market, although at any time
these companics could introduce new products in the portable electronic device market. Ballard Power
Inc., a recognized leader in PEM fucl cell technology, has announced that it is developing a direct
methanol fuel cell for transportation and for portable applications, however, we do not know if this is
intendcd for the portable clectronic device market.

Additionally, we expect to compete with companies that develop, manufacture, and sell battery-
operated chargers for portable electronic devices, including alkaline batteries, lithium batiery packages
and zinc-air batterics offered as chargers for cell phones, PDAs and other portable clectronic devices that
target many of the same markets we intend to target with our 24/7 Power Pack. Recently, Energizer has
begun marketing a product called “Energi-to Go™ which uses double A lithium batteries and charges a
number of portable devices. Duracell has also announced that it is entering that market with a similar
product. These companies have compelling advantages of brand recognition, advertising capability and
allocation of retail shelf space. Although we belicve that our 24/7 Power Pack has advantages over these
battery chargers, there is no assurance that we can compete against them successfully.

We also expect indirect competition from battery manufacturers who utilize existing battery
technologies (both rechargeable and non-rechargeable). Existing battery technologies have the significant
advantage of having commercially available products today, and are backed by companies who are
continuously investing in marketing and further research and development to improve their existing
products and to explore alternative technologics. Chip manufacturers, like Intel, are continuing efforts to
develop chips for portable devices that work more efficiently and require less power.

We cxpect competition to intensify greatly as the need for new energy alticrnatives becomes more
apparent and continues to increase. Some of our competitors arc well established and have substantially
greater managerial, technical, financial, marketing and product development resources. There can also be
no assurance that current and futurc competitors will not be more successful in the markets in which we
compete than we have becn, or will be in the future. There can be no assurance that we will be successful
in such a competitive environment,

We expect our fuel cell products to compete on the bases of size and weight, length of operating
time, flexibility of use on different portable devices, case of use and cost.

Cell Kinetics - CKChip™

Through Cell Kinetics, we are seeking to commercially exploit an improved Cell Carrier under
the CKChip™ product line. This unique CKChip™ can accommodate up to 10,000 cells, each in
individual wells, for measuring reactions of living cells whilc the cells are in a static state for a
considerably long period of time. Our CKChip™ is a platform static cytometry technology that enables
the simultancous examination of many individual live cells using simplc imaging methods such as
fluorescence microscopy. Whereas until now cells were fixed and stained for microscopic examination,
broken down for examination of their contents, or held alive in groups on micro-plates, the CKChip™
will enable the dispersion of a group of living cclls, each into its own micro-well for individual scrutiny
over prolonged periods of time. We belicve that our proprietary CKChip™ platform will address the neced
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for cell-based assays that are simple to use, providing continuous recording of ccllular activitics with high
sensitivity, reliability and medium to high throughput screening.

Monitoring of cells held on the CKChip™ is performed by means of fluorescence emission
detected microscopically, using an upright or inverted microscope, in conjunction with commen imaging
softwarc. As fluorescence imaging microscopes are common in most life science and medical

laboratories, anyone intercsted in using the CKChip™ may be ablc to do so without having to invest in
purchasing a monitoring device.

Advantages of the CKChip™

We believe the CKChip™ has the following distinct advantages over other cytometric
technologices:

. ability to capture and register living cells at specific addresscs;
. ability to monitor identifiable individual cells and rare events;
. ability to repcatedly monitor cells for acquisition of kinctic data;

. simultancous and scquential monitoring of up to 10,000 cells by conventional imaging
microscopy;

. enables characterization of specific cclls within a heterogencous cell population;
. manipulation and analysis of adherent and non-adherent living cclis;
. adding and rinsing reagents {rom living cells under observation; and
. savings in the cost of recagents.
Potential CKChip™ Applications

Advances in cell biology and medical rescarch are driving the growing necd for technologies that
enable the examination of dynamic molccular and physiological processes in individual living cells over
cxtended periods of time.

Scientists today recognize that in order to advance the understanding of biological processes and
to carry out tests on them, it is necessary to integrate separate functions into one complex modulus. The
smallcst living unit, the cell, plays a central role as a functional system model for such tests. We believe
that detailed quantitative understanding of single cell functions and integration of various aspects of
cellular events become important tools for cell function analysis.

We belicve that the CKChip™ technology could be used for research purposes in various
scicntific ficlds including:

. immunology;
. ccll Biology;

. genetic enginecring;



. systcms biology;

« stem cell research;

« cancer rescarch; and
. drug discovery.

We also intend to source, vet and invest in early stage Isracli-based medical device companies
and/or technologics. We will scek to build value for our shareholders through building valug in our
partner companies, i.c., those companies in which we will invest, by assembling and making available to
our partner companics at no coslt to them an array of strategic, operational, financial and managerial
resources to enable them to primarily focus their cfforts upon technological innovation, product
development and timely attainment of predetermined milestones for committed follow-on financing rather
than having to devote limited personnel and resources to addressing managerial burdens and repeatedly
pursuing diverse funding sources. Our first partner company is Scorpion Surgical Technologies, Ltd., a
start-up company in the ficld of orthopedic surgical instrumentation, with particular emphasis upon spinal
stabilization systems. Scorpion’s technology is intended to enhance implant stability, increase implant
strength as well as resistance to pull-out, and improve bone implant interaction,

Cell Kinetics is a forcign private issuer registered under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. As such, Cell Kinetics is required to file an Annual Report on Form 20-F and 10 make other
periodic filings with the SEC.

Qur Other Technologies
In cvaluating commercial potential and in allocating our limited resources of personnel and funds

we have decided to limit our development and commercialization cfforts at this time to our fucl cells, ccll
carricr, and to the building of a medical device incubator,
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Research And Development

Our research and development programs are generally pursued by scientists employed by us in
Isract on a full-time basis or hired as per diem consultants. Most of the scientists working in the fuel ccll
field are from the former Soviet Union. We are also working with subcontractors in developing specific
components and/or processes for use in our technologics.

The primary objectives of our research and development programs are to advance the
development of our direct liquid fuel cell technology, including next gencration fuel cell products, and to
cnhance the commercial value of our products and technology, as well as to continue the development of
our Cell Carrier technology and CKChip™ products.

We have incurred research and development costs of approximately $12,144,000, $18,057,000
and $25,705,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Government Regulation

Currently, the only regulations we encounter are the regulations that are common to all
businesses, such as cmployment legislation, implicd warranty faws, and environmental, health and safcty
standards, in the United States, Israel and Ircland, in each case, to the extent applicable. We also expect to
encounter in the future industry-specific government regulations that would govern our fuel cell products,




such as transportation, performance, safety, and environmental regulations for each region in which we
would seek to scll or transport our products, as well as regulations that would govern our other
technologics, if and when developed for commercial use. It may become the case that other regulatory
approvals will be required for the design and manufacture of our fuel cells and the use of our proprictary
fucl, and other components of the fuel cell such as the electrolyte. Furthermore, we must obtain from the
State of Isracl and Ircland permits to work with certain chemicals used to make our fuel cells. To the
extent that there are delays in gaining regulatory approval, our development and growth may be
materially affected.

Intellectual Property

As mentioned above, we have been issued nine United States patents relating to our fucl ccell
technologies, four of which pertain to our liquid fuel. Furthermore, we have scveral other patents pending
and we continue to preparc new patent applications in the United States with respect to various aspects of
our fuel cell technology, including our fucl, electrodes, cartridge system, power management system and
fuel cells.

Corresponding applications have been filed or are intended to be filed under the Patent
Cooperation Treaty, which allows us limited protection in member countrics for periods ranging from 20-
30 months from the initial filing date, during which time patent applications can be filed in such
countrics. Patents have been issued in ten foreign countries and applications have been filed in 24 forcign
countries-(including Europe, Japan, China, Korea, Russia and India). Patent applications filed in foreign
countries are subject to laws, rules and procedures which differ from those of the United States, and even
if foreign patent applications issue, some foreign countrics provide significantly less patent protection
than the United States.

Cell Kinetics, as the successor to Medis El’s CellScan and Cell Carrier busingss, is the exclusive
worldwide licensee of Bar-llan University’s proprietary rights relating to the CellScan, We were required
to pay Bar-llan a royalty through 2005 at the rate of 6.5% of proceeds of sales, after deducting sales
commissions and other customary charges, and 4.5% of any fees reccived on account of the grant of
territorial rights, and for the ensuing ten years a royalty of 3.5% of all revenues, whether from sales or
fees. In addition, wc are required to pay $100,000 to Bar-llan during the first year in which our post-tax
profits relating to the CellScan exceed $300,000. The license contains provisions relating to the joint
protection of the licensed patent rights and other provisions customary in such instruments. We do not
believe that Bar Ilan’s patent rights with respect to the CellScan, which have been assigned to Cell
Kinetics by Medis El, will be of material value to us in our future efforts to commercialize and protect our
CellScan and our Cell Carrier technology as the underlying patents and attendant proprietary rights have
cither expired or will shortly expire by their respective terms.

Cell Kinetics holds a U.S. patent relating 1o its Cell Carrier and has filed and continucs to file
patent applications for its new Cell Carrier development. Cell Kinetics, as assignee of Mcdis El, also has a
pending patent application in Europe and Japan. Cell Kinetics has also filed an application under the
Patent Cooperation Treaty to seek proprietary protection for that technology in Europe. Furthermore, two
additional provisional patents applications covering unique features rclated to the Cell Carrier technology
have been submitted, thereby affording Cell Kinetics up to an additional 12 months from the submission
date to apply for patent protection in the United States.

We also have filed patent applications and have been granted a number of patents relating to our
other technologics.



In addition to patent protection, we rely on the laws of unfair competition and trade secrets to
protect our licensed or proprietary rights. We attempt to protect our trade secrets and other proprietary
information through agreements with our collaborators, through confidentiality agreements with
employces, consultants, potential joint ventures and licensees and through other security measures.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, in addition to our chicf cxecutive officer and our chief operating
officer, we had 167 full time employceces, of which approximately 98 were enginceers, scientists and
degreed professionals, 43 were technical, administrative and manufacturing support personnel and 26
were production employecs. There are also approximately 12 engineers, scientists, degreed professionals
and other personnel who work with us as consultants in rescarching and developing and marketing our
technologics and products. All such employces and consultants are in Isracl, except for our chief
executive officer, our chief operating officer, vice president of marketing and a sales and marketing
assistant. We consider relations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
We have incurred losses and anticipate continued losses and negative cash flow.

We have generated net losses since inception and expect lo continue to incur nct losses and
generate negative cash flow until we can produce sufficient revenucs to cover our costs through the
production and sale of our 24/7 Power Packs and other anticipated fuel cell products.

We incurred nct losses of approximately $18,550,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2003, approximatcly $33,047,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 and approximately
$38,200,000 for the fiscal ycar ended December 31, 2007, Our inability to become profitable may force
us to curtail or temporarily discontinue our research and development programs and our day-to-day
operations. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that profitability, if achicved, can be sustained on an
ongoing basis. As of December 31, 2007, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $219,106,000.
We may continue to generate nct losses for the foresceable future and cannot predict when we will
achieve profitability, if cver.

A commercially acceptable market for our fuel cell products may never develop or may take longer
to develop than we anticipate.

Although we have developed our business plans assuming a large consumer demand for our 24/7
Power Pack and future generations of our fuel cell products, as well as military demand, a commercially
acceptable market may never develop for our fucl cell products or any of our other technologics, or may
develop more slowly than we anticipate. Our fucl cell products represent a new market product, and we
do not know with certainty to what extent, if any, end-users will want to purchase and use them. The
development of a commercially acceptable market for our fucl cell products may be affected by many
factors, some of which are out of our control, including:

. the level to which the capabilities of our 24/7 Power Pack, and any other of our fuel cell
preducts, have advanced in performance, shelf-life, stand-by time, time of use, size, weight,

cost and other factors that determine consumer acceptance;

. the emergence of newer, more competitive technologics and products;




. improvements to existing technologies, including existing rechargeable battery tcchnology or
the chips used in the electronic devices that allow the batteries to operate more cfficiently or
allow the devices to run for longer periods of time;

. the future cost of sodium or potassium borohydrides, alkalines, glycerol, or any other
hydrogen-based fuels, the catalysts used in our fuel cell products which may require costly
metals or other chemicais used for powering our fuel cell products and plastics and nickel
used in the products;

. rcgulations that affect or limit the usc of the components in our fuel cells or our fuel cclls in
gencral or regulations regarding recycling;

. consumer perceptions of the safcty of our products; and
. consurmner rejuctance to try a new product.

If a mass market fails to develop or develops more stowly than we anticipate, we may be unable
to recover the losses we will have incurred in the development of our products and may never achieve
profitability.

We may not meet our product development and commercialization milestones and time tables.

We establish milestoncs and time tables based upon our expectations regarding our technologies,
plans and programs at that time, which wc use to assess our progress toward developing and delivering
into the market place commercially acceptable fuel cell products. These milestones relate to technology
and design improvements as well as to dates for achieving production and marketing goals. If our
products exhibit technical defects or are unable to meet cost or performance goals, including levels and
stability of powcr output for our 24/7 Power Pack, useful life and reliability or if our production goals
cannot be achicved in time or the costs exceed our expectations, our commercialization schedule could be
delayed and third parties who arc collaborating with us to manufacture or market our fuel cell products
may decline to continuc that collaboration. Furthermorc, potential purchasers of our initial commereial
products may lose interest or may opt to purchasc alternative technologies.

We can give no assurance that our commercialization schedule — including production and salcs
time tables — will be met as we further develop, produce and sell our fuel cell products, or any of our
other technologics or products.

We may be unsuccessful in developing additional fuel cell products or future generations of our
24/7 Power Pack or any of our other technologies.

In tandem with the commercialization of our first product — our 24/7 Power Pack, we are
developing other fuel ccll products as well as future generations of our 24/7 Power Pack, including a solid
fuel, refuclable Power Pack product and specialized products for military use. Developing any technology
into a marketable product that a consumer will desire to purchase is a risky, time consuming and
expensive process. We may cncounter sctbacks or discrepancies requiring time consuming and costly
redesigns and changes. There also is the possibility of outright failurc. Furthcrmore, we contemplate
moving forward with the development of certain of our fuel cell technologies only if we arc able to find
strategic investors or other joint venture partners. Additionally, we continue to seek to improve our 24/7
Power Pack and our fucl cell technologics in gencral, particularly in the areas of energy capacity, powcer
density, operating time, shelf life, working life and flexibility of use, as well as the temperature conditions
under which they can operate. We also seek to reduce the component costs and costs of the final product,
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and continue to seck to improve its power management system and cach clement of the powcer
management system. We can give no assurance that we will be successful in improving our tcchnologics
or reducing costs. Generally, we can give no assurance as to when or whether we will successfully
develop any of our other planned fuel cell products or any of our other technologics into commercially
successful products.

We have no experience manufacturing our products on a large scale commercial basis.

Until recently, we manufactured a limited number of our fuet cell products on our semi-
automated production line at our facility in Lod, Isracl. We have now shifted our manufacturing efforts to
our fully automated production line located at the facilities of our contract manufacturer, Celestica Ireland
Ltd., in Galway, Trcland. We arc coordinating the production ramp-up with our distributors’ roll-out plans
for our product and other anticipated demand, as Celestica trains personncl to operate additional shifts.
However, we have no experience in the final stages of manufacturing our fuel cell products on a high-
volume commercial basis. We can offer no assurance that either we, our contract manufacturer or any
other party we have engaged to build a fully automated line production for volume-production of our
products have developed production processes that are satisfactorily designed and sufficiently efficicnt to
provide for automatcd, low-cost manufacturing capabilities and processes to meet the quality, price,
engincering, design and production standards or production velumes required to successfully mass market
our fuel cell products. Furthermore, our manufacturing process is complicated and we rely on a number of
subcontracts for the production of various subasscmblics. Even if we or our contract manufacturer and our
subcontractors arc successful in developing such manufacturing capability and processes, we do not know
whether we or they will be timely in meeting our product commercialization schedule or the product,
production and delivery requirements of potential customers. A failure to develop such manufacturing
processcs and capabilitics or to timely mect such requirements could causc us to lose customers and could
have a material adverse cffect on our business and financial results.

Customers will be unlikely to buy our fuel cell or CKChip™ products unless we can demonstrate
that they can be produced for sale to customers and users at attractive prices.

The price of our fuel cell products and our other technologics and products is dependent largely
on matcrial and other manufacturing costs. We arc unable to offer any assurance that cithcer we or a
contract manufacturer will be able to reduce costs to a level which will allow production of a competitive
product that the consumer finds attractive or that any product produced using lower cost materials and
manufacturing proccsses will not suffer from a reduction in performance, reliability and longevity.
Furthermore, although we have cstimated a pricing structure for our fuel cell products, including
manufacturing costs and proposed sales price, we can give no assurance that these estimates will be
correct in light of any manufacturing proccss we adopt or distribution channels we use.

We have developed an estimated pricing structure for our CKChip™ that we believe would be
commercially acceptable. Howcever, we can give no assurance that potential CKChip™ customers would
respond affirmatively to our pricing structure.

We will be unable to market or sell our fuel cell or CKChip™ products if we are unsuccessful in
entering into sales agreements, arrangements, alliances, joint ventures or licensing agreements with
third parties.

As we do not have nor do we intend to develop our own broad based marketing or wide scale
manufacturing infrastructure, our ability to market, manufacture and sell our fuel cell technologies or
CKChip™ products is wholly dependent on our entry into manufacturing, sales or distributing
arrangements, saltes agreements, strategic alliances, joint ventures or licensing agreements with third
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parties possessing such capabilities. Although to date we have been successful in entering into certain of
such arrangements, we can give no assurance that in the future we will be successful in entering into
additional arrangements, alliances, joint ventures or agrecments or that the terms of which will be entirely
beneficial to us. Failure to enter into such arrangements with regard to our products could materially and
adversely affect our commercialization plans and, therefore, our business, prospects, results of operations
and financial condition.

We depend on relationships with strategic partners, and many of the terms of these relationships
are not certain.

We have entered into agrecments with strategic partners for the distribution of our 24/7 Power
Pack. The terms and conditions of many of these agreements allow for immediate termination, in part or
in whole, by the partners in their discretion, or only provide for a commitment on the part of the partners
upon the happening of certain milestone events. We can give no assurance that we will mcet any of these
milestones. Qur inability to meet any of the aforementioned milestones, or the termination of any of these
agreements by the strategic partner, could adversely affect our ability to distribute our 24/7 Power Pack to
the marketplace and, therefore, our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition,

We have entered into cooperative agreements with certain mobile operators for market testing
and introduction of our 24/7 Power Pack. We believe these relationships with mobile opcrators are
important to the continued development and commercialization of our 24/7 Power Packs and other future
fuel cell products. Generally, these agreements and relationships are subject to the risk of termination at
the discretion of the mobile operator. Further, the mobile operators arc under no obligation to purchase
any of our products. Termination of these agreements and relationships, or our failure to capitalize on
them by sclling our products to the mobile operators, could materially and adversely affect our
commercialization plans and, therefore, our business, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition. In addition, such mobile operators arc not obligated to work exclusively with us in the arca of
fuel cell or battery technologies and may thercfore cnter into similar cooperation agreements, and work
with and purchase products from our competitors. Such competition would have a material adversc effect
on our position in the industry and our financial results.

We are and will continue to be dependent on third party suppliers and subcontractors for the
supply of key materials and components for our products.

We rely upon third party suppliers and subcontractors to provide requisite materials and
componcnts, including the power management system of our 24/7 Power Pack product. A supplicr’s or
subcontractor’s failure to supply materials or components in a timely manner, or to supply matcrials and
components that meet our quality, quantity or cost requircments, or our inability to obtain substitute
sources for these materials and components in a timely manner or on terms acceptable to us, could
negatively affect our ability to manufacture our fuel cell products on a timely basis or meet our cost
targets or commercialization schedule. We or our contract manufacturers, manufacturing, stratcgic
alliance or joint venture partners may be unable to obtain comparable materials or components from
alternative suppliers, and that could adversely affect our ability to produce viable fucl cells or
significantly raise the cost of producing fuel cells or fuel cell products.

Platinum is a scarce natural resource and, to the extent it remains a component of the electrode,
we will be dependent upon a sufficient supply of this commodity at a cost that allows us to mcet our cost
targets for any future fucl cell products. Any shortages in the supply of platinum could raise our cost of
producing our fuel cell products beyond our targeted cost, thus lowering our profit margins or adverscly
affecting our ability to produce fuel cell products at a price consumers would be willing to pay.
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Problems or delays in our collaboration efforts with third parties to develop or market our fuel cell
products could hurt our reputation and the reputation of our products.

We have entered into agrecments with third parties who have agreed to assist us in developing or
marketing our fuel cell products, producing and supplying components of our fuel ccll products or
producing the manufacturing line for our fuel cell products. We are in discussions with other third parties
and may enter into similar agreements with such other parties or others in the future, of which we can
give no assurances of success. Some of these collaboration agrecements contemplate that these third
parties will work with our scientists and employees to test various aspects of, assist in developing
components of, or market, our fuel cells or fuel cell products. Such tests or development efforts may
encounter problems and delays for a number of reasons, including, without limitation, the failure of our
tecchnology, the failure of the technology of others, the failure to combine these technologics properly and
the failure to maintain and service any test prototypes properly. Many of these potential problems and
delays arc beyond our control. In addition, collaborative efforts, by their nature, often create problems due
to miscommunications and disparatc cxpectations and prioritics among the partics involved and may
result in unexpected medifications and delays in developing or marketing our fuel cell technologies or
impact the cost of making and delivering our fuc] cell products. Any such problems or perceived
problems with these collaborative efforts could hurt our reputation and the reputation of our products and
technologics.

Product liability or defects could negatively impact our results of operations.

Any liability for damages resulting from malfunctions or design defects could be substantial and
could matcerially adversely affect our busincss, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In
addition, a well publicized actual or perceived problem could adverscly affect the market’s perception of
our products, resuiting in a decline in demand for our products and could divert the attention of our
management, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

Our business depends on our intellectual property. We may not be successful in protecting our
intellectual property, which could hinder our growth and success.

We regard our patents, trade secrets, copyrights and other intcllectual property rights as essential
to our growth and success. We rcly upon a combination of patent, copyright and trademark laws, trade
secret protection, confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements and contractual provisions with
employces and with third partics to cstablish and protect our proprietary rights. We own, directly or
indirectly through subsidiarics, patents for certain technologies and are currently applying for additional
patents. We can offer no assurance that we will succeed in receiving patent and other proprietary
protcction in all markets we enter, or, if successful, that such protection will be sufficient. If we
successfully develop and market our fuel cells or any of our other technologics, we expect to face cfforts
by larger companics and other organizations or authoritics to undermine our patents by challenging or
copying our intcllectual property. Morcover, intellectual property rights are not protected in certain parts
of the world. We intend to vigorously defend our material intcllectual property against any challenges that
may arise. However, any infringement action initiated by us may be very costly and require the diversion
of substantial funds from our operations and may require management to expend cfforts that might
otherwise be devoted to our operations.




Claims by third parties that our technology infringes upon their patents may, if successful, prevent
us from further developing or selling our technologies.

Although we do not believe our business activities infringe upon the rights of others, nor arc we
awarc of any pending or contemplated actions to such effect, we can give no assurance that our business
activitics will not infringe upon the proprictary rights of others, or that other partics will not asscrt
infringement claims against us.

We currently face and will continue to face significant competition.

We expect our fuel cell products to compete against other fuel cell developers as well as against
other advanced battery technologics and battery chargers. Our primary direct competitors are companies
developing small fuet cells for the portable electronics market. Mechanical Technology Inc., which had
been working with a number of scicntists formerly with the Los Alamos National Laboratory, has
licensed certain fuel cell technology from Los Alamos National Laboratory to further its cfforts to
develop direct methanol fuel cells, and has announced that it is working with Samsung Elcctronics Co.,
Ltd. to develop next-generation fuel cell prototypes for Samsung’s mobile phone business. Lawrence
Livermore National Laboratory had also announced that it is developing small fuel cells for portable
clectronic devices. Other companies that have announced that they are developing fuel cells for portable
electronic devices are NTT DoCoMo, Inc. PolyFuel, Inc., Angstrom Power, Tekion Inc., Millennium
Cell, Inc., Neah Power Systems, Inc,. Motorola and Smart Fuel Cell AG. We belicve other large ccll
phone and portable clectronic device companics are also developing fuel cells for the portable electronics
market. Some of the companies providing public information about their fuel celt development programs
include Toshiba Corporation, NEC Corporation, Hitachi, Ltd., Casio Computer Co. Ltd., Samsung
Electronics Co. Ltd. and Sony Corporation. Furthermore, a large number of corporations, national
laboratorics and universities in the United States, Canada, Europe, Japan and clscwhere are actively
engaged in the development and manufacture of power sources, including batterics and fuel cells, both for
portable clectronic devices and other uses, and many morc are entering the markets in which we compete.
Each of these competitors has the potential to capture market share in various markets, which could have
a malcrial adverse effect on our position in the industry and our financial results.

In addition, there are other fuel cell companics focusing on different markets than the portable
clectronic device market that we are initially targeting. These companices, including Plug Power Inc. and
Fucl Cell Encrgy Inc., are not primarily targeting the portable clectronics market, although at any time
thesc companies could introduce new products in the portable electronic device market. Ballard Power
Inc., a recognized leader in PEM fuel cell technology, has announced that it is developing a direct
mcthanol fuel ccll for transportation and portable applications, however, we do not know if this is
intended for the portable clectronic device market.

Additionally, we expect to compcete with companies that develop, manufacture, and scll battery-
operated chargers for portable electronic devices, including alkaline batteries, lithium battery packages
and zinc-air battcries offercd as chargers for cell phones, PDAs and other portable clectronic devices that
target many of the same markets we intend to target with our 24/7 Power Pack. Recently, Encrgizer has
begun marketing a product called “Energi-to Go” which uses double A lithium batteries and charges a
number of portable devices. Duracell has also announced that it is entering that markct with a similar
product. These companies have compelling advantages of brand recognition, advertising capability and
allocation of retail shelf space. Although we believe that our 24/7 Power Pack has advantages over these
battery chargers, there is no assurance that we can compete against them successfully.

We also cxpect indirect competition from battery manufacturers who utilize existing battery
technologics (both rechargeable and non-rechargeable). Existing battery technologies have the significant
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advantage of having commercially available products today and are backed by companies who are
continuously investing in marketing and further rescarch and development to improve their existing
products and cxplore alternative technologics. Chip manufacturers, like Intel, arc continuing cfforts to
develop chips for portable devices that work more efficiently and require less power.

We expect competition to intensify greatly as the need for new encrgy alternatives becomes more
apparent and continucs to increase. Some of our competitors arc well cstablished and have substantially
greater managerial, technical, financial, marketing and product development resources. There can also be
no assurance that current and future competitors will not be more successful in the markets in which we
compete than we have been, or will be in the future. There can be no assurance that we will be successful
in such a competitive cnvironment.

We may need additional funding in order to complete the commercialization of our 24/7 Power
Pack, to be competitive, to establish a stronger financial position and to continue our operations.

Since inception, we have incurred operating losses and have used cash in our operations, We have
rclied principally on the sale of our securitics to fund our rescarch and development activitics and
operations. Unless we are able to successfully market our 24/7 Power Pack or any of our other
technologies and products, we believe this dependence will continue. We may need additional funding in
order to successfully market our 24/7 Power Pack, to be competitive, to cstablish a stronger financial
position and to continue our operations. In addition, we may need additional funding if cost overruns
rclating to thc implementation of our manufacturing lines occur, if our suppliers requirc us to providc
additional funding, if we do not achicve our current commercialization targets, or if we determine to
expend additional funds on marketing and advertising our 24/7 Power Pack or other products. We can
offer no assurance that we will be able to sccure additional funding, or funding on terms acceptable to us,
to mect our financial obligations, if nccessary, or that a third party will be willing to make such funds
available. Our failure to raisc additional funds could require us to delay or curtail our marketing and
production programs and rescarch and product development cfforts. Additionally, our failure to
successfully develop or market our fuel cell products or products derived from any of our other
technologies may matcrially adverscly affect our ability to raise additional funds. In any event, it is not
possible to make any rcliable estimate of the funds required to complete the development of any of our
other technologies or successfully market and produce our fucel cell products.

Our business depends on key members of our management. If we were to lose our senior technical
talent or members of senior management, our business could be adversely affected.

The success of our fuel cell program depends to a significant extent upon Gennadi Finkelshtain,
our Chief Technical Officer, and other scientists, engineers and technicians on our staff. Our success
further depends on our highly skilled and experienced management, including Robert K. Lifton, our
Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer, Howard Weingrow, our Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating
Officer, Jacob Weiss, our President and certain other officers and employees that develop and market our
products and technologies. The loss of the scrvices of Mr. Finkelshtain, or certain of our other technical
talent or of Messrs. Lifton, Weingrow and Weiss could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
develop our fuel cell products into successful commercial products or any of our other technologies into
commercial products. We possess key-person life insurance of $3,000,000 on Mr. Finkelshtain, Although
to date we have been successful in recruiting executive, managerial and technical personnel, and with
limited cxceptions we have been able to retain key personncl, we may not be able to continue to attract
and retain the qualificd personnel needed for our business. The failure to attract or retain qualified
personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business
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There may be adverse effects on our earnings and our stock price due to the large amount of
goodwill on our consolidated balance sheet.

At December 31, 2007, our consolidated balance sheet showed approximately $58,205,000 of
goodwill. Our goodwill balance is subject to a test for impairment at least annually, which could result in
a chargc to opcrations in the event impairment of the goodwill balance would be identified.

We may be affected by environmental and other governmental regulations.

Our business is subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations that govern
cnvironmental protcction and human health and safety. These laws and regulations have changed
frequently in the past and it is reasonable to expect additional and more stringent changes in the future,
Our opcrations may not be in compliance with any such future changes in laws and regulations, which
could rcquire us to make significant unanticipated capital and operating expenditures. If we fail to comply
with any such changes, we may be subject to fines and penaltics or we may have existing permits revoked
or not subject to renewal. Furthermore, private partics in such circumstances could seck damages from us.
Under any of those circumstances, we might be required to curtail or ceasc operations, conduct site
remediation or other corrective action or pay substantial damage claims.

As we begin to commercialize our 24/7 Power Pack, we and our supplicrs expect to be subject to
an increasing number of environmental regulations in Isracl, Ireland and other jurisdictions where we
develop, produce and assemble our products. Some of these regulations may require us and/or our
supplicrs to apply for and obtain permits prior to any such development, production or assembly, of
which we can give no assurance we or they can obtain at minimal cost or at all. In addition, it is possible
that industry specific laws and regulations will be adopted in any of thesc or other jurisdictions covering
matters relating to our fuel cell products or our other products. Such taws or regulations could limit the
growth of our products or increase our commercialization, manufacturing or distribution costs and,
thereforc, the price of our products so affected. Accordingly, compliance with existing or future laws and
regulations as we begin our commercialization efforts could have a material adverse effect on our
business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

We could be liable for damages resulting from the storage and use of large quantities of chemicals
during the manufacturing process of our fuel cell products.

The storage and usc of large quantities of chemicals used as components of our fuel cells could
expose us to the risk that such chemicals may cscape into the environment, resulting in damagc to natural
resources or property, or injury or loss of life. Depending on the nature of the claim, our current insurance
policics may not adequately, if at all, reimburse us for costs incurred to litigate or settle any such claims.

Our results of operations could be negatively affected by potential fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates.

A portion of our costs and expenses are denominated in foreign currencies. The principal foreign
currencies applicable to our business arc the New Israeli Shekel, the Euro and the Swiss Franc. As a
result, we have exposure to foreign currency cxchange fluctuations. Recently, the U.S. dollar has been
volatile relative to foreign currencies and frequently has been weak. Continued foreign currency
fluctuations, including a weaker U.S. dollar, could significantly harm our cash flow and results of
operations, as well as our ability to achicve and maintain profitability as we continue to grow our
busingss.




Risks associated with conducting operations in Israel could materially adversely affect our ability to
complete the development of our fuel cell technology or any of our other technologies.

Our rescarch and development facilities, certain component manufacturing and semi-automated
assembly facility for our 24/7 Power Pack, as well as somc of our exccutive offices and back-office
functions, arc located in the Statc of Isracl and we have key personnel and their familics residing in Isracl.
We are, therefore, directly affected by the political, economic and military conditions in Israel. Any major
hostilities involving Isracl or the interruption or curtailment of trade between Isracl and any other country,
whether duc to the Israeli-Palestinian conflict, conflicts with Iran, or America’s war against terrorism,
among others, could have a material adverse cffect on our ability 10 complete the development of any of
our fuel cell products, our technologics or our ability to supply our technology to contract manufacturcrs,
development partners, customers or vendors. Furthermore, any interruption or curtailment of trade
between Isracl and any other country in which we have strategic relationships could similarly adversely
affect such relationships. In addition, all male adult permanent residents of [sracl under the age of 54,
unless exempt, are obligated to perform up to 36 days of military reserve duty annually and are subject to
being called to active duty at any time under emergency circumstances, Some of our employecs are
currently obligated to perform annual reserve duty. We are unable to assess what impact, if any, these
factors may have upon our futurc operations.

In addition, historically, Isracl has suffered from high inflation and the devaluation of its
currency, the New Isracli Shekel, or NIS, compared to the U.S. dollar. Future inflation or further
dcvaluations of the NIS may have a negative impact on our NIS-based obligations over time upon
substantial price increases causcd by inflation, Similarly, a further weakening of the U.S. dollar as against
the NIS could continue to raise certain of our costs of operating in I[srael.

It may be difficult to serve process on or enforce a judgment against our Israeli officers and
directors, making it difficult to bring a successful lawsuit against us, or our officers and directors,
individually or in the aggregate.

Service of process upon our directors and officers, many of whom reside outside the United
States, may be difficult to obtain within the United States. Furthermore, any judgment obtained in the
United States against us may not be collectible within the United States to the extent our assets are located
outside the United States. This could limit the ability of our stockholders to sue us based upon an alleged
breach of duty or other cause of action. We have becn informed by our Israeli legal counsel that there is
doubt as to the enforceability of civil liabilitics under the Sccuritics Act of 1933 and the Sccuritics
Exchange Act of 1934 in original actions instituted in Isracl. However, subject to limitation, Israeli courts
may enforce United States final executory judgments for liquidated amounts in civil matters, obtained
after a trial before a court of competent jurisdiction, according to the rules of private international law
currently prevailing in Israel, which enforce similar Israeli judgments, provided that:

. due scrvice of process has been effected and the defendant was given a reasonable
opportunity to defend;

. the obligation imposed by the judgment is executionable according to the laws relating to the
enforceability of judgments in Isracl, such judgment is not contrary to public policy, security
or sovereignty of the State of Israel and such judgment is executionable in the state in which
it was given,

+ such judgments were not obtained by fraud and do not conflict with any other valid
judgments in the same manner between the same partics; and
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. anaction between the same parties in the same matter is not pending in any Isracli court at
the time the lawsuit is instituted in the foreign court.

Forcign judgments enforced by Israeli courts generally will be payable in Isracli currency, which
can then be converted into United States dollars and transferred out of Isracl. The judgment debtor may
also pay in dollars. Judgment creditors must bear the risk of unfavorable exchange rates.

We do not expect to pay dividends to holders of our common stock.

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to datc and do not anticipate declaring any
dividends on our common stock in the foresecable futurc. We are required under the certificate of
designation rclating to our Series A preferred stock to accumulate dividends to holders of our Series A
preferred stock at a rate initially equivalent to $725 per share annually. No dividends may be paid upon
our common stock unless all accumulated and unpaid dividends have been paid on the Scries A preferred
stock. Other than the payment of dividends on our Series A preferred stock, our board presently intends to
retain all earnings, if any, for use in our busincss operations.

The issuance of our common stock upon a fundamental change of our Series A preferred stock
would have a dilutive effect on the then holders of our common stock.

Upon the accurrence of a fundamental change (as defined in the certificate of designation of our
Scrics A preferred stock) holders of our Series A preferred stock will have the right to require us to
purchase all of their respective shares of our Serics A preferred stock. We will have the option to pay for
those shares cither in cash or in our common stock valued at a discount of 5% from the market price of
our common stock. The issuance of our common stock at a discount to the market price of our common
stock would have a dilutive effect on the then holders of our common stock.

The right of holders to cause us to repurchase shares of our Serics A preferred stock upon a
fundamental change may be subjcct to our obligation to repay or repurchasc any future indebtedness, such
as credit facilities or debt sccuritics.

Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock could affect the market price of our
common stock,

Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock, or sccurities convertible or
cxchangceable into shares of our common stock, into the public market, including shares of common stock
issued upon cxercisc of options or warrants or conversion of the Scries A preferred stock, or perceptions
that those salcs and/or conversions could occur, could adverscly affect the prevailing market price of our
common stock and our ability to raisc capital in the future.

Our issuance of additional common stock or preferred stock may cause our common stock price to
decline, which may negatively impact your investment.

Issuances of a substantial number of additional shares of our common or preferred stock, or the
perception that such issuances could occur, may cause prevailing market prices for our common stock to
decline. In addition, our board of directors is authorized to issue additional serics of shares of prefcrred
stock without any action on the part of our stockholders. Our board of directors also has the power,
without stockholder approval, to set the terms of any such scries of shares of preferred stock that may be
issued, including voting rights, conversion rights, dividend rights, preferences over our common stock or
our Scries A preferred stock with respect to dividends or if we liquidate, dissolve or wind up our business
and other terms. If we issue cumulative preferred stock in the future that has preference over our common
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stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or if we
issuc preferred stock with voting rights that dilute the voting power of our common stock, the market
price of our common stock could decrease.

Our stock price has been and could remain volatile.

The market price for our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile and subject to
cxtreme price and volume limitations in response to market and other factors. As the price of our common
stock on The Nasdaq Global Market constantly changcs, it is impossible to predict whether the price of
our common stock or interest rates will rise or fall, Trading prices of our common stock will be
influecnced by our operating results and prospects and by economic, financial and other factors. In
addition, general market conditions, including the Icvel of, and fluctuations in, the trading prices of stocks
generally, and sales of substantial amounts of common stock by us in the market, or the perception that
such sales could occur, could afiect the price of sharcs of our common stock..

Our investment in Cell Kinetics, our majority owned indirect subsidiary, has a number of risks
associated with it.

Our investment in Cell Kinetics, our majority owned indircct subsidiary, has a number of risks
associated with it, including, among others, the following:

. ahistory of operating losses, with no assurance of future revenues or operating profits;
. very limited manufacturing, marketing, distribution and sales capabilities;

.« compctition from both public and privatc companics and academic collaborators, many of
which have significantly greater cxperience and financial resources;

. acceptance by the life sciences rescarch and diagnostic communities is not assured;

. commercial development of its CKChip™ technology and proposed product lines is not
assured;

. an inability to manufacture, market or scll its proposcd products if it is unsuccessful in
entering into strategic alliances or joint venturces with third partics; and

. reliance on the activitics of non-cmployce consultants and research institutions, whose
activities arc not wholly within its control, may Icad to delays in development of its proposed
products.

Further, Cell Kinetics’ efforts to source, vet and invest in early stage Isracli-bascd medical device
companies give rise to additional risks including, among others:

+ insufficient cash resources to fund its partner companics or to acquire interests in more than a
limited number of partner companics;

. management may fail to identify early stage medical device companies in which to acquire
interests or to complete these acquisition transactions;

. limited experience in actively managing, opcrating or promoting medical device companies;




partner companies could make business decisions that are not in its best interests or that it
does not agree with, which could impair the value of its partner company interests; and

its business strategy may not be successful if valuations in the market sectors in which its
partner companies participate decline.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None
Item 2. Properties

We presently maintain our U.S. exccutive offices in premiscs of approximately 3,000 square feet
at 805 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 under a subleasc from the Stanoff Corporation, which
is controlled by Robert K. Lifton, our chairman and chief exccutive officer, and Howard Weingrow, our
deputy chairman and chicf operating officer. We pay approximately $100,000 for rent per year. The
sublease is on a month to month basis. In February 2007, we opened a sales office in Brentwood,
California, with an aggregate annual rental of approximately $19,000. In January 2008, we terminated the
Brentwood, California lease in accordance with its terms.

Our research laboratory and technology center, and Israel-based production facilities and
exccutive offices and back office functions are located at leased facilities of approximately 56,100 square
feet in Lod, Israel. The lease, covering approximately 44,800 squarc feet of such facilitics expire on
November 30, 2009 with two rencwal options, cach for 30 months, which, if excrcised, would extend the
rental term to November 30, 2014. The lease covering approximately 2,600 square feet will expire on
October 31, 2008. The lease covering 3,800 square feet will expire on February 28, 2009. The lease
covering approximately 4,900 square fect expires on April 10, 2010. Annual payments for rent under such
lcases aggregate approximately $827,000, including landlord leaschold incentives which are rccorded as
depreciation expensc rather than rent. We belicve that our facilities are adequate for our present purposes;
however, our futurc anticipated growth could require us to seck additional or new facilitics.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On April 23, 2007, a putative class action styled Gou Kou, ct al v. Medis Technologies Ltd., et
al., 07 CV 3230 (S.D.N.Y.) (PAC), was initiated against the Company and its CEQO, among others,
Thereafter, on September 10, 2007, Plaintiffs filed the First Amended Class Action Complaint (the
“Amended Complaint”). The Amended Complaint essentially alleges that defendants violated Sections
10(b) and 20(a) of thc Sccuritics Exchange Act of 1934 by issuing a falsc and misleading press release on
April 13, 2007 (the “April 13 Press Release™), stating that Medis had begun “commercial sales” of
“Microsoft-Branded” PowerPacks to Microsoft. The announcement is alleged to have caused a temporary
fluctuation in the stock price, causing the stock to trade from $18.29 to as high as $24.10 per share before
closing at $20.32 per sharc. Plaintiffs allege that the April 13 Press Releasc was misleading because it
failed to specifically state that the sale to Microsoft was for a small quantity and that Microsoft intended
to use the PowerPacks as giveaways. Moreover, plaintiffs allege, the units were not Microsoft branded.
However, the April 13 Press Release explicitly conveyed the landmark importance of the sale to the
Company and the fuel cell industry, and the Company has vigorously denied any allegations of
wrongdoing, standing by the truth of its April 13 Press Release. Plaintiffs’ putative class includes those
who “purchased the common stock, call options, and/or sold put options of Medis for the time period
April 13, 2007 through April 17, 2007.”
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Discovery was stayed as per the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act, and on November 20,
2007, defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint (the “Motion to Dismiss”), arguing
that the First Amended Complaint failed as a matter of law because it did not allege “scienter,” i.e., that
defendants acted with a culpable intent. Defendants argued, among other things, that plaintiffs could not
allcge any reason why the defendants would seck to temporarily inflate the Company’s stock price.
Plaintiffs opposcd the Motion to Dismiss on January 28, 2008, arguing, among other things, that scienter
was properly pled because defendants knew or should have known that they were misrepresenting
material facts. Plaintiffs further asked the Court for permission to cross move to strike certain exhibits
rclicd on by defendants and to convert the Motion to Dismiss into one for summary judgment, lifting the
stay of discovery. The Court denied Plaintiffs’ request, stating that it would consider those issucs in due
course when it ruled on the Motion to Dismiss. Defendants' reply papers on the Motion to Dismiss are
due Apnl 10, 2008.

The Company believes that the Amended Complaint is without merit and intends to continue to
defend the action vigorously.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of securityholders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockhelder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock has traded on The Nasdaq Globa! Market under the symbol “MDTL” since
October 3, 2000. The closing high and low sales prices of our common stock, as reporied by the Nasdaq
Global Market, for the quarters indicated arc as follows:

High Low
2006:
First Quartcr £24.33 S15.14
Second Quarter 35.71 18.52
Third Quarter 24.88 18.60
Fourth Quarter 30.49 17.39
2007:
First Quarter $18.52 $12.89
Second Quarter 20.32 11.80
Third Quarter 14.97 9.60
Fourth Quarter 15.96 11.58

As of March 10, 2008, there were approximately 402 stockholders of record of our common
stock. Such number docs not include beneficial owners holding shares through nomince names.

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our common stock. Dividends on our 7.25%
Series A cumulative convertible perpetual preferred stock are payable when, as and if declarcd by our
board of dircctors, out of legally available funds. The annual cash dividend on cach share of our Series A
preferred stock is $725 and is payable quarterly, in arrcars, commencing on February 15, 2007, As of
March 12, 2008, there were 5,750 Series A preferred shares outstanding. Other than the payment of
dividends on our Scrics A preferred stock, we currently anticipate that we will retain all of our future
eamings for use in the expansion and operation of our business. Thus, we do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Our future dividend policy will be
determined by our board of directors and will depend on various factors, including our results of
operations, financial condition, capital requircments and investment opportunities. In addition, the terms
of our Serics A preferred stock restrict our ability to pay dividends on our common stock if there are any
accumulated and unpaid dividends on our Series A preferred stock.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2004 and the sclected consolidated balance shect data as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 have
been derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this annual report. The
selected consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and
2007 and the sclected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 have been
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report. Such
consolidated financial statements include the financial statcments of all of our dircct and indirect
subsidiaries. The data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the
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notes to such statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” included elsewhere in this annual report.

Statement of Operations Data:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
REVENUES 1ooviviininiiirniee ot esniemmenens B 131,000 3 — 3 425,000 £ 150,000 g 400,000
Cost 0f TEVENUCS ..vecvverrecrris et si s 46,000 — 262,000 98,000 249,000
Gross profit.... e 85.000 — 163.000 52,000 151,000
Operating ¢xpenses:
Research and development costs,
TLEL ottt 4,804,000 9,799,000 12,144,000 18,057,000 25,705,000
Sclling, marketing, general and
administralive CXpenses.. ... 4,197,000 5,829,000 5,720,000 7,579,000 13,541,000
Amortization of intangible asscts .. 997,000 208,000 208,000 208,000 208,000
Total operating cXpenses ........... 9,998,000 15,836,000 18,072,000 25,844,000 39,454,000
Loss from operations ......c..ovvserrene: (9,913,000) {15,836,000) {17,909,000) (25,792,000) {39,303,000)
Other income {cxpenscs):
Interest and other iNCOME.....o.ociveiiircnnene 131,000 246,000 973,000 2,517,000 2,331,000
INECEEST EXPEISCorinntieriiere v vvesserineas (55.000) (72,000) {1,614,000) (9,772,000) (1,228,000)
INELTOES el (9.837.000} {15,662.000) (18,550,000) (33,047,000 (38,200,000)
Value of warrants issued or extended . (1,226,000} (2,066,000) — — —
Dividend on preferred stock ..., — -— — — 4,128,000

Net loss attributabic to common
stockholders ..o, s $ (11,063,000)

$ (17,728,000)

$ (18,550,000) $ (33.047,000)

$ (42,328,000

Basic and diluted net loss per share 3 {0.47) $ (0.68) $ {0.68) $ (1.08) S (1.26)
Weighted average number of
common shares used in
computing basic and diluted net
1088 PET SHAIC oo 23,429,829 26,142,150 27,423,568 30,916,848 33,554,298
Balance Sheet Data:
As of December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Working capital{ 1} .......cocoevreennererciecenn: $ 5870000 S 12,721,000 $ 46,401,000 $ 78.647.000 $ 27725000
Tota) ASSELS et e 68,451,000 79,773,000 120,400,000 177,608,000 157,233,000
(107,453,000) (125,181,000 £143,731,000) (176,778,000) (219,106,000)
65,977,000 73,863,000 65,377,000 110,436,000 91,751,000
N Working capital is total current assets less total current liabilities.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations

Introduction

We design, develop and market innovative liquid fuel cell products principally for the mobile
handset and portable consumer electronics markets. Our first commercial product is our *“24/7 Power
Pack’” - a small, inexpensive and disposable power source capable of providing direct power or multiple
recharges to many of the most advanced portable electronic devices, such as mobile handsets, smart
phones, MP3 players, gaming and other handheld electronic devices. We believe that the 24/7 Power Pack
is the world’s first commercially viable portable fuel cell solution for the consurncr market and represents
a significant technological achievement in the advancement of the global fucl cell industry. A fucl ccll is
an electro-chemical device that through a chemical reaction, converts the chemical energy of a fuel, such
as hydrogen, methanol, or our patented borohydride based fuel into electrical encrgy. Through Cell
Kinetics Ltd., our indirect, majority-owned subsidiary, we are also sceking to exploit commercially what
we believe to be an ever-increasing need to study individual live cells through the development,
marketing and sale of an improved Cell Carrier under the CKChip™ product linc. This unique CKChip™
can accommodate up to 10,000 cells, each in individual wells, for measuring reactions of living cells
while the cells are in a static state for a considerably long period of time.

Results Of Operations

From our inception in April 1992 through December 31, 2007, we have generated an accumulated
deficit of approximately $219,106,000 including approximately $44,167,000 from amortization expense.
We expect to incur additional operating losses during 2008 and possibly thercafter, principally as a result
of our continuing anticipated research and development costs, increases in selling, marketing, general and
administrative expenses related to the introduction of our products, cost related to commercialization of
our fuel cell products, costs related ramping-up production on our fully automated production line and the
uncertainty of bringing our fuel cell technology or any of our other technologies to commcrcial success.

Since our inception, we have relied principally on outside sources of funding to finance our
operations, as our revenucs have been minimal. In November and December 2007, pursuant to a
November 26, 2007 cquity distribution agreement with an investment banker, we sold an aggrcgatc of
1,314,198 sharcs of our common stock for procceds of approximately $17,692,000, less issuance costs
aggregating approximately $871,000. Additionally, from January 1 through March 14, 2008, we sold an
additional 929,685 shares of our common stock, pursuant to the agrcement, bringing the aggregate
procecds through March 14, 2008 to approximately $28,894,000 less issuancc costs aggregating
approximately $1,208,000. In November and December 2006, we issued an aggregate of 5,750 shares of
our 7.25% Scries A cumulative convertible perpetual preferred stock at a price of $10,000 per share for
gross proceeds of $57,500,000, less issuance costs of approximately $3,910,000. Additionally, in July and
August 2005, we issued $49,000,000 aggregate principal amount of our 6% senior convertible notes due
July 2010, tess issuance costs of approximately $3,159,000. The convertible notes werc exchanged for
shares of our common stock in April and May 2006 (sce discussion below).

Although we have received purchase orders for our Power Pack product which together provide
for large scale delivery during our first two years of product availability, we will not derive any revenues
under the purchase orders unless and until we commence large-scale manufacturing of our first fuel cell
product, Qur fully automatcd production line located at the facilities of our contract manufacturer,
Celestica Ircland Ltd., in Galway, Ireland has begun production. We are coordinating the production
ramp-up with our distributors’ roli-out plans for our product and other anticipated demand, as Celestica
trains personnel to operate additional shifts. Wec expect our reliance on outside sources of funding to

32




continue until we are able to successfully commercialize our fuel cell or any of our other products or
technologices, of which we can give no assurance.

Our research and development costs have increased from approximately $2,749,000 for the ycar
ended December 31, 1999 to approximately $25,705,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, as we
have continued to devote greater efforts to develop and advance the technology underlying, and to
commercialize the products incorporating, our fucl cclls; however, if we arc unable to successfully
commercialize our fuel cell technology or any of our other technologics, we will be forced to curtail our
spending levels until such time, if cver, as we generate significant revenucs or otherwise receive funds
from third party sourccs.

Year ended December 31, 2007 compared to year ended December 31, 2006

We sustained a net loss of $38,200,000 during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to
$33,047,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in the net loss can be primarily
attributed to incrcases during the year ended December 31, 2007 in rescarch and development costs,
principally due to increased funding of our fucl cell-related cfforts as we moved towards
commercialization of our fucl cell products, and increased selling, marketing, gencral and administrative
cxpenses, as more fully described below. These factors were partially offset by a decrease in interest
cxpense due principally to charges aggregating $8,491,000 that we recorded during the year ended
Deccmber 31, 2006 in connection with the April and May 2006 cxchanges of our common stock for our
then outstanding convertible notes. As we continue to commercialize and market our fuel cell products
and work to devclop new products, we expect that we will continue to devote significant resources in the
areas of capital expenditures and research and development costs for our fuel cell products, as well as
selling, marketing, general and administrative expenscs.

Research and development costs amounted to $25,705,000 during the year ended December 31,
2007 compared to $18,057,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in 2007 can be
primarily attributed to an increase of approximately $7,644,000 in costs related to our fuel cell technologies.
The rescarch and development activitics for the periods presented include:

Fuel Cell Technologies. We incurred costs relating to our fuel cell technologies of approximatcly
$24,210,000 during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to costs of approximately
$16,566,000 during the ycar ended December 31, 2006, The increase in our research and
development costs in 2007 related to our fuel cell technologies of approximately $7,644,000
primarily reflects costs incurred in preparing our fuel cell Power Pack product for high volume
production and results from increascs in labor (including stock option cost pursuant to our adoption
of SFAS 123(R) in January 2006), materials, subcontractors and consultants, depreciation and other
costs.

Cell Kinetics —Cell Carrier (CKChip™). We incurred costs of approximately $1,230,000 during the
year ended December 31, 2007, compared to costs of approximately $1,125,000 during the year
ended December 31, 2006. Costs incurred during the year ended December 31, 2007 principally
related to improvement and modifications of our Cell Carrier design to enable its use with standard
fluorescence microscopes, as well as development and validation of specific applications to be used
with the Cell Carrier in order to cnhance introduction and commercialization of our Cell Carrier -
CKChip™ product line. Costs incurred during year ended December 31, 2006 related to the further
refinement and assembly of the desktop CellScan, various research activities (including initial steps
in modifying the Cell Carrier design to enable its usc with standard fluorescence microscopes) and
in obtaining the CE mark and moving forward with our ISO application, as well as clarifying other
regulatory requirements needed for further commercialization of our products. The increases in
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2007 can be primarily attributed to increascs in labor and related costs, depreciation and other costs,
partially offsct by decreases in material costs. In July 2007, Cell Kinetics cntered into an agrcement
with Scorpion Surgical Technologies, Ltd. to acquire a 20% aggregate interest in Scorpion for a
total investment of $150,000, of which $30,000 was paid in July 2007. Scorpion is a start-up
company in the field of orthopedic surgical instrumentation, with particular emphasis upon spinal
anchoring device and stabilization systems. The chief executive officer of Cell Kinetics is a
director and a co-founder of Scorpion.

Other R&D Activities. We have been devoting more resources to developing our fuel cell !
technologies and commercializing our fuel cell-bascd products. As a result, other than as described
above with respect to the Cell Carrier CKChip™, we have been devoting few, if any, resources to
our other technologics.

Sclling, marketing, gencral and administrative (“SG&A™) expenses during the ycar ended
Deccember 31, 2007 amounted to $13,541,000 , compared to approximately $7,579,000 during the year
ended December 31, 2006. The increases of $5,962,000 in 2007 is primarily attributablc to increase in
non-cash charges relating to the issuance of stock options, warrants and restricted stock of approximately
$3,446,000, resulting principally from our adoption of SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, incrcases in
labor and related costs of approximately $1,276,000 due principally to an increased allocation to SG&A
as our opcrations transition from primarily research and development to manufacturing, marketing and
salcs, as well as an increase in pay rates, increascs in costs of the issuance of and maintenance of patents
and legal and other professional fees of approximately $753,000, increascs in marketing costs of
approximately $346,000 increases in insurance costs of approximatcly $107,000, and net increases in |
various other SG&A cost categories of approximatcly $34,000 during the year ended December 31, 2007 |
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006.

Amortization of intangible asscts amounted to $208,000 during both the ycar ended December
31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. The amortization of intangible asscts in both periods represents the
amortization of intangible assets acquired in our March 2003 acquisition of the remaining 7% of More
Encrgy Ltd. that we did not already own.

Net intcrest income and expenscs during the year ended December 31, 2007 amounted to net
interest income of approximately $1,103,000, compared to net intcrest expense of approximately
$7,255,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. The change of $8,358,000 betwceen the ycars ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is primarily due to decrcasces in interest expensc of $8,544,000 during the
year ended December 31, 2007, principally due to aggregate costs of approximately $8,491,000 recorded
as interest expense in 2006 in connection with the April and May 2006 cxchanges of our then outstanding
convertible notes for common stock (consisting of the value of the shares issued in lieu of future intcrest
payments of approximately $8,266,000, thc amortization of the remaining balance of the beneficial
conversion features of approximately $220,000 and out of pocket costs incurred in connection with the
exchange transactions) and interest incurred on the convertible notes of approximately $1,001,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2006 prior to their cxchange, partially offsct by an unrcalized loss on a short
term investment of approximately $840,000 and losses on translation of balances denominated in
currencics other than the U.S. dollar of approximately $320,000. The decreasc in interest expense was
partially offsct by a decrease in interest income of $186,000 during the year ended December 31, 2007,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2007, we had unrecognized compensation costs of approximatcly

$3,131,000 rclated to stock options accounted for in accordance with FASB Statement No. 123 (revised
2004) “Share Based Payments,” which are expected to be recognized in future periods.
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Year ended December 31, 2006 compared to year ended December 31, 2005

We sustained net losses of $33,047,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
$18,550,000 during the year ended December 31, 2005. The increascs in the net loss can primarily be
attributed to charges to interest expense aggregating approximately $8,491,000 rclated to the exchanges in
April and May 2006 of our common stock for all of our outstanding convertible notes and increases in
research and development costs primarily due to increased funding of our fucl cell-retated cfforts as we
move towards commercialization of our fuel cell products. Additionally, our selling, gencral and
administrative expenses increased, as more fully described below. As we approach final stages of the
anticipated commercialization of our fuel cell products, we have devoted and expect to continue to devote
significant resources in the arcas of capital expenditures and rescarch and development costs for our fuel
cell products.

We recognized revenues of $150,000 and cost of revenues of $98,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to revenues of $425,000 and cost of revenues of $262,000 during the year
cended December 31, 2006. The revenucs in both years are attributable to completed orders that we
received from General Dynamics C-4 Systems, Inc., a unit of General Dynamics Corporation relating to
our fuel cell products and technology.

Resecarch and development costs amounted to $18,057,000 during the year ended December 31,
2006, compared to $12,144,000 during the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in research and
development costs incurred during the year ended December 31, 2006 can be primarily attributed to an
increasc of approximately $5,580,000 related to our fuel celt technologics. The rescarch and development
activitics for the periods presented include:

Fuel Cell Technologies. We incurred costs relating to our fuel cell technologics of
approximately $16,566,000 during the ycar ended December 31, 2006, compared to costs of
approximatcly $10,986,000 during the ycar ended December 31, 2005. The increase in our
research and development expenses related to our fuel cell technologies of approximately
$5,580,000 reflects our decision to continue to devote substantial and increasing amounts of
resources to the further development of our fuel ccll technologies and products as we move
towards commercialization and result from increases in labor, materials, depreciation and
other costs.

Cell Kinetics — CellScan, Cell Carrier. We incurred costs of approximately $1,125,000
during the yecar ended December 31, 2006 relating to the further refinement and assembly of
the desktop CcellScan, on various rescarch activities (including modifying the Cell Carricr
design to cnable its use with standard fluorescence microscopes) and in obtaining the CE
mark and moving forward with our ISO application, as well as clarifying other regulatory
requircments nceded for further commercialization of our products, compared to costs of
approximately $763,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006 for further refinement of
the desktop CellScan system and on various research activities. The increases in our CellScan
related research and development costs during the year ended December 31, 2006 can be
primarily attributed to increases materials costs for the assembly of additional desktop
CellScans, labor costs — including new ccll carrier design costs and ccll carrier coating
devclopment - and other expenscs, partially offsct by a decrease in costs of subcontractors
and consultants.

Other R&D Activities. We have been devoting more resources to developing our fuel cell
technologics and commercializing our fucl cell-based products. As a result, other than as
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described above with respect to the CellScan, we have been devoting few resources to many
of our other technologics.

Selling, marketing, general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31,
2006, amounted to approximately $7,579,000, compared to approximately $5,720,000 year ended
December 31, 2005. The increases of $1,859,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, is primarily
attributable to increases in non-cash charges rclating to the issuance of stock options of approximately
$1,575,000, resulting principally from our adoption of SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006, increases in
costs for the issuance and maintenance of patents and other professional fecs of approximately $365,000,
increases in insurance costs of approximately $123,000, increases in depreciation expense of
approximately $106,000, increases in executive consulting costs of approximately $89,000, increase in
selling and marketing costs of approximately $83,000, and net increases in various other SG& A cost
categories of approximately $60,000, partially offsct by decreases in labor and related costs of
approximately $542,000.

Amortization of wtangible assets amounted to $208,000 for each of the years ended December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. The amortization of intangible assets in both periods represents the
amortization of intangible assets acquired in our March 2003 acquisition of the remaining 7% of More
Energy Ltd. that we did not alrcady own.

Net interest income and expenses during year ended December 31, 2006 amounted to net other
expenses of approximately $7,255,000, compared to net other expense of approximately $641,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2005. The difference of $6,614,000 between the years is due to an increase
in interest cxpensc of $8,158,000, partially offset by increases in interest income of $1,544,000. The
increase in interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2006 is principally due to aggregate
costs of approximatcly 58,491,000 recorded as interest expense in connection with the April and May
2006 exchanges of our then outstanding convertible notes for common stock (consisting of the value of
the shares issued in licu of future interest payments of approximately $8,266,000, the amortization of the
remaining balance of the beneficial conversion features of approximately $220,000 and out of pocket
costs incurred in connection with the exchange transactions) partially offsct by a decrease in interest
incurred on our convertible notes prior to their exchange of approximately $333,000 during the ycar
ended December 31, 2006. The increase in interest income during the year ended December 31, 2006 of
$1,544,000 is primarily duc to incrcases in our average cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investment balances in 2006 compared to the same period in 2005 resulting principally from the proceeds
of our issuance of our convertible notes in July and August 2005 and our Series A preferrced stock in
November and December 2006, as well as increases in intcrest rates on cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments and $350,000 credited to intcrest income upon the exercise of a 75-day option to
acquire up to an additional $7,500,0000 of our Serics A preferred stock that was granted to the initial
purchaser in connection with the issuance in November 2006 of the first $50,000,000 of Scries A
preferred stock.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)") and related Securities and Exchange Commission rules included in Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, on a modified prospective basis. As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R), our
net loss for the year ended December 31, 2006, is §2,900,000 greater than if we had continued to account
for share-based compensation under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 25”).

Liquidity And Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations primarily through the proceeds of investor equity
financing. From November 2007 through March 2008, we issued an aggregate of 2,243,883 shares of our
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common stock, pursuant to a November 26, 2007 Equity Distribution Agreement with an investment
banker. In November and December 2006, we issued Serics A preferred stock to qualified institutional
investors in a private offering. In July and August 2005, we issued convertible notes in a private offering
to qualified institutional buyers and in April and May 2006 exchanged our then outstanding convertible
notes for commeon stock. We expect to continue to finance our operations through the sale of debt or
equity until such time as we successfully commercialize our fuel cell products or products derived from
any of our other technologics.

Our working capital and capital requircments at any given time depend upon numerous factors,
including, but not limited to;

+ the progress of rescarch and development programs;
+  the status of our technologies;

.+ the level of resources that we devote to the development of our technologies, patents,
marketing and salcs capabilities;

.- the amount of resources required to complete our production facilities and product launch
and ramp-up;

- our anticipation, based on our current expectation that we will scll out the production
capacity of our first fully automated production line, that we will undertake to build a sccond
fully automated; and

. variability of currency exchange rates in rclationship to the U.S. doliar.

A portion of our costs and expenses are denominated in foreign currencics. The principal forcign
currencies applicable to our business arc the New Isracli Shekel, the Euro and the Swiss Franc, As a
result, we have exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations. Recently, the U.S. dollar has been
volatile relative to forcign currencies and frequently has been weak. Such weakness of the U S. dollar has
negatively impacted our cash flows and results of opcrations and continued foreign currency fluctuations
including a weaker U.S. dollar, could significantly harm our cash flow and results of opcrations, as well
as our ability to achicve and maintain profitability as we continuc to grow our business.

Another source of income or other means to affect our cash expenditures are collaborative
arrangements with businesscs and institutes for research and development and companics participating in
the development of our technologies. Since January 2002, we have realized revenucs of $1,298,000 on
costs of revenucs of $785,000, as well as credits against our research and development costs of
approximately $649,000, with respect to collaborative arrangements with third partics relating to our fucl
cell technologies. There can be no assurance that we will realize additional revenue or credits to our
research and development expense from collaborative arrangements, Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that we will raise additional funds through any financing approach implemented by us.

In April, 2006, we completed an exchange of our then outstanding convertible notes for common
stock whereby the holders of an aggregate of $46,582,000 in principal amount of the convertible notes
cxchanged their convertible notes for an aggregate of 2,948,806 sharcs of our common stock. Such
number of shares, which aggregated 9.3% of our then issued and outstanding common stock after giving
effect to this transaction, includes 256,201 shares, valued at $30 per share, in licu of future interest
payments had our convertible notes remained outstanding until their maturity, after giving effect to an
eighteen month waiver of such payments.
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In May, 2006, we completed a second exchange of our then outstanding convertible notes
whereby the holders of the remaining $2,418,000 in principal amount of the Convertible Notes exchanged
their convertible notes for an aggregate of 153,068 shares of our common stock. Such number of shares
includes 13,299 shares of our common stock, valucd at $30 per share, in licu of future interest payments
had such convertible notes remained outstanding until their maturity, after giving cffect to an cighteen
month waiver of such payments,

In November and December 2006, we issucd 5,750 shares of our Series A preferred stock in a
private offering for aggregate gross proceeds of $57,500,000, less issuance costs aggregating
approximately $3,910,000. The annual cash dividend on cach share of our Series A preferred stock is
$725 and is payable quarterly, in arrcars, commencing on February 15, 2007. Each share of our Scries A
preferred stock 1s convertible at the holder’s option at any time into 347.2222 shares of our common stock
(which is cquivalent to an initial conversion price of $28.80 per share). On or after November 20, 2009, if
the closing price of our common stock exceeds 150% of the conversion price for 20 trading days during
any consccutive 30 trading day period, we may cause the conversion of our Serics A preferred stock into
common stock at the then prevailing conversion rate. Of the total $57,500,000 of our Series A preferred
stock issued, $7,500,000 was issued pursuant to the excrcisc of a 75-day option that was granted to the
initial purchaser in connection with the issuance of the first $50,000,000 of our Series A preferred stock.

In November, 2006, concurrent with our offcring of our Series A preferred stock, we issued 1.5
million shares of our common stock in an offering registerced under the Securities Act of 1933. The shares
of common stock issucd were loaned to an affiliate of Citigroup Global Markets Limited under a 5-ycar
share lending agreement. The only consideration that we received was a share lending fee of $.01 per
share, or an aggregate of $15,000. The loaned shares were used by CGML to promote the sale of our
Series A preferred stock by facilitating hedging transactions that may be undertaken by purchasers of our
Series A preferred stock in the private offering described above.

Proceeds from our Serics A preferred stock and debt-financings and other proceeds have been and
will continue to be used for corporatc expense and capital expenditures, including for the construction,
validation, start-up and other costs related to a fully-automated manufacturing line and related facilitics
for our fuel cell products, as well as for other working capital purposes, research and development costs
and sclling, marketing, gencral and administrative expenses. As of December 31, 2007, commitments for
capital expenditures in 2007 aggregated approximately $7,459,000, which primarily relate to our fully
automated production line and related facilities.

In November and December 2007, pursuant to a November 26, 2007 Equity Distribution
Agreement with an investment banker, we sold an aggregate of 1,314,198 shares of our common stock for
proceeds of approximatcly $17,692,000, less issuance costs aggregating approximately $871,000.
Additionally, from January 1 through March 14, 2008, we sold an additional 929,685 shares of our
common stock, pursuant to the Agrcement, bringing the aggregate procceds through March 14, 2008 to
$28,894,000 lcss issuance costs aggregating approximately $1,208,000. The Agreement provides for our
sale of a maximum of $35,000,000 of our common stock.

In furtherance of our plan to commercialize the Cell Carrier technology, Medis El assigned all of
its intcllectual property rights to the CellScan, including the Cell Carricr, to Cell Kinetics on July 26,
2007. We also agreed to provide to Cell Kinctics, over an 18 month period starting with the completion of
a then contemplated rights offering, an unrestricted capital contribution of up to $1,500,000 on an as
nceded basis. Furthermore, in the cvent that such $1,500,000 capital contribution along with other
available funds would be insufficient for Cell Kinetics to carry-out its operations for at least one ycar
from thc completion of this rights offering, we agreed to provide Cell Kinetics with additional financing
from time to time to ensure that Cell Kinetics will have sufficient funds to carry out its operations for at
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least one year from the completion of the rights offering. Additionally, we and Medis El have agreed to
provide office and laboratory facilities and administrative services to Cell Kinetics at cost as a
contribution to capital, for a period of at least 18 months form the completion of the rights offering.

On January 7, 2008, Cell Kinetics completed a rights offering pursuant to which subscribers
purchascd an aggregate of 3,492,788 of Cell Kinetics® ordinary sharcs, at the subscription price of $0.30
per share. Subscribers also reccived four year warrants to purchase additional Cell Kinetics ordinary
shares, at an excreisc price of $0.60 per share, at the ratc of one such warrant for every two ordinary
sharcs purchased in the rights offering. Under the terms of the rights offering, record holders of our
outstanding common stock received, at no cost, one nontransferable subscription right for every ten shares
of our common stock held by them as of the close of business on the record date, which was November
12, 2007. As mentioned above, subscribers also received four year warrants to purchase additional Cell
Kinctics ordinary shares, at an exercise price of $0.60 per share, at the rate of one such warrant for every
two ordinary shares purchased in the rights offering.  Upon the completion of the rights offering, we
continued to own approximate 82.5% of Cell Kinetics® outstanding ordinary shares and subscribers
owned the balancc.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, net cash used in operating activities was $34,429,000
compared to $22,875,000 during the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase was primarily
attributable to increases in expenditures for research and development costs and sclling, marketing,
gencral and administrative expenses, as described above, as well as an increase in inventory of raw
materials and components for the production of our fuel cell products.

During the ycar ended December 31, 2007, net cash used in investing activitics was $14,983.000,
which represented (i} purchases of property and equipment of $38,039,000, of which approximately
$37,435,000 represents costs related to building and equipping our fully automated and semi-automated
production lines and related facilities, (ii) investments in short-term investments of $58,780,000 less
redemptions of short-term investments of $87,284,000, (iii) restricted cash and deposits of $6,838,000
less redemptions of $1,440,000 and (iv) equity investment in an early-stage company of $50,000. During
the year ended December 31, 2006, net cash used in investing activities was $33,728,000, which
represented (i) purchases of property and equipment of $16,724,000, of which approximately $14,940,000
represents costs related to building and equipping our fully automated and semi-automated production
lines and related facilities, and (i1) investments in short-term investments of $40,419,000, less
redemptions of short-term investments of $23,415,000.

As of December 31, 2007, our short-term investments of $1,160,000 represcated an auction rate
security with a face value of $2,000,000, Icss a valuation reserve of $840,000. Recent uncertainties in the
credit markets have resulted in unsuccessful auctions, since the third quarter of 2007, for such security.

. The interest on this auction rate security continues to be paid monthly at an increased rate. We examined
the value of the auction rate security in the failed auction and assessed it for possible impairment
generally in accordance with SFAS 115 “Accounting For Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities” and FASB Staff Position FAS 115-1/124-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments”. Since we believe that the subsequent failed
auctions and the continuing decline in the bids from the ultimate debtor are reflecting an impairment of
the underlying assets securing the auction rate security at December 31, 2007, we have recorded, based on
the most current bids, a valuation reserve of S840,000 on such auction rate security,

During the year ended December 31, 2007, net cash aggregating S14,235,000 was provided by
financing activities, which represented: (i) net proceeds of approximately $16,951,000 from the sale of
our common stock, as described more fully above (ii) procceds of approximately $1,373,000 from our
issuance of 171,000 shares of our commen stock upon exercise of stock options issued under our 1999
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stock option plan (of which 125,816 shares were excercised by our exccutive officers and also the procecds
of which 51,180,000 was from exercises that took place during December 2007) and (ii) proceeds of
approximately $65,000 from our issuance of 4,500 shares of our common stock upon cxercisc of
outstanding warrants, partially offset by (iv) dividend payments on our Series A preferred stock
aggregating approximately $4,128,000 (i1} payments of approximatcly $26,000 for issuance costs on our
Series A preferred stock that was issued in November and December 2006. The net cash provided by
financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 aggregating $73,111,000 was generated from:
(1) proceeds from our issuance of our Series A preferred stock of $57,500,000 Icss issuance costs of
approximately $3,884,000 paid during the year ended December 31, 2006, (ii) procceds of approximately
$19,346,000 from our issuance of 2,200,000 sharcs of our common stock (including 1,728,000 sharcs
exercised by our exccutive officers), and (iii} proceeds of approximately $134,000 from our issuance of
25,000 sharcs of our common stock upon exercise of outstanding warrants, and (iv) $15,000 received as
consideration in our share lending agrecment, pursuant to which we lent 1,500,000 shares of our common
stock to the initial purchaser of our Scrics A preferred stock (see discussion above).

As of December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments
aggregating $17,786,000 (comprised of cash and cash cquivalents of $16,626,000 and short-tcrm
investments of $1,160,000) and an additional $5,700,000 of restricted cash and deposits. On October 5,
2007, we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a shelf registration statement on Form 8-3
which was declared effective on October 29, 2007, with a maximum amount of $35,000,000. Through
March 14, 2008, pursuant to a November 26, 2007 equity distribution agreement with an investment bank
(sce discussion above), we raised aggregate gross proceeds of approximatcly $28,894.000, less issuance
costs of $1,208,000 (of which net procecds of approximately $10,865,000 were raised during the period
from January 1, 2008 through March 14, 2008). We anticipate that we will seek additional financing, oncc
we exhaust the remaining balance of approximately $6,100,000 availablc under this agreement, for
working capital and other operating needs in the form of equity and/or debt financing and accounts
receivable/inventory financing, to augment our cxisting funds until we are able to finance our operations
from the sales of our Power Pack product.

Our failure to successfully commercialize or sell our fuel cell products or products derived from
any of our other technologies would require us to seek outside sources of financing to raisc additional
funds for working capital or other purposcs. However, such failure may materially adversely affect our
ability to raise such additional funds, if needed. In any event, it is not possible to make any reliable
estimate of the funds required to further devetop our fuel cell technologies or any of our other
technologies or market and produce our fucl cell products at commercially viable level.

Commitments and Contingencies

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations at December 31, 2007:

Payment Due By Period

2012 and

Contractual Obligations Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 thereafter
Capital Lease Obligation ... $ 2230000 S 649000 §  1.165000 § 416,000 3§ - 8 -
Operating Lease Obligation .. 1,028,000 633,000 304,000 91,000 - -
Purchase Obligations..........cooocvvennecnene. 21,635,000 20,889,000 725,000 21,000 - -
Other Long-Term Liabilities {(Notel) ..... 2,223,000 222,000 222,000 222 000 222,000 1,335.000
TORAD oottt e e et et r e $ 27.116,000  § 22393000 § 2416000 3 750,000 S 222,000 $ 1,335000

Note 1:  Other Long-Term Liabilities represents our accrued severance pay as of December 31, 2007, Since we do not expect a
high level of employee tumover giving rise to the payment of significant amounts of severance obligations, we have
included approximately 10% of the total liability in each of the years 2008 through 2011 and the remainder in 2012 and
thereafter.
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Tax Matters

As of December 31, 2007, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we have net operating loss
carry-forwards of approximately $28,806,000. For Isracli income tax purposes, we have nct operating loss
carry-forwards of approximately $85,775,000. Since our inception, we have not had any taxable income.

The availability of our U.S. net operating loss carry-forwards may be reduced to the extent onc or
more direct or indirect holders of 5% or greater amount of our common stock increases their equity
interest in us by more than 50% in the aggregate.

Grants Obtained From The State Of 1srael

Mcdis El, the predeccssor to Cell Kinetics in its CellScan and Cell Carrier related business,
received approximately $1,629,000 in research and development grants related to the CellScan
technology from the Office of the Chief Scientist of the Ministry of Commerce and Industry of the State
of Israel from its inception to 1997. This is based upon a policy of the government of Israel to provide
grants of between 50% and 66% of qualifying approved research and development expenditures to
promote research and development by Israeli companies. Medis El received 50% of qualifying approved
research and development expenditures. Pursuant to the grant arrangement, Cell Kinctics as the assignee
of Medis EI’s contingent obligation in connection with Cell Kinetics” acquisition of Medis El’s CellScan
and Cell Carricr related business, including its intellectual property rights relating to the CellScan and its
Cell Carrier technology, is required to pay 3% of its sales of CellScan related products developed with the
grant funds until the grant amounts arc paid in full. There is no requirement to repay the grants if the
products developed with the grant funds are not sold. [f Cell Kinetics wishes to sell the underlying
technology prior to repaying the grant funds, it must first scck permission from the Israeli government for
such sale. Prior to Medis El receiving grant funds in 1992, Medis El assumed from Israel Aircraft
Industries Ltd. (formerly known as Israel Aerospace Industries Ltd.), its largest stockholder, its obligation
relating to the repayment of grants out of future royaltics, if any, of approximately $805,000, which
contingent obligation Cell Kinetics also assumed in connection with its acquisition of Medis El's
CellScan and Cell Carrier related business. As of December 31, 2007, Cell Kinetics’ total contingent
obligation for the repayment of grants, which includes the $805,000, is $2,247,000. Ncither we nor any of
our subsidiaries presently receive any grants from the State of Isracl.

Approved Enterprise

The law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the “Investment Law™) and the tax
benefits that we may derive therefrom can be summarized as follows:

The facilities of More Energy, our Isracli fuel cell subsidiary, have been granted status of an
"Approved Enterprise” under the Investment Law. According to the provisions of the Investment Law,
Morec Encrgy has elected the "alternative benefits track” - the waiver of grants in rcturn for tax cxemption.
As such, More Energy’s income is tax-exempt for a period of two years commencing with the year it first
eamns taxable income, and subject to corporate taxes at the reduced rate of 10% to 25%, depending upon
the level of forcign owncership of the Company, for an additional period of 5-8 years from when the tax
exemption ends. The period of tax benefits, detailed above, is limited to the carlicr of 12 years from the
commencement of production, or 14 years from the approval date {except for the tax-exempt period of
two years which is unlimited). Due to reported losscs for tax purposes, the tax benefit period has not yet
commenced.

The entitlement to the above benefits is conditional upon fulfilling the conditions stipulated by
the Investment Law, regulations published thereunder and the letters of approval for the spectiic
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investments in "Approved Enterprises.” In the event of failure to comply with these conditions, the
bencefits may be canceled and More Encrgy may be required to refund the amount of the benefits, in
whole or in part, including intcrest. As of December 31, 2007, management belicves that the Company's
[sracli subsidiary is meeting the aforementioned conditions.

If More Energy distributes a cash dividend from retained earnings which were tax exempt due to
its approved enterprise status, More Energy would be required to pay corporatc tax at a ratc of 10% to
25% corporate tax on the gross amount distributed and a further 15% withholding tax would be deducted
from the amount disturbed to the recipients. If More Energy derives income form sources other than the
approved enterprise programs during the relevant period of benefits, this income would be taxable at the
regular corporate tax rate of Isracl.

On April 1, 2005, an amendment to the Investment Law came into effect {"'the Amendment™) and
has significantly changed the provisions of the Investment Law. The Amendment sets forth the scope of
cnterprises which may qualify as a Privileged Enterprise (under the Amendment, the designation is
Beneficiary Enterprise rather than Approved Enterprisc) by setting forth criteria for qualification of a
company, such as provisions generally requiring that at least 25% of the Beneficiary Enterprisc's income
will be derived from export and that minimum qualifying investments in productive assets be made.
Additionally, the Amendment enacted major changes in the manncr in which tax bencfits are awarded
under the Investment Law so that companies no longer require Investment Center approval in order to
qualify for tax benefits. Under the Amendment, the year in which the company elects to commence its tax
benefits is designated as the ycar of clection (“Year of Election”). A company may choose its Year of
Election by notifying the Israeli Tax authorities in connection with filings its annual tax return or within
12 months after the end of the Ycar of Elcction, whichever is earlier, or by requesting a pre-ruling ruling
from the Israeli tax authoritics no later than within 6 months after the end of the Year of Election.

In July 2006, More Energy submitted an application to the Investment Center for approval to
manufacture abroad and still be eligible for all the benefits according the Investment Law. The request
has not yet been approved. In August 2006, Morc Encrgy applied to the Isracli Tax Authorities in order to
receive approval for manufacturing in Ireland with Celestica and to grant the status of “Industrial
Enterprise™. A decision regarding the request has not yet been received.

The Investment Law, as amended, also provides that any letter of approval granted prior to the
Amendment will remain subject to the terms and benefits included in such letter of approval.
Accordingly, while it is anticipated that the Investment Law, as amended, will govern More Energy’s
Beneficiary Enterprise terms and benefits, the Company does not cxpect that the Amendment will have
any impact on Mcdis EL

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Qur discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of opcrations is based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requirces us to make
cstimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of asscts, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent liabilitics. On an on-going basis, we evaluate past judgments and our
estimates, including those related to goodwill and intangible asscts, stock options and warrants and
deferred income taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of asscts and liabilities that are not apparent from other sourccs.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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We belicve the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We consider accounting policies related to our goodwill and other intangible assets to be critical
due to the estimation processes involved and their materiality to our financial statements. As of December
31, 2007, the net book values of our goodwill and intangible assets were $58,205,000 and $48,000,
respectively. Our goodwill and other intangible assets arosc primarily as a result of threc purchase
accounting transactions: our acquisition of the minority interest in Medis Inc. in 1997, our exchange of
our shares for the minority interest in Medis El in 2000 and our acquisition of the remaining 7% of Morc
Encrgy that we did not already own in 2003. In amortizing our goodwill through December 31, 2001 and
our intangible assets through December 31, 2007, we made estimates and assumptions regarding the
useful lives of such assets. If our cstimates and assumptions change, the useful lives and resulting charges
to operations for amortization of such assets would also change.

Additionally, with respect to our goodwill and intangible assets, as of January 1, 2002, we
adoptcd SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which was issucd by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in June 2001, SFAS No. 142 requires entcrprises, effective January 1, 2002,
to discontinue amortizing goodwill, and instead requires that goodwill be subject to at least an annual
asscssment for impairment. As part of our initial evaluation of our goodwill and intangible assets for any
possible impairment, as of January 1, 2002, we were required to usc estimates and assumptions with
respect to markets for our products, future cash flows, discount rates and timing of commereialization of
our technologies in determining the fair value of our reporting units. We have also performed annual tests
for impairment of our goodwill for each of the years from 2002, through 2007. The estimates we used
assume that our products will be accepted and that we will gain market share in the future and will
cxpericnce growth in such market share. If we fail to deliver products or to achieve our assumed revenue
growth rates or assumed gross margins, if the products fail to gain expected market acceptance, or if our
estimates and/or other assumptions change or other circumstances change with respect to future cash
flows, discount rates and timing of commercialization of our technologics, we may, in the future, be
required to record charges to operations for impairment of our goodwill and/or our intangible assets.

Stock Options, Warrants and Restricted Stock

We also consider accounting policics related to stock options, warrants and restricted stock to be
critical due to the estimation process involved. We utilize stock options, warrants and restricted stock as
an important means of compensation for employecs, directors and consultants and also warrants as an
instrument in our fundraising process. Accounting for such options, warrants and restricted stock, in some
circumstances, results in significant non-cash charges to our operations or accumulated loss. There arc
assumptions and estimates involved in determining the valuc of such stock options, warrants and
restricted stock and the timing of related charges to our operations or accumulated loss. These estimates
and assumptions include the expected term of the option, volatility of our stock price and interest rates.
The market price of our stock also has a significant impact on charges we incur related to stock options
and warrants. If these estimates and assumptions change or if our stock price changcs, the charges to
operations and/or accumulated loss could also change significantly.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted FASB Statcment No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)") , and related Securitics and Exchange Commission rules included in Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, on a modified prospective basis. Under this method, compensation cost
recognized beginning January 1, 2006 include costs related to 1) all share-based payments (stock options
and restricted stock awards) granted prior to but not yct vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant-
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date fair valuc estimated in accordance with the original provisions of FAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Bascd Compensation” (“SFAS 1237), and 2) all share-based payments granted subscquent to

December 31, 2005 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 123(R). Compensation cost for stock options is generally recognized ratably over the vesting
period. During the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, we incurred significant non-cash charges to
opcrations on grants of stock options to employces and directors as a result of our adoption of

SFAS 123(R) on January 1, 2006 and we expect to continuc to incur significant charges in the future,

Inventories

We consider accounting policies related to inventories to be critical due to the materiality of the
amounts and the estimation process involved. Inventories consist of raw materials, components and
finished goods and are subject to lower of cost or market valuation and write-downs for obsolescence.
Application of the appropriate accounting guidance and determining the correct valuation of our
inventorics tnvolves the use of judgment and cstimates. As such, a significant change in our cstimates
could have a material impact on the carrying value of our inventories and the results of our operations.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We consider accounting policies related to property, plant and equipment and related depreciation
to be critical due the materiality of the amounts and the ¢stimation process involved. Determining the
amounts of direct incremental costs necessary to bring our production facilities to their intended use and
their recoverability requires the application of judgment and the use of estimates, as does determining the
estimated useful lives of such facilities. As such, a significant change in our estimates could have a
material impact on the carrying valuc of our property, plant and equipment and the results of our
opcrations.

Deferred Income Taxes

We record a valuation allowance to reducc our deferred tax assets to zero. In the event that we
were to determine that we are likely to be able to realize all or part of our deferred tax assets in the future,
an adjustment to the deferred tax asscts would be credited to operations in the period such determination
was made.

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted FASB Interpretation 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes" ("FIN 48"). FIN 48 defincs the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return
positions in the financial statements as "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained by the taxing authority. The
recently issued literature also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement and classification of
income tax uncertainties, along with any related interest and penaltics. FIN 48 also includes guidance
concerning accounting for income tax uncertainties in interim periods and increases the level of
disclosures associated with any income tax uncertainties. While our adoption of FIN 48 did not have a
material impact on our December 31, 2007 consolidated financial statements, its application requires the
exercise of judgment and the use estimates and, depending on transactions and circumstances, could
potentially have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2007, the Emcrging Issucs Task Force of the FASB (“EITF”) reached a conscnsus on
Issuc No. 07-3, Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services Received for

Use in Future Research and Development Activities (EITF 07-3). EITF 07-3 requires that non-refundable
advance payments for goods or services that will be used or rendered for future research and development
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activities should be deferred and capitalized. The deferred amounts would be recognized as an expense as
the rclated goods are delivered or the services are performed, or when the goods or services are no longer
expected to be provided. This pronouncement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning aftcr December 15, 2007 and earlier application is permitted. EITF 07-3 is to be applied
prospectively for new contracts entered into on or after the effective date. The adoption of this
pronouncement is not expected to a material effect on our consolidated financial statcments.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Mcasurcments (“SFAS No.
157). This statement provides a single definition of fair value, a framework for measuring fair value, and
cxpanded disclosures concerning fair value. Previously, different definitions of fair value were contained
in various accounting pronouncements creating inconsistencics in measurement and disclosures. SFAS
No. 157 applies under thosc previously issued pronouncements that prescribe fair value as the relevant
mcasurc of value, cxcept SFAS No. 123(R) and related interpretations. The statements does not apply to
accounting standard that require or permit measurement similar to fair value but are not intended to
measure fair value. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.

On Fcbruary 12, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, Effective Datc of
FASB Statement No. 157 (the FSP). The FSP amends FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements (Statement 157), 1o delay the effective date of Statement 157 for non-financial asscts and
non-financial liabilitics, except for items that arc recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least annually). For items within its scope, the FSP defers the
cffective date of Statement 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods
within those fiscal years,

We are currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our
consolidated financial statcments.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities” (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measure
certain financial instruments and certain other ttems at fair value. The standard requires that unrealized
gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been clected be reported in carnings. SFAS
No. 159 is cffective for the company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, although earlier
adoption is permittcd. We are currently evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 159 will have on its
consolidated financial statements

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Impact Of Inflation And Devaluation On Results Of Operations, Liabilities And Assets

In connection with our currency use, we operate in a mixed environment. Payroll is paid in the
local currency of cach of our subsidiaries, the New Isracli Shekel (NIS), and our other operating expenses
and capital cxpenditures are, for the most part, based in U.S. Dollars, NIS, Euro and Swiss Francs.
Consideration for virtually all sales is either in dollars or dollar-linked currency. As a result, not all
monetary assets and all monctary liabilities are linked to the same base in the same amount at all points in
time, which cause currency fluctuation related gains or losses. While our liguid funds arc primarily
invested in U.S. Dollars-bascd assets, we also invest liquid funds in NIS, Euro and Swiss Francs,
Furthermore, from time to time, we have purchased forward contracts denominated in foreign currencies
(see discussion of currency risk management below).

For many ycars prior to 1986, the Isracli cconomy was characterized by high rates of inflation
and devaluation of the Israeli currency against the United States dollar and other currencies. Since the
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institution of the Israeli Economic Program in 1985, inflation, while continuing, has been significantly
reduced and the rate of devaluation has been substantially diminished. However, The following table
shows the rates of inflation (deflation) and devaluation (appreciation) of the NIS against the U.S. dollar
for the years of 2003 through 2007:
Rate of Devaluation or
Rate of Inflation (Appreciation) of the NIS

or (Deflation) against the Dollar
2003 (1.9) (7.6)
2004 1.2 (1.6)
2005 24 6.9
2006 0.1 (8.2)
2007 34 (9.0)

Additionally, in 2008, through January 31, 2008, the rate of inflation in Israel zero and the rate of
appreciation of the NIS was (5.7%) against the dollar.

Currency Risk Management

In September, 2005, we entered into a Capital Equipment Purchase Agreement with Komax
Systems LCF SA (formerly know as Ismeca Europe Automation SA) to build an automated assembly line
for our fuel cell Power Pack products, to be operated at the Galway, Ireland facility of Celestica. Under
the Agrecement, as amended, we will pay Komax an aggregate of approximately 20,608,000 Swiss Francs
(approximately $16,908,000 based on currency cxchange rates in effect on payment dates and on
December 31, 2007 for the remaining balance) for constructing the line. The Komax agreement calls for
an initial payment of fifteen percent of the total contract price with milestonc payments scheduled over
the life of the contract. From the inception of this agreement through December 31, 2007, the Company
paid Komax an aggregate of approximately $15,554,000 (19,085,000 Swiss Francs). All such amounts
are included in property, plant and cquipment as of December 31, 2007.

Based on a study performed by us, we have undertaken a currency risk management strategy for
payments under the Komax agreement and pursuant to which in 2006 we have, on a limited basis, entered
into forward contracts and participating forward contracts for the purchase of Swiss Franes. At our option,
we have either taken delivery of the Swiss Francs or net settled the contracts during their term. We also
purchase foreign currencies based on projections of up-coming payment obligations denominated in
foreign currencies. Through December 31, 2007, we have incurred net costs of approximately $477,000
on payments made to datc under the Komax agreement as a result of variations in the exchange rate
between the Swiss Franc and the U.S. dollar.

As described above, a portion of our costs and expenses are denominated in foreign currencies.
The principal foreign currencies applicable to our business are the New Israeli Shekel, the Euro and the
Swiss Franc. As a result, we have exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations. Recently, the U.S.
dollar has declined in relationship to these foreign currencies, which has increased certain of our
operating and capital costs. Continued foreign currency fluctuations could further impact our costs, as
well as our ability to achieve and maintain profitability as we continue to grow our business.

Impact Of Political And Economic Conditions
The state of hostility which has existed in varying degrees in Israel since 1948, its unfavorablc

balance of payments and its history of inflation and currency devaluation, all represent uncertainties
which may adversely affect our business.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and corresponding notes thereto called for by this item
appear at the end of this document commencing on page 56.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

Not applicable
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Exccutive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a — 15(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of
the period covered by this report. Based upon that cvaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December
3t, 2007.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsiblc for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the
supervision and with the participation of cur management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an cvaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 based on the framework in Internal Control--Integrated
Framework issued by the Committce of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSO).
Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting
was cffective as of December 31, 2007,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reperting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadcquatce becausc of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedurcs may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in

Rule 13(a) — 15(f) under the Exchange Act} during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 that has

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting

Item 9B. Other Information.

Not applicable.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Medis Technologies Ltd.

We have audited Medis Technologies Ltd.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Medis Technologies Ltd.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompanying annual report on Form 10-K. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financtal reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Medis Technologies Ltd. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the 2007 consolidated financial statements of Medis
Technologies Ltd. and our report dated March 17, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon.

 Kestbe®¢ (e and Xasiers
Tel Aviv, Israel KOST FORE BBAY & KASIERER
March 17, 2008 A MEMBER OF ERNST & YOUNG GLOBAL
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PART III
Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10 is sct forth in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “2008 Proxy Statement”), which is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is set forth in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Iterm 12 is set forth in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Ttem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information requircd by this Item 13 is sct forth in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated hercin by this reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is set forth in the 2008 Proxy Statement, which is
incorporated herein by this reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statcments.

Our financial statements as st forth in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements attached
hereto commencing on page 56 are hereby incorporated by reference.

(b) Exhibits.

The following exhibits, which are numbered in accordance with ltem 601 of Regulation S-K, are
filed herewith or, as noted, incorporated by reference herein:

3.41) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Medis Technologies Litd. (1)
3.(i1) Restated By-Laws of Medis Technologics Ltd., as amended (2)

4.1 Form of certificate evidencing shares of common stock (2)
42 Certificate of Designation of 7.25% Series A Cumulative Convertible Perpetual Preferred
Stock. (3)

10.1% Medis Technologies Ltd.”s 1999 Stock Option Plan, as amended (4)
10.2* Employment Agreement dated March 29, 2005 between Zvi Rehavi and Medis El Ltd. (5)
10.3%* Employment Agreement dated March 23, 1999 between lsrael Fisher and Medis El Ltd. (6)

10.4 Strategic Agreement dated April 5, 2001 by and between General Dynamics Government
Systems Corporation and Medis Technologics Ltd. (6)

10.5 Letter Agreement dated June 1, 1993 between Medis El Ltd. and The Industrial Research
and Development Institute of the Chief Scientist’s Office of the State of Israel (7)

10.6 Agreement dated October 17, 1991 between Bar-Ilan University and Israel Aircraft
Industries Ltd. (7)

10.7 Amendment of License dated August 8, 1992 between Bar-Ilan University and Isracl
Aircraft Industries Ltd. and Medis El (7)

10.8 Assignment of License Agreement between Israel Alrcraft Industries between Israel Aircraft

Industries Ltd. and Bar-Ilan University dated August 13, 1992 between Isracl Aircraft
Industries Ltd. and Medis Israel Ltd. (7)

10.9 Letter Agreement dated July 18, 1996 between Medis El Ltd. and Bar-llan University (7)

10.10* Consultancy Agreement dated as of January 2, 2000 between Medis Technologies Ltd. and
Robert K. Lifton (8)

10.11* Consultancy Agreement dated as of January 2, 2000 between Medis Technologies Ltd. and
Howard Weingrow (8)

10.12**  Distribution Agrcement dated as of March 9, 2004 by and between ACCO Brands, Inc.
through its Kensington Technology Group, and Medis Technologies Ltd. (9)

10.13 Summary of Material Lease Terms to Lod, Israel Facility(10)

10.14**  Product and Manufacturing Development Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2004, between
Medis Technologies Ltd. and Flextronics International Ltd. (11)

10.15 Agreement dated May 5, 2003 between Medis Technologies Ltd. and General Dynamics C4
Systems, Incorporated (12)

10.16*%*  Distribution Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2004, between ASE International Inc. and
Medis Technologies Ltd. (13)

10.17**  Distribution Agreement, dated as of August 3, 2004, between Superior Communications and
Medis Technologics Ltd. (14)

10.18* Consultancy Agreement dated as of July 1, 2002 between More Encrgy Ltd. and JSW
Consulting Inc. (12)

51




10.19* Special Personal Employment Contract dated as of July 15, 2002 between Medis El Ltd. and
Yaakov Weiss (12)

10.20 Purchase Order from ASE International, Inc. and Acceptance Letter of Medis Technologies
Ltd. (15)

10.21 Amcndment to Agreement dated April 5, 2001 betwcen Medis Technologics Ltd. and
General Dynamics C4 Systems, Incorporated, dated May 30, 2005 (15)

10.22*%*  Letter of Agreement for Design Scrvices dated as of May 6, 2005 between More Encrgy
Limited and Celestica Ireland Limited (15)

10.23**  Capital Equipment Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 15, 2005, between Medis
Technologies Ltd. and Ismeca Europe Automation S.A. (16)

10.24**  Agreement for Manufacture, dated as of September 27, 2005, between More Energy Ltd.
and Celestica Ireland Limited and guaranty by Medis Technologies Ltd. (16)

10.25 Letier Agreement, dated January 31, 2006, between Medis Technologics Ltd. and Bank of
America (17)

10.27 Consultancy Agreement between HT Consultants, Inc. and More Encrgy Litd., dated as of
January 1, 2003 (18)
10.28 Business cooperation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2006, betwecen More

Energy Ltd. and Oy Hydrocell Ltd. (19)

10.29**  Cooperation Agreement dated October 18, 2006 by and between More Energy, Ltd. and
[srael Aircraft Industries, Ltd. (20)

10.30**  Distribution Agrecement dated October 29, 2006 by and between Medis Technologies Ltd.
and Quasar Business Solutions. (20)

10.31 Registration Rights Agreement, dated November 15, 2006, by and between the Registrant
and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (21)

10.32 Memorandum of Understanding dated July 31, 2007 between Founder Technology Group
Corp. and More Energy Ltd. (22)

10.33 Equity Distribution Agreement dated November 26, 2007 between the Registrant and UBS
Securities LLC (23)

10.34 Form of stock option agreement (employee) (24)

10.35 Form of stock option agreement {non-¢mployee) (24)

10.36 Form of restricted stock agreement {(employee) (24)

10.37 Form of restricted stock agreement {non-employee) (24)

14.1 Code of Ethics (9)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasicrer, a Member of Ernst & Young Global
31.1 Ruie 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 certifications

*Management contract or compensatory plan
**Portions of this document have been omitied and submitted separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant
1o a request for “Confidential Treatment.”

(1) Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2006 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 18, 2007 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit 1o the Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2006 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

4) Fited as an exhibit to the Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004 of Medis
Technologies Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 29, 2005 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and

incorporated herein by reference.
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®)

©)

(10)
(1
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
@)
@2)
(23)

24

Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2600 of Medis Technologies
Lid. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-73276), of Medis
Technologies Ltd, and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 of Medis Technologies
Lid. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 of Medis Technologies
Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an cxhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of Medis Technologies
Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 of Medis Technologies
Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 of Medis Technologies
Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an cxhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 10, 2004 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 5, 2004 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 of Medis Technologies
Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an ¢xhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended September 30, 2005 of Medis
Technotogics Ltd. and incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 2, 2006 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein. .

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on From 10-Q dated March 31, 2006 of Medis Technologics Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 5, 2006 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and incorporated
by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2006 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form $-3 (File No. 333-140508) of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an ¢xhibit to the Current Report on Form §-K dated August 2, 2007 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 28, 2007 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein,

Filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated June 30, 2007 of Medis Technologies Ltd. and
incorporated by reference herein.

() Financial Statement Schedules.

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Dated: March 17, 2008 MEDIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD.

By:_ /s/ROBERTK. LIFTON
Robert K. Lifton
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/8/ ROBERT K. LIFTON Chairman and March 17, 2008
Robert K. Lifton Chief Executive Officer,

Secretary and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/$/ HOWARD WEINGROW Deputy Chairman, Chicf March 17, 2008

Howard Weingrow Operating Officer and Treasurer
and Director

/8/ ISRAEL FISHER Senior Vice President-Finance March 17, 2008
Israel Fisher and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Ofticer)
/8! JACOB WEISS President and Director March 17, 2008
Jacob Weiss
/S/ MICHAEL S. RESNICK Senior Vice President and Chief March 17, 2008
Michael S. Resnick Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
/S/ AMOS EIRAN Director March 17, 2008
Amos Eiran
/8! ZEEV NAHMONI Director March 17, 2008
Zeev Nahmoni
/s/ JACOB E. GOLDMAN Director March 17, 2008

Jacob E. Goldman

/8/ PHILIP WEISSER Director March 17, 2008

Philip Weisser
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/8/{ MITCHELL H. FREEMAN Director

Mitchell H. Freeman

/S/ STEVE M. BARNETT Director

Steve M. Barnett

/8/ DANIEL LUCHANSKY Director

Daniel Luchansky
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Ell ERNST&YOUNG

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Medis Technologies Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Medis Technologies Ltd. (a Delaware
corporation) and its subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principies used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of at the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B-14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), "Share Based Payment,” effective January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission and our report dated March 17, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

ot/ o, ool

Tel Aviv, Israel KOST FORER BBAY & SIERER
March 17, 2008 A MEMBER OF ERNST & Y G GLOBAL
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Medis Technologies Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in U.S. dollars)

December 31,

2006 2007
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ..........ccceeiri e $ 31,803,000 $ 16,626,000
Short-term investments (Note C) oo 30,504,000 1,160,000
Restricted cash and deposits (Note D) .o — 5,700,000
Inventories (Note B} e — 8,809,000
Prepaid expenses and other Current assets .........coovvorrirsreesicrnns 8,257,000 3,305,000
TOtal CUTTENE ASSEIS ...vii ettt esias 90,564,000 35,600,000
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note F) oo 27,318,000 61,703,000
Severance pay fUnd ............o.ooooe oo 1,265,000 1,677,000
Intangible assets, net (NOte Gl.oviovveeveeeeenieeeee e 256,000 48,000
GOOAWILL (et ettt 58,205,000 58,205,000
Ol BSSELS rr oo S_177.608000  § 157,233,000
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
ACCOUNTS PAYADIC. ... .ot S 8,367,000 5 4,535,000
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Note H) ............. 2,996,000 3,340,000
Total current Habilities. ... ..oooveeeieeicieiceccc e 11,363,000 7,875,000
Other liabilities (NOLE 1) .o.ovvieccecee et 839,000 2,144,000
ACCTUEd SEVETANCE PAY ...vcrcversisrree e ssessereses s ssess e eeseeeansnees 1,730,000 2,223,000
Total LIabilities ........cco.cooeirivivmeeeieeeeee e 13,932,000 12,242,000
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note M)
Series A Preferred Stock, net, $.01 par value; $10,000
liquidation  preference per share; 10,000 shares
authorized; and 5,750 issued and outstanding at December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 (Note K).ooooooeevvveie e 53,240,000 53,240,000
Stockholders’ equity (Note L)
Common stock, $.01 par wvalue; 41,500,000 and
43,500,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,934,864 and
36,367,562 shares issued and outstanding at December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2007, respectively
{including 1,500,000 shares outstanding at December
31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 loaned to be
TEIUIMEA) cooiii ettt ene 349,000 363,000
Additional paid-in €apital ........oocceieveeiriecieecete e 286,865,000 310,494,000
Accumulated deficil . .........oooievicennicirceeeceeseee e ( ] 765778a000) (2 1 97] 065000)
Total stockholders’ eqUIty .......coovvveeeerierecirerceceeeeeeeeeee s 110,436,000 91,751,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity..................c....... S 177,608,000  § 157,233,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Revenues (Note M-5)

Cost of Revenues

Gross profit

Medis Technologies Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in U.S. dollars)

Operaling expenses:
Research and development costs, net (Note M-5)..........
Selling, marketing, general and administrative

€XpeENSses.....

Amortization of intangible assets ...,
Total operating eXPenSesS. ...

Loss from operations

Interest income (expenses)
INEErest INCOMIE c..veevirvireerirre e oot

INIETESE EXPENSE c.ovvvirrririririeeesie e sia s

NET LOSS.
Dividend on preferred stock
Net loss attributable 1o common siockholders

Basic and diluted

net loss per share ...

Weighted-average number of common shares used in

computing basic and diluted net loss per share

Year ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
S 425,000 § 150,000 § 400,000
262,000 98,000 249,000
163,000 52,000 151,000
12,144,000 18,057,000 25,705,000
5,720,000 7,579,000 13,541,000
208,000 208,000 208,000
18,072,000 25,844,000 39,454,000
(17,909,000) (25,792,000) (39,303,000)
973,000 2,517,000 2,331,000
(1,614,000) (9,772.000) (1,228,000)
(641,000) (7.255,000) 1,103,000
(18,550,000) (33,047,000) (38,200,000)
— — (4,128,000)
S (18,550,000) S (33,047,000) $ (42,328,000)
$ (68) S (1.08) § (1.26)
27,423,568 30,916,848 33,554,298

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Medis Technologies Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Balance at December 31,2004 .............
Net loss ..
Issuance of' common stouk purquam to
private placements, net..........ccooeeee
Proceeds allocated to  benceficial
conversion features on  Senior
Convertible Notes .....oooovecvvveeveeenne
Exercise of stock warrants ..
Exercise of stock options.........cvceennee,
Stock options granted to dlru.:ors .........
Stock options and warrants granted to
CONSUNANTS oo

Balance at December 31, 2005 .............
Net 1085 i
Exchange of Senior Convertible notes

for common stocks ..o
Exercise of stock warrants ..
Exercise of stock options......
Consideration  for sharc lending

BETCCMCNL...eooecveecirce e
Stock-based payments to employees....
Stock-based  payments o non-

EMPlOYCES coeverererieier e e

Balance at December 31, 2006 ...
Net loss ...
Dmdend on prchrrcd stock ..................
Exercise of stock warrants ..
Exercise of stock options ... .
Essnance of common stock pursuant to
public offering, net..

Restricted stock... .
Stock-based paymcms to cmployccs
Stock-based payments to non-employees

Balance at December 31, 2007 ...........

(in U.S. dollars)

Common Stock Total

Additional Paid- Accumulated Stockholders’

Shares Amount in Capital Deficit Equity
27,016,819 $ 270,000 S 198,774,000 S (125,181.000) $ 73,863,000
— —_ — (18,550,000} (18,550,000)
133,543 2,000 1,698,000 — 1,700,000
— — 267,000 — 267,000
422,628 4,000 4,006,000 — 4,010,000
399,500 4,000 3,019,000 — 3,023,000
— — (24,000} — (24,000)
— — 1,088,000 - 1,088,000
27,872,490 280,000 208,828,000 {143,731,000) 65,377,000
— — — (33,047,000) (33,047,000)
3,101,874 31,000 54,488,000 — 54,519,000
25,000 — 134,000 — 134,000
2,335,500 23,000 20,416,000 — 20,439,000
1,500,000 15,000 — — 15,000
— — 2,900,000 — 2,500,000
_— — 99,000 — 99,000
34,934,864 349,000 286,865,000 (176,778,000) 110,436,000
— — — (38,200,000 (38,200.000)
—_— — — (4,128,000 (4,128,000)
4,500 — 65,000 — 65,000
14,0600 — 193,000 — 193,000
1,314,198 13,000 16,808,000 — 16,821,000
100,000 1,000 641,000 — 642,000
— — 5,774,000 — 5,774,000
— — 148,000 — 148,000
36,367,562 $ 363,000 $ 310,494,000 $ (219,106,000) $ 91,751,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Medis Technologies Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in U.S. dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities

INEE 0SS et s s se e e s b e s ree e s snanereesreeeeenas

Year ended December 31,

2005

2006

2007

$ (18,550,000)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in

operating aclivities

Depreciation and amortization of property and

CQUIPINENL coiviiiiris et ne e eaeeeees
Amortization of intangible assets........ccccoooienn

Amortization of debt issuance costs and changes in

fair value of Oplion ...,

Amortization of beneficial conversion feature on

Senior Convertible Notes ........cooeeeeicieeecieene

Non-cash stock based compensation and restricted

SHAFES EXPENSE...ocv ettt

$ (33,047,000)

$ (38,200,000)

Unrealized loss on short-term investment ........c.ccoeeeeeee. —

Value of shares issued as inducement in Senior

Convertible Notes exchange............ccocoeeiei
Interest receivable on restricted cash........cceueeene
Purchase of in-process research and development

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

INVENLOMIES ..ot st
Allowance for inventory obsolescence .............
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ................
Accounts payable ...

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Leasehold incentive obligations, net........c.c.......
Accrued severance pay, Net..........viininnn,

Net cash used in operating activities............

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures.................

Investment in short-term iNvesIMER(S ....c.ccevevvvervens
Redemptions of short-term invesiments...................
LONZ-1ETIN NOIES ...vviuvivinvrinisininnsneerereseeeeenesneereres
Investment in restricted cash and deposits ..............
Investment in early-stage company........c..ccocovevreenas

Redemptions of restricted cash ........ooooiviiiniiinenns
Net cash used in investing activities .............

{Statement of Cash Flows Continued on next page)

871,000 1,539,000 3,262,000
208,000 208,000 208,000
231,000 (166,000) —
27,000 240,000 —
1,064,000 2,999,000 6,564,000
— 840,000
—_ 8,266,000 —
— — (302,000)
....... — — 50,000
— — (9,197,000)
— — 388,000
(550,000) (5,573,000) 2,856,000
212,000 2,441,000 (139,000)
(56,000) 314,000 (564,000)
(4,000) (92,000) (276,000)
112,000 (4,000) 81,000
(16,435,000)  (22,875,000)  (34,429,000)
(4,953,000)  (16,724,000)  (38,039,000)
(54,000,000)  (40,419,000)  (58,780,000)
40,500,000 23,415,000 87,284,000
(62,000) — —
—_ — (6,838,000)
— — (50,000)
— — 1,440,000
(18,515,000)  (33,728,000)  (14,983,000)
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Medis Technologies Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(continued)

(in U.S. dollars)

Cash flows from financing activities
{ssuance cost on Series A preferred stock ...
Dividend on Series A Preferred Stock......ooovvvevivevieeeenen.
Proceeds from issuance of common stock pursuant to

a public Offering, Nel.......occoeer e
Proceeds from issuance of common stock pursuant to

private placement .........ccocvriiiiiini e
Proceeds from issuance of Series A Preferred Stock........
Issuance costs on Series A Preferred Stock....ooovvvieeenn..
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ........c.cveevrvinierens
Proceeds from exercise of stock warrants ............occvevvenne
Proceeds from share landing agreement..........occoovevireennne
Proceeds from issuance of Senior Convertible Notes.......
Proceeds allocated to beneficial conversion feature on

Senior Convertible Notes ........c.oovveviiiiiiieieceeeeens
Debt issuance costs on Senior Convertible Notes.............

Net cash provided by financing activities.........cc.ocovcvevnnens

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year....................

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ........ocoocevvvevrnnnn,
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:

INMEEIEST .o

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Capital expenditure included in accounts payable
Prepaid expenses charged to property, plant and
Option exercise — cash received subsequent to
Issuance cost payable relaled to Series A Preferred
Prepaid expenses pursuant to a rights offering in
Exchange of Senior Convertible Notes for common

stock:
Face value of notes exchanged

Year ended December 31,

2003 2006 2007

— — (26,000)
— — (4,128,000}

— — 16,951,000

1,700,000 — —

— 57,500,000 —

— (3,884,000) —

2,936,000 19,346,000 1,373,000

4,010,000 134,000 65,000

— 15,000 —

48,733,000 — —

267,000 — —

(3,159,000 — —_—

54,487,000 73,111,000 14,235,000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ............ 19,537,000 16,508,000 (35,177,000)
15,758,000 35,295,000 51,803,000

$ 35295000 § 51,803,000 § 16,626,000

S 651,000 $ 1,470,000 $ —

and accrued liabilities .....ccooovvvviviicicsir e, $ 127,000 $ 4,785,000 $ 1,092,000
Capilal 188SE ..vveeiceiceiecev et $ — 5 —  § 2,230,000
EQUIPIMEII .ottt eeene s 3 — 3 — % 1,071,000
balance sheet date .........ooviier e eecreeesessereirees 3 87,000 $ 1,180,000 $ —
1] T b — % 26,000 8 —
SUDSIAIAIY ..o 8 — % — % 155,000
Issuance costs on public offering ... b —  § — 8 130,000
3 —  § 49,000,000 § —

5 — % (2,747,0000 % —

Deferred issuance costs on noles charged Lo capital

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE A—NATURE OF BUSINESS AND GENERAL MATTERS

Medis Technologics Ltd. (“MTL”), a Delaware corporation, is a holding company, which through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Mcdis El Ltd., More Energy Ltd. and Cell Kinetics Ltd (collectively, with MTL the
“Company”), designs, develops and markets innovative liquid fuel cell solutions principally for the mobile
handset and portable consumer clectronics markets. Cell Kinetics Ltd (“CKL”) is also seeking to exploit
commercially an improved Cell Carrier which is considered to be the nucleus of the CellScan system. This
unique cell carricr can accommodate large quantitics of cells, each in individual wells, for measuring reactions
of living cells while the ceils are in a static state for a considerable period of time. Upon the completion on
January 7, 2008 of CKL's nghts offering to MTL sharcholders, MTL’s beneficiary ownership in CKL was
reduced from 100% to approximatcly 82.5%.

Since inception, the Company has not recorded significant revenues from the sale of its products and has
incurred operating losses. Accordingly, the Company has relied on extcrnal financing, principally through the
sale of its stock and issuance of convertible notes and preferred stock, to fund its activities. The Company
believes this dependence will continue unless it is able to successfully complete the development and the
marketing of its technologics.

In November and December 2007, pursuant to a November 26, 2007 Equity Distribution Agreement
with an investment banker (the “Agrcement”™), MTL sold an aggregate of 1,314,198 shares of its common stock
for proceeds of approximately $17,692,000, less issuance costs aggregating approximately S$S871,000.
Additionally, from January 1 through March 14, 2008, the Company sold an additional 929,685 shares of its
common stock, pursuant to thc Agrcement, bringing the aggregate proceeds through March 12 to approximately
$28,894,000, less issuance costs aggregating approximatcly $1,208,000 (sce Note L).

NOTE B—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.  The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, applicd on a consistent basis, arc as follows:

. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MTL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been climinated in consolidation.

2. Cask and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of threc months
or less when purchased.
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NOTE B—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3. Short-term Investmentis

The Company accounts for investments in marketable securities in accordance with SFAS No. 113,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.”

Commercial paper with maturities of more than three months and less than one year are designated as
held-to-maturity debt securities.

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments in auction-rate securities and
commercial paper debt sccuritics at the time of purchase and rcevaluates such determinations at each balance
sheet date.

The interest rate on auction rate securities resets monthly in an auction process and the Company may
redeem the securitics at face value at any such interest resetting data. Accordingly, although the maturity dates of
such securities are beyond onc ycar from the date of purchase, the Company has classificd its investments in
auction rate securities as available for sale marketable securities. See Note-C for fair market value of auction rate
securities at December 31, 2007.

4. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Inventory revenues are provided to cover risk
from obsolescence or when market prices arc lower than cost.

Cost is determined as follows:
a. Raw materials and components — average cost basis.

b. Finished products — average production costs including raw materials, labor and direct and
indirect manufacturing costs.

The amount of inventory obsolescence recorded as research and development costs during the year
ended December 31, 2007, was $388,000.

5. Use of Estimates

In preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, management is required to makc cstimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying value of alt financial instruments potentially subject to valuation risk (principally
consisting of cash and cash equivalents, short-tcrm investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and

accrued expenses and other current liabilities) approximates their fair value due to the short term maturities of
such instruments.
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NOTE B—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7. Translation of Foreign Currencies

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries have been prepared in U.S, dollars, as the dollar is their
functional currency. A substantial portion of the foreign subsidiaries financing and costs are incurred in dollars.
The Company’s management believes that the dollar is the primary currency of the economic environment in
which the foreign subsidiaries operate.

Accordingly, monctary accounts maintained in currencies other than the dollar arc remeasured into U.S.
dollars in accordance with SFAS No. 52 “Foreign Currency Translation”. All transaction gains and losses of the
remcasured, monetary balance sheet items are reflected in the statement of operations as financial income or
expense, as appropriatc and werc immaterial to date.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment, net

a. Property, plant and equipment is statcd at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization,

b. Materials, payroll and other costs that are direct incremental costs necessary to bring an asset to
the condition of its intended use incurred during the construction are capitalized to the cost of
such assets.

c. Interest costs are capitalized in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost” (“SFAS
34M).

d. Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment on the straight-line basis over the
cstimated uscful lives of such assets. Annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Useful Lives In Years

Machinery and equIpMEnt..........c.ooooeeiiiiiieieieieeeeee e, 5-12 {mainly 7)
COIMPULETS ..ottt sttt se et s e sme e st e s e e e arasaenas 3

Furniture and office equipment.........c.cooveiiiineccoenniinreeene, 15

Leaschold improvements ............ccccooiiiiiaiieiiieeeee e, Over the shorter of the

term of the lease or the
life of the asset

9. Capital Lease

The Company has accounted for a supplier’s investment in equipment and the Company’s obligation to
pay the supplier for his investment in accordance with EITF 01-8 “Determining Whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease” and SFAS 13 “Accounting for Leases™ and has recorded this arrangement as a capital lease.

10. Debt Issuance Costs

In accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 21, “Interest on Receivables and

Payables™ and EITF Issue No. 00-27, “Application of I[ssue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments” (“EITF
00-27"), the Company accounted for incremental and direct costs incurred related to the issuance of its Senior
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Convertible Notes as deferred charges which arc presented as long-term assets and amortizes such amounts
using the effective interest rate method over the original life of the Senior Convertible Notes.

11. Senior Convertible Notes

Senior Convertible Notes are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of EITF Issuc No. 98-5
“Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features” (“EITF 98-5), EITF 00-27”, EITF
Issuc No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a
Company’s Own Stock,” APB 14 “Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issucd With Stock Purchase
Warrants” and SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended
(“SFAS No. 133”). The Company recorded a beneficial conversion feature as a discount on the Senior
Convertible Notes and is amortizing such discount to interest expense using the effective interest ratc method
over the onginal life of the Senior Convertible Notes.

The Company accounted for its April and May 2006 exchange of all its outstanding Scnior Convertible
Notes for its common stock in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 84 “Induced
Conversion of Convertible Debt, an amendment of APB Opinion No. 26.

12. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company accounts for its derivative instruments and hedging activities based on SFAS No. 133.
SFAS 133 requires companies to recognize all of its derivative instruments on the balance sheet at fair value.
The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on whether the derivative
instrument qualifies and has been designated as a hedging instrument and, if it is a hedging instrument, on the
type of hedging instrument for which it qualifies.

During 2006, the Company entered into forward cxchange contracts in order to hedge the risk of
variability of cash flows related to its initial payment for the construction of its automated production line, which
is denominated in Swiss Francs, Gains and losses from such hedging activities for the year ended December 31,
2007 were immaterial and the Company included such amounts in its consolidated statcments of operations as
interest income or expense. The Company did not have any open forward exchange contracts at December 31,
2007.

13. Deferred revenues

The Company defers payments that were reccived in advance of the culmination of the earnings process.
Proceeds that are expected to be recognized as revenues within the next twelve months are included in accrued
expenses and other current liabilities. As of December 31, 2007, the Company has deferred revenucs aggregating
approximately $24,000 from the sale of Power Pack products. Sce Note B(17} for a discussion of deferred
revenues resulted from development agreements.

14. Stock-based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)™), and related Securities and Exchange Commission rules included in Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107, on a modified prospective basis. Under this method, compensation cost recognized
beginning January 1, 2006 include costs related to 1) all share-based payments (stock options and restricted
stock awards) granted prior to but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant-datc fair valuc
estimated in accordance with the original provisions of FAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”
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(“SFAS 1237), and 2) all share-based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005 based on the grant-
date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123(R). Compcnsation cost for stock
options is generally recogmized ratably over the vesting period.

The Company applies SFAS No. 123(R) and Emerging Issues Task Force No. 96-18 “Accounting for
Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling,
Goods or Services”(“EITF 96-187), with respect to options and warrants issued to non-employees. SFAS No.
123(R) and EITF 96-18 require the usc of option valuation models to measure the fair valuc of the options and
warrants at the measurement date.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company apphed SFAS 123, amended by SFAS 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which allowed companies to apply
the existing accounting rules under APB 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
Interpretations. In general, as the exercise price of options granted under these plans was equal to the market
price of the underlying common stock on the grant date, no stock-based employee compensation cost was
recognized in the net loss attributed to common stockholders for periods prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R).

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss attributed to common stockholders and net loss per
share, assuming that the Company had applied the fair value recognition provision of SFAS No. 123 on its stock-
based employee compensation during the year ended December 31, 2005:

Year ended
December 31,
2005

Net loss attributable to common stockholders for

the year as reported... ... e § (18,550,000)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation

expense (income) included in the reported

088, tr ittt bbb rreeear e s (24,000)
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value based

MEHO ..ottt (4,631,000)
Pro forma net loss attributable to common

shareholders........cooii e $ (23,205,000
Basic and diluted net loss per share as reported .............. $ (.68)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share................. h (.85)

The fair vaiue of each option granted is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year ended
December 31,

2005
Dividend yield ...oo.ooceeieneeiiniinceee e 0%
Risk-free interest rate........ocoooeieeeececnnceccnnecneeeenes 3.80%
Expected life in years.........ccooooiviniiincninnienncenn, 3.0
VOlatilily oo 70%
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The average fair valuc of each option granted in 2005 was $7.25. All options were granted at markct
price.

15. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assels

Goodwill and other purchased intangible assets have been recorded as a result of the Company’s
acquisitions, Goodwill is not amortized, but rather is subject to an annual impairment test. Other intangiblc
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the weighted average remaining uscful lives of approximately 3
months.

The Company is required to perform an impairment test of goodwill at least annually. The impairment
test shall consist of a comparison of the fair value of an intangible asset with its carrying amount. If the carrying
amount of an intangible assct exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss shall be recognized in an amount equal
to that excess. SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill to be tested for impairment at least annually or between annual
tests if certain events or indicators of impairment occur. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit
level by a comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, During 2005, 2006 and
2007, no impairment losscs were identified.

16. Long-Lived Assets

The Company’s long-lived asscts are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” whenever cvents or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Rccoverability of assets to
be held and uscd is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future undiscounted cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company wrote-off
the net book value of approximatcly $546,000 of certain softwarc and equipment that were no longer in use.
During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, no impairment losses have been identified.

17. Research and Development Costs and Revenue Recognition

Research and development costs are charged to operations as incurred.

From time to time, the Company has entered into Federal Government contractor-related fixed price,
best efforts, rescarch and development arrangements (hereafter, the “development agreements™).

The Company accounted for these contracts in accordance with the American Institute Certificd Public
Accountants (“AICPA”); “Audit and Accounting Guides/Audits of Federal Government Contracts” (the
“Guide”} and AICPA Statement of Position 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and
Certain Production-Type Contracts™ (“SOP 81-17).

A
In case where development agreements are in compliance with the Guide, the cost sharing proceeds are

recorded as offsets to research agjd devclopment costs as incurred.
o
For development agreements that are not in compliance with the Guide, amounts earned are recorded as

revenue and arc recognized in‘accordance with SOP 81-1. Fixed price contract revenues are recognized using
contract accounting under the completed contract method.  The Company believes that the usc of the completed
contract method is appropriate as the Company has little past experience that enables it to have the ability to
make reasonably dependable estimates of the extent of progress toward completion, contract revenues and
contract costs, Amounts billed and/or received where revenue recognition criteria (delivery has occurred,
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, collection of the related
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receivable 1s probable and no further obligations exist) have not been fully met, and thus the revenue is not yet
earned, are reflected as liabilitics and arc offset against the related receivable.

18. Net Loss Per Share

The Company computes nct loss per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share”
(“SFAS No. 128”). Under the provisions of SFAS No. 128, basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the
net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted nct loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for the period by the weighted-average number of
common shares plus dilutive potential common stock considered outstanding during the period. Since the
Company generated net losses in all periods presented, potentially diluted securities, comprised of incremental
common shares issuable upon the exercise of warrants and stock options, convertible notes and convertible
preferred stock, arc not reflected in dituted net loss per share because such shares are antidilutive. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, the Company applied the two-class method as required by EITF No. 03-6,
“Participating Securitics and the Two-Class Mcthod” under FASB Statement No. 128, Earnings Per Sharc”
(“EITF No. 03-6"). EITF No. 03-6 requires that the income per share for each class of stock be calculated
assuming that 100% of the Company’s carnings arc distributcd as dividends to each class of stock based on their
contractual rights, In compliance with EITF No. 03-6, the shares of Preferred Stock do not participate in losscs
and, therefore, are not included in the computation of net loss per share.

The total number of shares excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share related to financial
instruments that potentially can be converted to or exercised for shares of the Company’s common stock
aggregated approximately 6,171,870, 4,977,028 and 2,118,910 as of December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007
respectively. The shares excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share for December 31, 2007
include shares issued pursuant to a share lending agreement.

19. Severance Pay

The liability of the Company’s subsidiarics in Isracl for severance pay, which compriscs the Company’s entire
severance pay obligation, is calculated pursuant to Isracli scverance pay law based on the most recent salary of
the employees multiplicd by the number of ycars of employment, as of the balance sheet date. Employces are
entitled to one month’s salary for cach ycar of cmployment or a portion thercof. The liability for all of its
employees in Isracl is fully provided by an accrual and by monthly deposits with insurance companies and other
financial institutions. The deposited funds include profits accumulated up to the balance sheet date. The
deposited funds may be withdrawn only upon the fulfillment of the obligation pursuant to Isracli severance pay
law or labor agreements. The valuc of these deposited funds is recorded as an asset in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets.

Severance cxpenscs for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 amounted to approximately
$533,000, $340,000 and $603,000, respectively.

20. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” (*SFAS No. 1097). SFAS No. 109 prescribes the use of the
liability method whereby deferred tax asset and liability account balances are determined based on differences
between financial reporting and tax bascs of asscts and liabilities and arc measured using the enacted tax rates
and laws that will be in cffect when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company provides a valuation
allowance, if nccessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to their estimated realizable value.
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN 48”). FIN 48 defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positions in the financial
statcments as “more-likely-than-not” to be sustained by the taxing authority. The rccently issued literature also
provides guidance on derecognition, measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties, along with any
related interest and penaltics. FIN 48 also includes guidance concerning accounting for income tax uncertainties
in interim periods and increases the level of disclosures associated with any income tax uncertainties. Pursuant to
the provisions of FIN 48, the differences between the amounts recognized in the statements of financial position
prior to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts reported after adoption would be accounted for as a
cumulative-effect adjustment recorded to the beginning balance of retained carnings. FIN 48 is effective for
fiscal ycars beginning after December 15, 2006.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48. The Company files U.S.
federal income tax returns and Isracli income tax returns, as well as income tax returns for New York State and
New York City. The Company may be subject to examination by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and the New
York State and New York City revenue authorities from inception of operations due to net operation loss carry
forwards generated in past ycars. The Company may also be subject to examination by the Israeli tax authoritics
for the years 2003 through 2006,

The adoption of FIN 48 and its subsequent application has not had a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

21. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments are invested in banks, money market funds with major intcrnational financial
institutions, commercial paper and auction rate sccuritics.

Such cash and cash equivalents and short—term investments in the United States may not be insured or
may be excess of insured limits and insurance in other jurisdictions varies. Management belicves that the
Company’s cash and cash equivalents are financially sound are minimal credit risks exist. Recent uncertainty in
credit markets has adversely impacted the Company’s ability to convert its only short-term investment in an
auction rate security at December 31, 2007, notwithstanding the AAA credit rate of the security (see Note C).

In 2005 and 2006 all revenues were derived from agreements with General Dynamics C4 Systems, Inc.
In 2007, all revenues were derived from an agrecment with Israel Aerospace Industries Ltd. (Sce Note M-5).

22, Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements in the United States

In June 2007, the Emerging Issucs Task Force of the FASB (“EITF”) reached a conscnsus on Issue No.
07-3, Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services Reccived for Use in Future
Rescarch and Development Activities (EITF 07-3). EITF 07-3 requires that non-rcfundable advance payments
for goods or scrvices that will be used or rendered for future research and development activities should be
deferred and capitalized. The deferred amounts would be recognized as an expense as the related goods are
delivered or the services are performed, or when the goods or services are no longer expected to be provided.
This pronouncement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2007 and earlier application is permitted. EITF 07-3 is to be applied prospectively for ncw contracts entered into
on or after the effective date. The adoption of this pronouncement is not cxpected to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Valuc Mcasurements (“SFAS No. 1577). This
statement provides a single definition of fair value, a framework for measuring fair value, and cxpanded
disclosurcs concerning fair value. Previously, different definitions of fair value were contained in various
accounting pronounccments creating inconsistencies in measurement and disclosures. SFAS No. 157 applies
under those previously issued pronouncements that prescribe fair value as the relevant measure of value, except
SFAS No. 123(R) and related interpretations. The statements does not apply to accounting standard that require
or permit measurement similar to fair value but are not intended to measure fair value. This pronouncement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,

On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, Effective Datc of FASB
Statement No. 157 (the FSP). The FSP amends FASB Statement No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (Statement
157}, to delay the effective date of Statement 157 for non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for
items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least
annually). For items within its scope, the FSP defers the effective date of Statement 157 to fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Asscts and
Financial Liabilities™ (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measure certain financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value. The standard requires that unrealized gains and losses on items
for which the fair value option has been elected be reported in carnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for the
company beginning in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, although eartier adoption is permitted. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS No. 159 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE C—SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
Short-term investments at December 31, 2006 and 2007, are comprised as follow:

December 31,

2006 2007
COMMETCIA] PAPETS...c.vecveiniereeire et et e enes S 16,234,000 § —
AUCHON TALE SECUTILIES 11eeviviesereeeeisiseceeeeereesememsrrsesesesr i traesssseseessrsnennes 14,250,000 1,160,000

S 30,504,000 § 1,160,000

As of December 31, 2007, the Company’s short-term investments of $1,160,000 represent an AAA rated
auction rate secunty with a face value of $2,000,000. Recent uncertainties in the credit markets have resuited in
unsuccessful auctions, since the third quarter of 2007, for such security. The interest on this auction rate security
continues to be paid monthly at an increased rate.

The Company examined the value of the auction rate security in the failed auction and assessed it for
impairment in accordance with FAS 115 and FASB Staff Position FAS 115-1/124-1, “The Meaning of Other-
Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments”. Since the Company believes that the
subscquent failed auctions and the continuing decline in the bids from the ultimate debtor are reflecting an
impairment of the underlying asscts sccuring the auction rate sccurity at the balance shect date, the Company
recorded, based on the most current bids, a valuation reserve of $840,000 on such auction rate security.
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In addition, since the Company has no certainty about its ability to hold the auction ratc sccurity until
recovery, if such will occur, its current classification, as short term, seems to continue to be appropriate.

The interest rate on the Company’s auction rate security held on December 31, 2006 and 2007 was 5.3%
and 5.47%, respectively.

NOTE D—RESTRICTED CASH AND DEPOSITS

As of December 31, 2007, thc Company’s consolidated balance shect includes restricted cash and
deposits aggregating approximately $5,700,000, which represents amounts held on deposit with banks as
security for letters of credit and guarantees issued by such banks primarily to Company supplicrs. Included in
such amount is a one year time deposit in the amount of $4,560,000, which was issucd in January 2007 as
security for a stand by letter of credit provided by the bank to a supplier of equipment and components in order
to guaranty recovery of certain investments by the supplier - principally in equipment to be used exclusively in
the manufacture of components for the Company 24/7 Power Pack. Under the terms of a purchase agreement,
title to the equipment covered by the stand by letter of credit will pass to the Company upon full recovery of the
cost of such equipment through purchases of components or draws against the letter of credit, based on formulas
set forth in the purchase agreement. Such letter of credit expires in March 2012 (sce Notc 1).

NOTE E—INVENTORIES
Inventories consists of the following:

December 31,

2006 2007
Raw materials and cOmpoOnents .........cocovvvevevneeie oo 3 — $ 7,830,000
FINIShed Z00MS .....cevirieriieinimee et eseseoe — 979,000
3 — $ 8,809,000

NOTE F—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property, plant and cquipment consists of the following:

December 31,

2006 2007

Machinery and eqQUIPIMENE..........cceiviireiveamiereeseserrererre e e S 25,901,000 3 62,203,000
COMPUIETS (it s et s se s sen e 1,739,000 1,625,000
Furniture and office eqUIPMENt ......ccoovrreririrr e 432,000 464,000
R 1 Tod = USRNSSR 20,000 —
Leasehold imProVEMENtS. .....o.oov..vvevceceiiee s ss et nsssnesans 3,570,000 3,752,000

31,662,000 68,044,000
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization...........cccvverecerirerenenens 4,344,000 6,341,000
Property and equipment, Met........ocooiiiiiiieeee e 5 27318000 S 61,703,000
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As of Deccember 31, 2007, the machinery and equipment include $2,230,000 cquipment that was
accounted for as a capital lease obligation (sec note I). Accumulated depreciation and amortization at
December 31, 2007 includes $20,000 with respect to such machines.

In connection with the cstablishment of the Company’s production facilitics, as of December 31, 2006
and 2007, the Company had recorded property, plant and equipment aggregating approximately $18,056,000 and
540,815,000, respectively, which was not subject to depreciation. Materials, Payroll and other costs incurred
during the construction that are dircet incremental costs necessary to bring such assets to the condition of their
intended use are capitalized to the cost of such assets. These costs include capitalized materials of $4,489,000,
and capitalized labor and other costs totaling $1,101,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, and capitalized
labor of $232,000 and capitalized interest of $36,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. Capitalized labor of
$58,000 and capitalized interest of $28,000 were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2005, See Note M-6
for a commitment regarding thesc production facilitics.

Depreciation and amortization cxpensc on property and cquipment for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007 amounted to $871,000, $1,539,000 and $3,262,000 respectively.,

NOTE G—INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, the Company’s intangible assets consisted of goodwill and fuel ccll
technology intangible assets.

The following table summarizes the cost and related accumulated amortization for intangible assets that
are subject to amortization.

December 31,

2006 2007
Cost:
Fuel Cell technology assets.................oooeet, $ 1,045,000 § 1,045,000
Accumulated amortization ..........ccovvevivivnninnn. 789,000 997,000
5 256,000 § 48,000

The Company recorded amortization expense of $208,000 for the cach of the years ended December 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007. Based on the current amount of intangible assets subject to amortization, the cstimated
amortization expense for the year ending December 31, 2008 is $48,000.

The Company has also reassessed the useful hives of its other intangible assets previously recorded in
connection with ecarlicr purchasc acquisitions.

73




Medis Technologies Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE H—ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,

2006 2007
Employees and related liabilities ...........ccocoiimriiiciieieicecisses § 2,166,000 § 1,464,000
Current portion of obligation under a capital lease.......................... — 649,000
Deferred income and Deferred development agreements cost,

TIEL ..ot et r e et ea e e e et e e e s ab et s et et e ettt e b e e et beems et e e e e sreeean 185,000 469,000
ProfessiONal SETVICES ... iive e iceeeeeee et e ee e e eeeeeeeresbeesres s s esnneees 227,000 364,000
Issuance costs (Notes K, L) oo 26,000 130,000
Subcontractors and consultanis.................occoooiiiie e, 231,000 120,000
OEHET Lottt ee e e e enene 161,000 144,000

S 2,996,000 § 3,340,000

NOTE I—OTHER LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2007 the Company's other liabilitics include the long-term portion of capital lcase
obligation in the amount of $1,581,000. On January 12, 2007, the Company and onc of its suppliers of
equipment and components (the “Supplier”) entered to an agreement pursuant to which the Company will order
from the supplier and the supplier will sell to the Company certain components for the Company’s 24/7 Power
Pack. Furthermore, under the agreement, the supplier will invest in equipment to be used exclusively to
manufacture these components. Title to such equipment will pass to the Company upon full recovery of the cost
of such equipment through purchases of components. In order to secure the Company’s obligation to purchase a
sufficicnt amount of components to enable the supplicr to recover its investment, based on a formula included in
the agreement, the Company has provided a letter of credit to Filtertck (see Note D). In accordance to EITF 01-8
“Determine Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,” and SFAS 13 “Accounting for Leascs” the Company
has accounted for this arrangement as a capital lease and has rccorded the present value of future payments as
property equipment, with a corresponding amount as obligation under a capital lease.

The following summarizes the Company’s futurc minimum lease payments under its capital lease
obligation, as of Deccember 31, 2007:

2008 .. S 649,000
2009 s 1,165,000
2010 1ot 416,000
2,230,000
Less current portion ............occocoeeeeeueeeeevrervonnn, 649,000
Total long term debl........oooooorvirvv, S 1,581,000

NOTE J—SENIOR CONVERTIBLE NOTES
1. Issuance of Notes

In July and August 2005, the Company issued $49,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 6% Scnior
Convertible Notes (the “Notes™) due 2010 in a private placement, less issuance costs aggregating approximately
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$3,159,000 (scc below for a discussion of the exchange of the Notes for common stock). Interest on the Notes
was payable quarterly. The Notes were issucd at par. The Notes did not have the benefit of any sinking fund and
were convertible prior to maturity or redemption into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion
rate of 57.8035 shares per $1,000 principal amount of Notes (or an initial conversion price of $17.30 per sharc).
The Notes were callable by the Company after two years if the closing price of its stock for at Icast 20 trading
days within a period of 30 consecutive trading days immediatcly prior to the notification date of such redemption
exceeds $27.68, subject to adjustment. Of the total $49,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes issued,
$7,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes were issucd pursuant to the cxcercise in July 2005 of a 30-day
option that was granted to the initial purchaser (the “Note Option™) in connection with the issuance of the first
$38,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes. The remaining $4,000,000 aggregate principal amount of
Notes were issued and sold directly to a group of affiliated investors in a private placcment,

In accordance with APB No. 14, “Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock
Purchase Warrants,” EITF 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Sccurities with Beneficial Conversion Features or
Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios,” and EITF 00-27, “Application of Issuc No. 98-5 to Certain
Convertible Instruments™ (“EITF 00-277), $345,000 of the proceeds of the first $38,000,000 of Notes was
allocated to the Note Option, bascd on the relative fair values of the sccuritics at time of issuance. Amounts
allocated to the Note Option are accounted for as liabilitics as the Note Option is not indexed to the Company’s
own stock in accordance with EITF 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and
Potentially Settled In, a Company’s Own Stock” (“EITF 00-19") but instcad to a debt instrument. In addition, in
accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitics,” the Note
Option was evaluated and determined not be a derivative financial instrument as thc Note Option does not
provide for net settlement terms or for other means that could provide the holder with net settlement. The
carrying value of the Note Option of $345,000 was credited to the proceeds of the §7,000,000 of Notes issued
upon its exercise.

In accordance with EITF 00-27, the commitment datc for purpose of mecasuring the intrinsic value of a
conversion option in connection with the issuance of’ (a) the $38,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes is
the date the purchasc agreement for this amount was signed, (b) the $7,000,000 aggregatc principal amount of
Notes is the date the Note Option was excrcised, and (c) the $4,000,000 aggregatc principal amount of Notes, is
the date the offering of this amount was complcted. Beneficial conversion featurcs aggregating approximately
$267,000 were recorded on the $7,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes and the $4,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of Notes because the effective conversion prices of such Notes wcere lower than the fair value
of the Company’s common stock on the commitment dates. Therc was no beneficial conversion feature on the
first $38,000,000 aggregate principal amount of Notes. Prior to the exchange of the Notes described below, the
Company recorded intcrest expense from the amortization of the beneficial conversion features of approximately
$20,000.

As mentioned above, the Company incurred debt issuance costs totaling approximately $3,162,000 in
connection with the issuance of the Notes. In accordance with APB 21, “Interest on Receivable and Payables,”
the Company recorded the debt issuance costs as a deferred charge on its balance sheet and amortized, prior to
the exchange of the Notes described below, such costs based on the interest method over the original term of the
Notes.

2. Exchange of Notes

On April 26, 2006, the Company completed an exchange of its common stock for its outstanding Notes
whereby holders of $46,582,000 in principal amount of the Notes, exchanged their Notes for an aggregate of
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2,948,806 shares of the Company’s common stock. This number includes 256,201 shares of common stock,
valued at §30 per share, in licu of future intcrest payments had such Notes remained outstanding until their
maturity, after giving effect to an eighteen month waiver of such payments. On May 8, 2006, thc Company
completed a second exchange of its common stock for its outstanding Notes whereby holders of the remaining
52,418,000 in principal amount of the Notes, exchanged their Notes for an aggregate of 153,068 shares of the
Company’s common stock. This number includes 13,299 shares of common stock, valued at $30 per share, in
lieu of future interest payments had such Notes remained outstanding until their maturity, after giving cffect to
an cighteen month waiver of such payments. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 84 “Induced Conversion of Convertible Debt, an amendment of APB Opinion No. 26,” the Company
recorded financing charges related to the exchange transactions of approximately $8,491,000, which consists of
the value of the shares issued in licu of future interest payments of approximatcly $8,266,000, amortization of
the remaining balance of the beneficial conversion features of approximatcly $220,000 and out of pocket costs
incurred in connection with the exchange transactions. The Company recorded the remaining unamortized
balance of the debt issuance costs as of the dates of the exchanges of approximately $2,747,000 as a reduction to
additional paid-in capital.

NOTE K—SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK AND SHARE LEND
1. Series A Preferred Stock

In November and December 2006, the Company issued 5,750 shares of its 7.25% Series A Cumulative
Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock™) for aggregate gross proceeds of 557,500,000, lcss
issuance costs aggregating approximately $3,910,000. The annual cash dividend on cach share of Preferred
Stock is $725 and is payable quarterly, in arrcars, commencing on February 15, 2007, Each share of Preferred
Stock is convertible at the holder’s option at any time into 347.2222 shares of MTL’s common stock (which is
equivalent to an initial conversion price of $28.80 per sharc). On or after November 20, 2009, if the closing price
of the Company’s common stock excceds 150% of the conversion price for 20 trading days during any
consecutive 30 trading day period, the Company may causc the conversion of the Preferred Stock into common
stock at the prevailing conversion rate. The terms of the Preferred Stock preclude the Company from paying
dividends or making other distributions on its common stock if there arc any accumulated and unpaid dividends
on the Preferred Stock. Of the total $57,500,000 of Preferred Stock issued, $7,500,000 was issucd pursuant to
the excrcise of a 75-day option that was granted to the initial purchaser (the “Preferred Option™) in connection
with the 1ssuance of the first $50,000,000 of Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2007, the Preferred Stock had
not been rcgistered for resale with the SEC. Sce Note K-2 for discussion of concurrent offering of common stock
in connection with a share lending agreement.

From January 1 through December 31, 2007, the Company declared and paid quarterly cash dividends
aggregating approximately $4,128,000 on its Preferred Stock. In February 2008, subsequent to the balance sheet
date, the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend of approximately $1,042,000 on its Preferred Stock.

In accordance SFAS 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS150”)} and EITF D-98 “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable
Seccurities™ (“EITF D-98”) , thc Company has classified the net proceeds from the issuance of the Preferred
Stock outside of permanent equity. Proceeds of $1,024,000 from the initial 5,000 shares of Preferred Stock
issucd were allocated to the Preferred Option, based on the fair valuc of the Preferred Option at time of issuance.
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The amount allocated to the Preferred Option was accounted for as a liability, with changes in its fair value being
charged to interest income. In respect of the Preferred Stock, there is no beneficial conversion feature that
warrants separate accounting under EITF 00-27, “Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible
Instruments.”

2. Share Lend

On November 15, 2006, concurrcnt with the Company’s offering of its Preferred Stock the Company
issucd 1.5 million shares of its common stock in an offering registered under the Sccurities Act of 1933, The
shares of common stock issued were loaned to an affiliate of Citigroup Global Markets Limited (*CGML”} under
a 5-year share lending agrcement. The only consideration rcceived by the Company was a sharc lending fee of
$.01 per share, or an aggregate of $15,000, which has been included in Common Stock at December 31, 2006
and 2007. The loaned shares were used by CGML 1o promote the sale of the Preferred Stock by facilitating
hedging transactions that may be undertaken by purchasers of the Preferrcd Stock. The shares that the Company
has lent to the affiliate of CGML are reflected as issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2007. The
Company has determined that the share lending agreement is not a derivative instrument that would require
accounting separate from the Preferred Stock and, accordingly, has recognized the net effect on stockholder’s
equity of the 1,500,000 shares issued pursuant to the share lending agrcement, which includes the requirement
that the shares be retuned no later than November 20, 2011, equal to the $15,000 fee received upon lending of
the shares.

SFAS 150 provides that entities that have issued mandatorily redeemable shares of common stock or
entered into forward contracts that require physical settlement by repurchase of affixed number of the issuers
equity shares of common stock in exchange for cash shall exclude the common sharc to be redeemed or
repurchased in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share. Accordingly, the 1,500,000 shares of common
stock issued pursuant to the share lending agreement are excluded from the calculation of the Company’s basic
and diluted net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2007.

NOTE L—STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
1. Share Capital

Each stockholder is cntitled to one vote for each share of common stock owned by that stockholder on
all matters properly submitted to the stockholders for their vote. Stockholders owning or controlling more than
50% of the shares can elect all of the directors.

In November, 2007, the Company cntered into an Equity Distribution Agreement (“the Agreement™)
with UBS Securities LLC (“UBS™). The Agreement provides that the Company may offer and sell shares of its
common stock, par value $0.01 per share, having an aggregate offcring price of up to $35,000,000 (the “Shares”)
from time to time through UBS, as sales agent, Under the terms of the Agrecment, the Company may aiso sell
Shares from time to time to UBS as principal for its own account at a price to be agreed upon at the time of sale.
The terms of the Agrecment do not obligate the Company to sell any minimum number of Shares through or to
UBS. In November and December 2007, the Company issucd 1,314,198 shares of its common stock for
aggregate gross proceeds of $17,692,000 less issuance costs aggregating approximately $871,000. Additionally,
from January 1 through March 14, 2008, subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company issued pursuant to
the agrcement an additional 929,685 shares of its common stock for aggregate gross procceds of $11,202,000
less issuance costs aggregating approximately $337,000, bringing the aggregate proceeds through March 14,
2008 to $28,894,000, less issuance costs aggregating approximately $1,208,000.
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2. Stock Options Plans, Stock Options, Warrants and Restricted Stock

In 1999, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 1999 Stock Option Plan, and reserved
1,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance as stock options or stock appreciation rights pursuant to the plan.
The plan provides for the issuance of both incentive and nonqualified stock options. During the years ended
December 31, 2000 through December 31, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors and its stockholders at the
Annual Meetings of the Stockholders increased the number of shares of common stock reserved under the 1999
Stock Option Plan to an aggregate of 5,000,000 sharcs.

In 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the Company’s 2007 Equity Incentive Plan, and
reserved 1,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, restricted stock units and other stock-based awards pursuant to the plan.

As of December 31, 2007, there were outstanding options to purchase approximately 2,156,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock and 399,500 options were available for future grants pursuant the 2007 Equity
Incentive Plan.

In July, 2006, the Company granted options to purchase an aggregate of 706,500 shares of its common
stock to employecs, officers and directors of the Company. Such options are exercisable at $20.98 (the market
price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date), vest after onc year and expire after four years. The
Company estimated the fair value of those options, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, to be
approximately $6,512,000.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock based awards, accounted for in accordance with SFAS
123 (R}, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model for all grants made subsequent to January 1, 2006 using
the following weighted average assumptions for the ycar ended December 31, 2006:

Dividend yield ... 0%
Expected term (years) ......c.coovivveiiicinsiiinceenn, 3.20
Risk-free interest rate .........coovvervecnriininicinnn, 4.75%
Volalility . oo 60%
Forfeiture rate ..o 0.36%
Fair value at grant date .........ccccovvevinninnninnnnn, $9.46
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During the year ended on December 31, 2007, the Company granted options to purchase an aggregate of

775,000 shares of its common stock under 1ts 2007 Equity Incentive Plan to employeces, officers and dircctors of
the Company. The following table sets forth the tcrms of such grants:

Exercise Number of options Vesting period Expiration period

Grant Date Price* granted years years
January, 2007 $17.39 10,000 1.00 4.00
March, 2007 17.61 6,000 1.00 4.00
June, 2007 14.90 254,000 1.00 4.00
June, 2007 13.83 2,500 0.51 4.00
June, 2007 13.83 2,500 1.51 4.00
July, 2007 14.23 330,500 1.00 4.00
August, 2007 11.19 165,000 1.00 4.00
October, 2007 S13.15 4,500 1.00 4.00

775,000

* The market price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date.

The Company accounts for options granted to employces, officers and directors in accordance with
SFAS 123(R). SFAS 123(R) provides that share based compensation 1s based on the grant-date fair value
estimate and is recognized over the vesting term of the options, net of an cstimated forfeiture rate. Using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the assumptions sct forth below, the Company has estimated the
aggregate fair value of such options granted during the year ended Deeember 31, 2007 to be approximately
$4,725,000, less cstimated forfeitures of $56,000.

Dividend yield 0%
Expected term (years) 2.28-3.80
Risk-free interest rate 4.0%4.92%
Volatility 58%-61%
Forfeiture rate 0%-3.43%

In July, 2007, the Company granted options to purchase an aggregatc of 5,000 sharcs of its common
stock under its 2007 Equity Incentive Plan to a non-employee consultant. Such options are exercisable at $14.23
(the market price of the Company’s common stock on the grant date), vest in full upon grant and expire after
three years. The Company accounted for such options in accordance with SFAS 123(R) and EITF 96-18. Using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model assuming a 4.91% risk free interest rate, 0% dividend yield, expected
term of 3 years and 65% volatility, the Company has estimated the fair value of such options to be approximately
$33,000.

In July, 2007, the Company granted 50,000 sharcs of restricted stock under its 2007 Equity Incentive
Plan to each of its Chairman and Chicf Executive Officer and its Deputy Chairman and Chief Opceration Officer
(both of whom are Principal Stockholders of the Company). Such shares of restricted stock shall vest in full after
one year. The Company accounted for such shares of restricted stock in accordance with SFAS 123(R). Using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model assuming a 4.91% risk free interest rate, 0% dividend yield, expected
term of 1 year and 66% volatility, the Company has estimated the fair value of such shares of restricted stock to
be approximately $1,419,000.
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In June, 2007, the Company cntered into a Finder’s Fee agreement with The Brannock Group, LLC,
(“Brannock “) (the “Agrcement™), pursuant to which Brannock will advise and assist the Company with respect
to, identifying, locating, selecting and entering into manufacturing and/or distribution arrangements in China.
The Agreement provides for the Company to grant warrants to purchase 320,000 shares of Company’s common
stock to Brannock, in thrce tranches, subject to the achievement of specific milestones stipulated in the
agreement and at an cxercise price cqual to the last reported closing price per share on the date of the grant of
cach of such respective tranche. In August, 2007, the Company entered into memo of understanding that calls for
the introduction of the Company’s fucl cell Power Pack into the Greater China market (the “MOU”). Pursuant
to the terms of the Agreement, the first tranche of 20,000 warrants were granted to Brannock upon the entering
into of the MOU., Such warrants arc cxercisable at $11.37 (the market price of the Company’s common stock on
the grant date), vest in full upon grant date and expire after four years. The Company accounted for such options
in accordance with SFAS 123(R) and EITF 96-18. Using the Black-Scholes option pricing model assuming a
4.59% risk frec interest rate, 0% dividend yicld, cxpected term of 4 years and 61% volatility, the Company has
estimated the fair value of such options to be approximatcly $115,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recorded compensation costs related to such
grants of options, warrants and shares of restricted stock described above of §6,564,000. Such costs include
$5,470,000 which was rccorded as sclling, marketing, gencral and administrative expenses during year ended
December 31, 2007 and $1,093,000 which was recorded as research and development costs during the same
period.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded compensation costs of $2,999,000

related to such grants of stock options and warrants, of which $2,024,000 was recoded as selling, marketing,
general and administrative expense and $975,000 was rccorded as rescarch and development costs.
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The following table presents the Company’s stock option activity for employees, officers and directors
of the Company for the years ended Deccmber 31, 2005 through 2007:

Weighted
Number of Average
Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2004............coo.e. 3,026,000 S 9,24
Granted ........c.ooooeeeeeeeee e 473,500 14,93
EXercised ..o (372,500) 7.59
Forfeited or expired .........courvnrrrvrrrvrnereiseressisinnns (4,500) 14.09
Qutstanding at December 31, 2005..................... 3,122,500 $ 1029
Granted ... 706,500 20.98
EXErciSed c.cooovoceieeieeeee ettt escer st ne s (2,240,000) 8.55
Forteited or expired ..o {205,000) 16.53
Outstanding at December 31, 2006........ccccovveee. 1,384,000 $ 17.62
GIANIED ..o ieeeeeeeee et 775,000 13.86
EXercised .....oovvvivreninciece e (9,000) 13.70
Forfeited or expired ........c.ccccciviniiniiniinnn {(41,000) 16.67
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 2,109,000 $ 1627
Number of options exercisable at
December 31, 2007 ..o 1,341,000 § 17.66
Vesled and expected to vest at
December 31, 2007 sienens 2,099,000 S 16.29
Vesled and expected to vest at
December 31, 2000..........ccoveiiniiirciccnininns 1,381,792 5 176l
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The following table summarizes information about options to cmployees, officers and directors
outstanding at December 31, 2007 under the plans:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Remaining
Exercise Outstanding at contractual life Exercisable at

Price December 31, 2007 years Exercise prices December 31, 2007 Exercise prices
5 13.08 251,000 0.84 $ 13.08 251,000 S 13.08

14.83 405,000 1.66 14.93 405,000 14.93

20.98 682,500 2.55 2098 682,500 20.98

13.83 5,000 3.49 13.83 2,500 13.83

17.39 10,000 J.ol 17.39 — —

17.61 6,000 3.20 17.61 — —

14.90 254,000 343 14.90 — —

14.23 326,000 3.55 14.23 — —

11.19 165,000 3.6l 11.19 — —
$ 13.15 4,500 3.75 $ 1315 — —

2,109,000 1,341,000

As a result of adopting SFAS 123(R) on January [, 2006, the Company’s net loss is $6,416,000 and
$2,900,000 greater than if thc Company had continued to account for share-based compensation under
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 257} in the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Basic and diluted net loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 is $ (.19) and
$(.09), respectively, greater than it would have been if the Company had continued to account for share-based
compensation under APB 25,

As of Dccember 31, 2006 and 2007, there were unrecognized compensation costs of $3,571,000 and
$3,131,000, respectively, related to stock options that arc expected to be recognized in future periods.

The following table summarizes information about options and warrants granted to non-employees that
were outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007:

Options and Warrants Qutstanding and Exercisable

Remaining
Exercise Outstanding at contractual life

Price December 31, 2007 years Exercise prices
5 13.08 5,000 0.84 $ 13.08

12.30 20,000 0.80 12.30

14.93 17,000 1.66 14.93

14.23 5,000 2.55 14.23

14.93 30,000 1.67 14.93

16.87 12,000 1.67 16.87

14.46 3,000 1.97 14.46
S 1137 20,000 3.58 S 1137

112,000
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During the vear ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Company recorded costs related to the
issuance of stock options and warrants to non-employees of the Company of approximately, $1,088,000,
$99,000 and $148,000, respectively. The Company used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the
fair value of options granted to non-employees of the Company using the following assumptions:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2005 2006 2007
Dividend yield.......cooconcvivincinnnrcs 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate.......covvrvvvervvvrineniieeesenene 4.0% —4.4% 4.7% - 4.8% 4.59% - 4.91%
Expected term (Years) ..o.o.ccvevvvenvrneerrneenens 2.0-40 1.8-3.0 3.0-40
Volalilily ......................................................... 41% - 71% 58% — 59% 61% - 65%

During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 the Company granted options to purchase 60,000
and 80,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, respectively, to each of its Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and its Deputy Chairman and Chicf Operation Officer (principal stockholders of the Company).

See Notc B-14 for discussion of the pro forma effect of applying SFAS No. 123 to employee stock
options,

NOTE M—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND STRATEGIC AGREEMENTS
Commitments and contingent liabilities

1. CeliScan License — Medis El acquired the rights to the CellScan in August 1992 by assignment from
Isracl Aerospace Industries Ltd. (formerly know as Israel Aircraft Industries) (“[AI”) of a license from Bar llan
University (the “University”} to IAl. Medis El paid IAI $1,000,000 in consideration of the assignment of the
license and for certain tooling and equipment. The license is a perpetual worldwide license to develop,
manufacture and sell the CellScan, and to sublicense the right to manufacture and sell the device. The license
includes all rights to the University’s CellScan patents, know-how and inventions including any subsequently
acquired, and all improvements thercto. Medis El is obligated to pay the University a royalty for a twenty-year
period beginning in 1995. For the first ten ycars, the royalty is at the rate of 6.5% of proceeds of sales (after
deducting sales commissions and other customary charges) and 4.5% on any fees received from granting
territorial rights. The royalty for the second ten-year period is 3.5% on all revenues whether from sales or fees.
In addition to such royalty payments, the Company is required to grant $100,000 to the University during the
first year that thc Company’s after-tax profits exceed $300,000. On July 26, 2007, Medis El assigned all of its
intellectual property rights to the CellScan, including the Cell Carrier, CKL and delegated its royalty payment
commitments to CKL. No royalties were required to be paid during the three ycars ended December 31, 2007.

2. Other Rovalties — In consideration of grants by the State of Israel, Medis El is obligated to pay
royalties of 3% of sales of products developed with funds provided by the Statc of Israel until the dollar-linked
amount equal to the grant payments received by Medis El is repaid in full. All grants reccived from the State of
Isracl related to the CellScan and Neuritor technologies. Total grants received, net of royalties paid as of
December 31, 2002, aggregate $2,601,000 (of which $2,247,000 arc related to the Cellscan), which includes
those received by IAT relating to such technologics of $805,000. On July 26, 2007, in connection with its transfer
to CKL of its intellectual property rights to the CellScan, including the Cell Carrier, Medis El delegated its
royalty payment commitments to CKL. No royalties were required to be paid during the three years ended
Deccember 31, 2007,
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3. Lease Commitments — MTL’s office space is provided to MTL for an annual rental fee of
approximately $100,000, by a company which is controlled by the chairman and chief executive officer and by
the deputy chairman and chief operating officer of MTL. The sublease is on a month to month basis.

Medis El and More Energy are committed under leases for its facilities, which provide aggregate space
of approximately 56,100 square feet. The leases covering approximatcly 44.800 square feet of such facilities
have terms of up to five years until November 30, 2009 with two options of duration of 30 months each
extending to November 30, 2014. The lease covering approximately 2,600 squarc fect has a term of five years
until October 31, 2008. The lease covering approximately 4,900 square feet has a term of four years until April
10, 2010. The lease covering approximately 3,800 squarc feet has a term until February 28, 2009. Medis El has
collateralized its obligations under such leases up to an aggregate of approximately $496,000 by obtaining a
bank guarantee in favor of the lessor. Such guarantee is secured by Medis El's cash and deposits with the bank
from time to time.

Pursuant to the lease agreements for the facilities in Lod, Israel, the landlord agreed to reimburse the
Company for a specificd amount per square foot for leaschold improvements (the “Leasehold Incentives”). In
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases” and FTB 88-1,
“Issues Relating to Accounting for Leases”, the leasehold improvements are recognized in Property and
Equipment, with the corresponding reimbursement recognized as Leasehold Incentive Obligations. The amount
of the incentive, which aggregates approximately $1,292,000 from the inception of the leasc agrecements through
December 31, 2007, is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term as a reduction of rental
expenses. The leaschold improvements in property, ptant and cquipment are being amortized over the shorter of
lease terms or the estimated useful life of the asset. The Leasehold Incentive Obligations, net of amortization,
were reflected as an adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities in the consolidated
cash flow statcment.

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Company incurred expenses under its
facility leasc commitments in Isracl aggregating approximately $259,000, $387,000 and $551,000, net of
amortization of leasehold incentive obligations in 2005, 2006 and 2007 of approximately $204,000, $248,000
and $276,000, respectively.

In addition, the Company is committed under vehicle lease with various termination dates in 2007
through 2009,

Future minimum operating leasc (facility and vehicle) payments for the next three years and thercafter
are as follows:

Operating Leases

2008 e S 1,490,000

2009 e 1,029,000

2010 e 112,000
Total future minimum

lease payments..........oceeeeeeee. 3 2,631,600

4. Shareholder class action — On April 23, 2007, a putative class action was initiated against the
Company and its CEQ, among others. Thereafter, on September 10, 2007, plaintiffs filed the First Amended
Class Action Complaint (the “Amended Complaint™). The Amended Complaint essentially alleges that
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defendants violated Sections 10{b) and 20(a} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by issuing a false and
misleading press release on April 13, 2007 (the “April 13 Press Release™), stating that the Company had begun
“commercial sales” of “Microsoft-Branded” PowerPacks to Microsoft. The announcement is alleged to have
caused a temporary fluctuation in the stock price, causing the stock to trade from $ 18.29 to as high as $24.10 per
share before closing at $20.32 per share. Plaintiffs allege that the April 13 Press Relcase was misleading
because it failed to specifically state that the sale to Microsoft was for a small quantity and that Microsoft
intended to use the PowcrPacks as giveaways. Moreover, plaintiffs allege, the units were not Microsoft branded.
However, the April 13 Press Release explicitly conveyed the landmark importance of the sale to the Company
and the fuel cell industry, and the Company has vigorously denied any allegations of wrongdoing, standing by
the truth of its April 13 Press Release. Plaintiffs’ putative class includes thosc who “purchased the common
stock, call options, and/or sold put options of Medis for the time period April 13, 2007 through April 17, 2007.”

Discovery was stayed as per the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act, and on November 20, 2007,
defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint (the “Motion to Dismiss™), arguing that the First
Amended Complaint failed as a matter of law because it did not allege “scienter,” i.e., that defendants acted with
a culpable intent. Defendants argued, among other things, that plaintiffs could not allege any reason why the
defendants would seck to temporarily inflate the Company’s stock price. Plaintiffs opposed the Motion to
Dismiss on January 28, 2008, arguing, among other things, that scienter was properly pled because defendants
knew or should have known that they were misrepresenting material facts. Plaintiffs further asked the Court for
permission to cross move to strike certain cxhibits relied on by defendants and to convert the Motion to Dismiss
into one for summary judgment, lifting the stay of discovery. The Court denied Plaintiffs’ request, stating that it
would consider those issucs in due course when it ruled on the Motion to Dismiss. Defendants’ reply papers on
the Motion to Dismiss are due April 10, 2008.

The Company believes that the amended complaint is without merit and intends to continue to defend
the action vigorously.

Strategic Agreements

5. Fuel Cell Technology Cooperation Agreements — In April 2001, the Company entered into a
mutually exclusive agreement with General Dynamics C-4 Systems, Inc. (“GD”) to develop and market fuel
cells and fuel cell-powered portable electronic devices for the United States Department of Defense.

In May 2003, the Company entered into a second agrecment with GD to design and develop on a best
efforts basis a pre-production prototype of its fuel cell Power Pack for the ruggedized personal digital assistant
system that GD is developing for the U.S. military (the “Agrcement”). The total price for the Company’s
services provided for in the Agreement is $500,000, with an initial payment of $100,000 and the balance in
accordance with the payment and performance milestones established in the Agreement through January 2005.
At the outset of the agreement, the Company expected that it will bencfit from the development effort beyond
the scope of the Agreement and the associated development costs, which were expected to exceed the $500,000
to be reccived. The Company accounted for the Agreement as a fixed priced, best cfforts research and
development arrangement, and, as such, amounts received were deducted from research and development costs.
The Company teceived payments aggregating $500,000 from the inception of the Agreement through December
31, 2005. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, the Company recorded approximately $147,000
and $130,000, respectively, as a credit to research and devclopment expense, and from the inception of the
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agreement through December 31, 2005, the Company recorded $500,000 as credits to rescarch and development
expense related to the Agreement.

In August 2004, the Company received an additional order from GD to deliver five prototype fuel cell
Power Packs and associated cartridges as power sources for 10 prototype tablet computers in suppart of the
United States Air Force Wearable Computer Power Program. The order provided for 10 milestone payments of
$42,500 each through Scptember 2005, totaling $425,000. Since the payments from GD cxceed costs incurred in
connection with this agreement, the Company accounted for this agreement using contract accounting on a
completed contract basis. The Company made final delivery of the products under the order during the fourth
quarter of 2005 and recorded revenues of $425,000 and cost of revenues of $262,000.

In October 2005, the Company received a new order from GD, for further rescarch and analysis of
Company'’s fuel cell Power Packs, in the amount of $150,000. Since at the outset of this agreement the payments
from GD were expected to exceed costs incurred in connection with this agreement, the Company accounted for
the order using contract accounting on a completed contract basis. The Company made final delivery of the
products under the order during the third quarter of 2006 and recorded revenues of $150,000 and cost of
revenues of $98,000.

In October, 2007, the Company cntered into an additional agreement with GD to develop a 20 Watt fuel
cell power pack in support of the U.S. Department of Defense Wearable Power Compctition. Under the
agreement, the Company will design and develop a wearable power system for the individual soldier, to meet the
requirements set forth in the competition entry specifications. Pursuant to the agreement, GD is obligated to pay
the Company an aggregate of $500,000 over a period of approximatcly 11 months, in five payments based on the
completion of milestones. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company has billed and received
approximately $500,000, of which approximately $55,000 has been recorded as a credit to research and
development expense and $445,000 has been deferred as of December 31, 2007.

In October 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with 1Al, a principal stockholder of the
Company, to develop an 800 watt fuel cell to electrically power Unmanned Air Vehicle systems (UAVs). The
contract provides for two phases of activity. The first phase provides for the Company to develop a
demonstration system which would pass functionality tests and which can be demonstrated to be redesignable to
achieve the weight (6 kilograms) goals of the final system. The first phase is funded by IAI paying the Company
$400,000. The Company has accounted for the order using contract accounting on a completed contract basis.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company completed Phase 1 of thc contract and recorded
revenues of $400,000 and cost of revenues of $249,000.

In October 2006, the Company cntered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”} with two
Russian business groups, defining programs for the purchasc of the Company’s 24/7 Power Packs and ultimately
for those groups to establish a production line for the Company’s fuel cell products in Russia. The two groups
are: “ASPECT” - the Association for Advanced Technologies of Russia, and Tenzer MA, a Russian technology
company primarily operating in the area of complex safety and fire control systems and management and control
systems for major facilities such as nuclear power plants, The parties have established a detailed milestone based
program for the certification of the 24/7 Power Pack in Russia, its marketing and distribution in Russia and
finally the establishment of a full production assembly capability by Tenzor for the Russian market. The MOU
provides that after satisfactory completion of testing on UL certified units, Tenzor would purchase 10,000 24/7
Power packs from the Company’s semi-automatic line in Isracl to commence promotion and marketing of the
product in Russia. If the outcome of these promotional efforts are satisfactory to both partics, then the partics
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will move on to the next milestone which includes sales in Russia of 250,000 Power Packs per month and then
the establishment of a Power Pack assembly and fuel facility at the Tenzor plant capable of producing 1.5
million Power Packs per month. The transaction contemplates an investment by the Russian groups of
approximately $25 million to build the automated production linc in Russia and the purchase of certain
components, including framed clectrodes, power management and others from the Company. In addition to the
program relating to 24/7 Power Packs, the parties” MOU contemplates their cooperation in the development of
larger stationary fuel cells of approximately 2kW for development and sale in the Russian Federation. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company did not record any revenue or expense related to this MOUL

6. Automated Line Production Agreement — In September 2005, the Company entered into a Capital
Equipment Purchase Agreement with Komax Systems LCF SA (formerly know as Ismeca Europe Automation
SA). The Komax agreement calls for Komax to build an automated assembly line capable of producing up to 45
units per minute of operation, or 1.5 million units per month nct output, of Company’s fuel cell Power Pack
products. The Agreement, as amended, provides for the Company to pay Komax an aggregate of approximately
20,608,000 Swiss Francs (approximately $16,908,000 based on currency exchange rates in effect on payment
dates and on December 31, 2007) for constructing the line, which is to be operated at the Galway, Ireland facility
of Celestica. This amount may increase if the Company requests additional capabilities in the line. From the
inception of the agreement through December 31, 2007, the Company paid to Komax an aggregate of
approximately $15,554,000 (19,085,000 Swiss Francs). All such amounts are included in property, plant and
equipment as of December 31, 2007.

In September 2005, thec Company entered into a contract with Celestica, an international electronics
manufacturing services (EMS) firm, to manage thc Company’s high volume production line following its
installation at Celestica’s Galway, Ireland facility. This three-year agrcement provides for Celestica to operate
the line. Celestica will also operate the Company’s fuel production facility in the same location.

7. Distriburion Agreements — In March 2004, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with
Kensington Technology Group, a leading maker of computer accessories and a division of ACCO Brands, Inc.
Pursuant to the distribution agreement, among othcr things, thc Company has granted Kensington the limited,
exclusive right to market and distributc its Power Pack and other products using its fuel cell technology under
the Kensington and Medis brand names.

In August 2004, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with Superior Communications for
the distribution of the Company’s fucl cell Power Pack products through outlets not othcrwise covered by the
Company’s other distribution agrecments.

In August 2004, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with ASE International Inc. for the
distribution of the Company’s fuel cell Power Pack products through outlets not otherwise covered by the
Company’s other distribution agreements.

In July 2005, the Company announced that ASE International had issued to a purchase order to the
Company for delivery of 200,000 Power Packs a month for the first year of availability from its production and
400,000 Power Packs a month from the second year of production.

In October 2006, the Company entered into a worldwide distribution and commerce agreement with
Quasar Business Solutions Inc, a provider of software solutions for the enterprise market, to market and sell the
Company’s 24/7 Power Pack to the Business to Business, Business to Consumer and directly to the Enterprise
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Market. Quasar Business Solutions Inc. has placed an Initial Purchase Order with the Company for 1,000,000
units of the Company’s 24/7 Power Packs,

In November 2006, the Company entered into a worldwide distribution agreecment with Northwest
Charging Systems Inc (NCS), a power products supplier, to market and sell the Company’s 24/7 Power Pack.
NCS has placed an initial purchase order for 250,000 24/7 Power Packs.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company did not record any revenue or expensc related to the above
distribution agreements or orders.

8. Cell Kinetics Rights Offering — On January 7, 2008, CKL, an indirect subsidiary of MTL, completed
an over subscribed rights offering to the sharcholders of MTL, to acquire shares and warrants of CKL. Upon the
consummation of the offering, MTL continued to own, indirectly through its lower tier subsidiaries
approximately 82.5% of CKL and the participating MTL sharcholders owned the balance. On February 11,
2008, Cell Kinetics announced that it has received the ticker symbol of CKNTF for the quotation of its shares on
the OTC Bulletin Board maintained by Nasdaq and, on March 12, 2008, Cell Kinctics announced that it has
received the ticker symbol of CKNWF for the quotation of its four year warrants on the OTC Bulletin Board.

In furtherance of MTL’s plan to commercialize the Cell Carrier technology, Mcdis El assigned all of its
intellectual property rights to the CellScan, including the Cell Carricr, to CKL on July 26, 2007. MTL also has
agreed to provide to CKL, over an 18 month period starting with the completion of the rights offering, an
unrestricted capital contribution of up to $1,500,000 on an as needed basis. Furthermore, in the cvent that such
$1,500,000 capital contribution along with other available funds would be insufficient for CKL to carry-out its
operations for at least one year from the completion of the rights offering, MTL has agrecd to provide CKL with
additional financing from time to time to ensure that CKL will have sufficient funds to carry out its operations
for at least one year from the completion of rights offering. Additionally, MTL and Medis El have agreed to
provide office and laboratory facilities and administrative services to CKL at cost as a contribution to capital, for
a period of at least 18 months form the completion of the rights offering.

In October 2007, CKL, granted options to purchase an aggregate of 506,750 shares of its ordinary shares
to employees, officers, directors and to a non-employee consultant. Such options are exercisable at $.30 per
share and expire seven years from the date of the grant. Of such options granted, 381,750 granted to employees,
officers and to a non-employee consultant vest in equal installments on each of the first three anniversarics of the
grant date. The remaining 125,000 options granted to directors vest quarterly in equal installments in December
31, 2007, March 2008, June 2008 and Scptember 2008.

9. Investment in Scorpion Surgical Technologies, Ltd. On July 16, 2007, CKL entered in to an
agreement with Scorpion Surgical Technologies, Ltd. (“Scorpion™) whereby CKL agrced to acquire 20,000
shares which represents a 20% cquity interest in Scorpion for $150,000, with $50,000 of such amount payable
upon signing of the agreement and the remaining $100,000 payable in two equal installments subject to certain
conditions sct forth in the agreement. The first 6,666 shares were acquired in July 2007, upon the Company’s
payment of the first $50,000 installment. Scorpion is an carly-stage company in the ficld of orthopedic surgical
instrumentation with particular emphasis upon spinal stabilization systems. The chief executive officer of CKL
is a director and co-founder of Scorpion. The Company has recorded its investment in Scorpion as in-process
research and development expense.
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1. Consulting Agreements — The Company has entered into consulting agreements with its Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and with its Deputy Chairman and Chief Operation Officer, principal stockholders
of the Company. Such agreements have initial terms through December 31, 2001 and provide for automatic
extension on a year to year basis. During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Company
incurred fees relating to its agreement with its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of approximately
$267,000, $295,000 and $315,000, respectively, as compensation for his services as an officer of the Company.
During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, the Company incurred fees relating to its agreement
with its Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of approximately $210,000, $270,000 and $289,000,
respectively, as compensation for his services as an officer of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a
corporation wholly owned by its president, for selling, marketing and other promotional services. Such
agreement has an initial term through December 31, 2003 and provides for automatic extension on a yecar to year
basis, unless otherwise terminated by the parties, During each of the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, the Company incurred fees of approximately $144,000, as compensation for consulting services under
such agreement.

2. Administrative Services — Secretarial and bookkeeping scrvices are provided to MTL through a
costs sharing arrangement with a company that is controlled by the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
with its Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of MTL. During the years ended December 31, 2005,
2006, and 2007, fees for such services amounted to approximately $66,000, $69,000 and $74,000, respectively.
See Note M-3 regarding lease agreement with the same related party.

3. Loans to Non-Executive Officers — As of December 31, 2007, the Vice President of Marketing, a
non executive officer, owed the Company $164,000 under a secured promissory note dated on October 31, 2007.
The interest rate under such note is 4.11% per annum, which is equal to the applicable federal rate for short-term
loans in effect on such promissory note date, interest is payable monthly and the loan is due on December 31,
2007. On January 1, 2008, subsequent to the Balance Sheet Date, the Company and the Vice President of
Marketing entered into an amendment to the October 31, 2007 note, whercby the due date of the note was
extended to June 30, 2008 and the interest rate was reduced to 3.14% per annum, which is equal to the applicable
federal rate for short-term loans in cffect on such amendment date. Upon any sale of stock issued pursuant to the
cxcreise of certain warrants beneficially owned by the Vice President of Marketing, the difference between the
sale price of the stock and the exercise price of the warrants was to be applied to prepay the outstanding principal
and accrued interest on the Notes. As of December 31, 2006, the Vice President of Marketing owed the
Company $20,000 under a secured promissory note dated on December 4, 2006. The interest rate on this loan
was 4.97% per annum, which is equal to the applicable federal rate for short-term loans in cffect on such
promissory note date. Ali Principal and interest on December 4, 2006 loan was paid in full in January 2007 in
accordance with the terms of the note,

NOTE O—INCOME TAXES

a. MTL (which files consolidated Federal income tax returns together with Medis Inc.) and its wholly
owned subsidiaries are separately taxed under the domestic tax laws of the statc of incorporation of each entity.

b. Tax laws applicable to the companies in Isracl:

Measurement of taxable income under the Income Tax (Inflationary Adjustments) Law, 1985:
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In accordance with the above law, results for tax purposcs arc measured and reflected in real terms in
accordance with the changes in the Isracli CPL.

Commencing with the year 2008, the Company has elected to file its tax return under the Isracli Income
Tax Rcgulations 1986 (Principles Regarding the Management of Books of Account of Foreign Invested
Companies and Certain Partnerships and the Determination of Their Taxable Income). Such an elective obligates
the Company for three years. Accordingly, commencing the year 2008, results for tax purposes will be measured
in terms of earnings in dollars.

c. Tax rates applicable to companics in Isracl are as follows:

Until December 31, 2003, the regular tax rate applicable to income of companies (which arc not entitled
to benefits duc to “Approved Enterprise”, as described below) was 36%. In Scptember 2004 and in July 2005,
the “Knesset” {Israeli parliament) passcd amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance (No. 140 and Temporary
Provision), 2004 and (No. 147), 2005 respectively, which determine, among other things, that the corporate tax
rate is to be gradually reduced to the following tax rates: 2004 — 35%, 2005 — 34%, 2006 — 31%, 2007 — 29%,
2008 — 27%, 2009 — 26% and 2010 and thereafter — 25%.

Since no deferred tax assets are recorded for net loss carryforwards in I[sracl, the abovementioned
amendment has no effect on the financial statements.

d. Encouragement Law in Isracl:

The law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the “Investment Law™} and the tax
benefits that we may derive there from can be summarized as follows:

The facilities of More Energy have been granted status of an “Approved Enterprise” under the
Investment Law. According to the provisions of the Investment Law, More Energy has clected the “alternative
benefits track™ - the waiver of grants in return for tax exemption and, accordingly, More Encrgy income is tax-
exempt for a period of two years commencing with the year it first earns taxable income, and subject to
corporate taxcs at the reduced rate of 10% to 25%, depending upon the level of foreign ownership of the
Company, for an additional peried of 5-8 years from when the tax exemption ends. The period of 1ax benefits,
detailed above, is limited to the earlier of 12 years from the commencement of production, or 14 years from the
approval date (except for the tax-exempt period of two years which is unlimited). Due to reported losses for tax
purposes the tax benefit period has not yet commenced.

The cntitlement to the above benefits is conditional upon fulfilling the conditions stipulated by the
Investment Law, regulations published thereunder and the letters of approval for the specific investments in
“Approved Enterprises.” In the event of failure to comply with these conditions, the benefits may be canceled
and More Energy may be required 10 refund the amount of the benefits, in wholce or in part, including interest. As
of Deccember 31, 2007, management belicves that the Company’s Isracli subsidiary is mecting the
aforementioned conditions.

If Morc Encrgy distributes a cash dividend from retained carning which werc tax exempt due to s

approved enterprise status, More Encrgy would be required to pay corporate tax at a rate of 10% to 25%
corporate tax on the gross amount distributed and a further 15% withholding tax would be deducted from the
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amount disturbed to the recipients. If More Energy derives income form sources other than the approved
enterprise programs during the relevant period of benefits, this income would be taxable at the regular corporate
tax rate of [sracl.

On April 1, 2005, an amendment to the Investment Law came into effect (“the Amendment™) and has
significantly changed the provisions of the Investment Law. The Amendment sets forth the scope of enterprises
which may qualify as a Privileged Enterprise {under the Amendment, the designation is Bencficiary Entcrprise
rather than Approved Enterprisc) by sctting forth criteria for qualification of a company, such as provisions
generally requiring that at least 25% of the Beneficiary Enterprise’s income will be derived from expont and that
minimum gualifying investments in productive assets be made. Additionally, the Amendment cnacted major
changes in the manner in which tax benefits are awarded under the Investment Law so that companies no lenger
require Investment Center approval in order to qualify for tax benefits. Under the Amendment, the year in which
the company elects to commence its tax benefits is designated as the year of election (“Year of Election”). A
company may choosc its Ycar of Election by notifying the Israeli Tax authorities in connection with filings its
annual tax return or within 12 months afier the cnd of the Ycar of Election, whichever is carlier, or by requesting
a pre-ruling ruling from the Israeli tax authorities no later than within 6 months after the end of the Year of
Election.

In July 2006, More Energy had submitted an application to the Investment Center for approval to
manufacture abroad and still be eligible for all the benefits according the Investment Law. The request has not
yet been approved. In August 2006, More Energy applied to the Isracii Tax Authorities in order to reccive
approval for manufacturing in Ireland with Celestica and to grant the status of “Industrial Enterprise”. A decision
rcgarding the request has not yet been received.

The Investment Law, as amended, also provides that any letter of approval granted prior to the
Amendment will remain subject to the terms and benefits included in such letter of approval. Accordingly, while
it is anticipated that the Investment Law, as amended, will govern More Energy’s Beneficiary Enterprise terms
and benefits, the Company does not expect that the Amendment will have any impact on Medis EL

e. Carryforward losses:

At December 31, 2007, the Company had a net operating loss (“NOL™) carryforward for United States
Federal income tax purposes of approximately $28,806,000, expiring through 2026. Such amount includes
$7,922,000 of tax deductions in excess of expense recorded with respect to grants of options and warrants.
Utilization of U.S. net operating losses may be subject to substantial annual limitation due to the “change in
ownership™ within the mecaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenuc Code of 1986 and similar state
provisions.

Annual limitations may result in the expiration of nct operating losses before utilization. The Israeli
subsidiaries have net operating losses, for Isracli tax purposcs, aggregating approximately $85,775,000 as of
December 31, 2007, which, pursuant to Israeli tax law, do not expire.

The availability of MTL’s U.S. net operating loss carry-forwards may be reduced to the extent one or
morc direct or indirect holders of 5% or greater amount of MTL’s common stock increases their equity interest
in us by more than 50% in the aggregate.

f. Open Tax Years:

The Company files U.S. federal income tax returns and Israeli income tax returns, as well as income tax
returns for New York State and New York City, The Company may be subject to examination by the U.S.
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Internal Revenue Service and the New York State and New York City revenue authorities from inception of
operations due to net operation loss carry forwards generated in past years. The Company may also be subject to
examination by the Israeli tax authorities for the years 2003 through 2006.

g. Deferred income taxes:

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax cffect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities and assets arc as follows:

December 31,

2006 2007
Net operating loss carryforward-—United States.............ccon § 9,889,000 $ 12,118,000
Net operating loss carryforward—Israel ... 18,713,000 21,444,000
Other dIffErenCes .o.oov e 4,275,000 6,019,000
32,877,000 39,581,000
Valuation allOWANCE ..........cvereerecreceieeeese bbb (32,877,000 (39,581,000)
Deferred iax assets, net of valuation allowance .........cccccevee e $ — $ —

The entire change in valuation allowance is for the increase in net operating loss during the year. The
Company is unable to conclude that it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets from carryforward losses
will be realized in the foreseeable future, Accordingly, a valuation allowance has been recorded for the entire
amounnt.

h. Loss before income taxes is comprised as follows:
Year ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
FOTEIZIN 1. vvvevevveeeeveerereresereeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseseeeeseeeeeeeeeeoe $ (15,602,000) S (21,736,000) $ (33,109,000)
DOMESLIC <...rvvveiverarrsareeresensressesesessesessaseeesessaes (2,948,000 (11,311,600 (3,091,000

$ (18,550,000)0 $ (33,047,000) $ (38,200,000)

i Reconciliation of the theoretical tax benefit to the actual tax expense benefit:

In 2005, 2006 and 2007, the main reconciling items between the statutory tax rate of the Company and
the effective tax rate are carryforward tax losses, for which a full valuation allowance was provided.
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NOTE P—SUMMARY INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

The Company manages its business on a basis of two reportable segments, However, since the Cell
Kinetics reportable segment is immaterial, management believes that information about this scgment would not
be useful to the readers of the financial statements. See Note A for a brief description of the Company’s
business. The following data is presented in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
131, “Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”. Total revenues are attributed to
geographic areas bascd on the location of the customer.

The following data presents total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 and
long-lived assets as of December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007:

December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Total Long-lived Total Long-lived Total Long-lived
Revenues assets Revenues assels Revenues assets
Europe...........c... $ — h) — $ —  $12,105000 § — $ 43,865,000
Israel ....ccooeeeeenene. 425,000 63,654,000 — 71,228,000 400,000 73,753,000
United States....... — 64,000 150,000 — — 4,000
Other...cooovvveen. — — — — — 67,000

§ 425000  $63,718000 § 50,000 § 83,333,000 S 400,000 § 117,689,000
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NOTE Q —CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarter ended

Fiscal 2007

Revenues.......ccoociiiininne e
Gross profif. ..o
Loss from operations ...........coevvvveeveviveenianns
Interest income (eXpenses) .......cccoveevreenenn
INELIOSS e e

Dividend on preferred stock ..........coceinininn,

Net loss altributable to common

StOCKhOIAErs. ..o,

Basic and diluted net loss per share ............

Weighted-average number of shares
used in computing basic and diluted
net 10ss per share ........ccccovevevvvecccarrnns

Quarter ended

Fiscal 2006

Revenues.........ooiiiiiiinr e,
Gross profit ...,
Loss from operations ........ccovveieevenessivennns
Interest income (EXPENSses) ......cvveeernivrenenn,
NEE 088 vt
Basic and diluted net loss per share............

Weighted-average number of shares
used in computing basic and diluted
net loss pershare ...,

AR e ok ok ok sk s ol ol ol o ok ok ok e o o e ol sk sk ok 3 3 s okokoOk ok ok

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
S — g — S 400,000 S —
b — $ — % 151,000 § —_
S (92350000 § (9,540,000 S (9,124,000)0 § (11,404,000)
S 901,000 S 800,000 S 441,000 S (1,039,000)
S (8,334,000) S (8740,000) S (8,683,0000 S (12,443,000)
$ (1,001,000) § (1,043,6000 35 (1,042,0000 § (1,042,000)
S (9,335,000 $ (9,783,000) § (9,725,000) S (13,485,000)
$ (27) § (29 § (29) § {41)
34,934,411 33,448,397 33,535,799 33,794,827
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
s — $ — 3 150,000 S —_
S — $ — S 52000 § —
S (54460000 § (5621,000) S (7,065,000 § (7,660,000)
S (450,000 § (8,101,000 § 389.000 §% 907,000
$ (5,896,000 § (13,722,000 $ (6,676,000) $ (6,753,000)
S (21 8§ (44) § (21) § (.22)
28,229,241 31,030,842 32,108,884 32,239,934
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Performance Graph

The graph below compares the annual performance of our common stock with the
performance of each of the Nasdaq National Market Index (through June 30, 2006),
Nasdaq Composite Index, a peer group of comparable fuel cell companies (the “Peer
Group Index (2001-2006)”) from December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2006, and a
peer group of comparable fuel cell companies (the "Peer Group Index (2006-2007)")
from December 31, 2006 through December 31, 2007. The performance graph assumes
that an investment of $100 was made in our common stock and in each index as of the
market close on December 31, 2001, or, in the case of the Peer Group Index (2006-2007),
December 31, 2006, and that al! dividends, if any, were reinvested.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Returns

250

200 - v
- \
/ \
" / \\ —e— Madis TechnologiesLid.
g s =~ Paer Group Index (2001-2006)(1)(2}
o

150
/ ~#& Paar Group Indax (2006-2007){1)(3)
~-a- Nasdaq National Markat Index (2)

i Nasdag Composile ndex (3)

100 — ,/ - \,k_
\\\ / s \
\\x{! ™~ "
50
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Comparison of Cumulative Total Returns
12/31/01  12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
Medis Technologies Lid. $100  $68.03 $14558 $249.66 $200.14  $236.60 $209.93
Peer Group Index (2001-
2006) (1)(2) 100 5518 187.13 21502  94.53 66.37
Peer Group Index (2006-
2007) (1X(3) 100.00 60.99
Nasdag National Market
Index (2) 100 68.29 10215 110.93 11264 123.53(5)
Nasdag Composite Index 100 68.47 10272 111.54 113.07 123.84 135.99

(1) The rctums of the Peer Group Index are weighted according to the respective issuer’s
market capitalization.

(2) The Pcer Group Index from December 31, 2001 through December 31, 2003 consists of
Lions Petroleum Inc. (formerly Encrgy Visions Inc.), Manhattan Scientifics Inc. and




(3)

(4)

(5)

Mechanical Technolegy Incorporated. The Peer Group Index for the years ended
December 31, 2004 through 2006 consists only of Manhattan Scientifics Inc. and
Mechanical Technology Incorporated. Based on a review of its public filings, Lions
Petroleum discontinued its historic business, the research and development of technology
for usc in the manufacture of fucl cells and batterics, in September 2004.

The Peer Group Index from December 31, 2006 through December 31, 2007 consists of
Manhattan Scientific Inc., Mcchanical Technologies Inc. and Neah Power Systems, Inc.
Based on a review of its public filings, Ncah Power Systems acquired is fucl cell
technology business in 2006.

Due to the termination of the Nasdaq National market Index on June 30, 2006, we have
sclected the Nasdag Composite Index as the market index to which we have compared
our common stock.

Represents the cumulative total retumns for the Nasdaq National Market Index on June 30,
2006, which was the date such index terminated.
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